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(1) P-R-0-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
(2) (9:47a.m.)
(3), WHEREUPON,
(4) PETERH. LEMIEUX (5) HAVING
BEEN PREVIOUSLYSWORN,
RESUMEDTHE WITNESS (6) STAND,
WAS EXAMINED AND TESTIFIEDAS
FOLLOWS:
(7) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: This is
daytwo of (8) theproceedings.Let the
recordshowthatwe'e{9) proceeding
with Dr. Lemieuxwith cross
examinationby (10) Mr. Lane.
(11) And if Mr. Lanedoesn'tmind too
much, I (12) do haveaquestionfor Dr.
Lemieuxbasedon his (13) testimony

yesterday.Your indulgence,Mr, Lane.
(14) Dr. Lemieux,thereis something
I'm a (15) little confusedabout. On
page30 of your testimony,(16) you
havea tablethere,10-2, "Average
Numberof (17) SignalsCarriedby
SignalType."
(18) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Now
thoseare(20) signalsrelatedto distant
signals.
(21) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Now, it
saysthere(23) that"Networkshave,on
theaverage,.30 of networks,"(24) What
networksareyou referringto?
(25) Are you referringto networks
excluding
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(1) CBS, NBC andABC or including
that?
(2) THE WITNESS: I'm referringto
network(3) affiliated local stationsthat
arecarriedasdistant(4) signals.
(s) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Sothat
— thething (6) I don'tunderstandis that
in thetop 50 market,not (7) every
stationcarriesCBS, NBC andABC?
(8) THE WITNESS: No, theydo. And
someof (9) themalsocarry— someof
those— andsomenetwork(1O) affiliated.
stationsasdistantsignalsaswell.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Well,
that— and (12) by your definition then—
(13) THE WITNESS: I believeD.C. is an
example(14) of thatwherethethree
Baltimoreaffiliated stations(1S) arealso
carriedin theDistrict on District (16)
Cablevision.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
Sowould (18) thatbe— bring up the
averagehere?
(19) THE WITNESS: Thatwould be-
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That
would be—
(21) THE WITNESS: Thatwould bean
instanceof (22) threefor thatsystem.
(23) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Point-
thatwould (24) be3. not.3.
(25) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
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(1) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: But in a
lot of — (2) in most,then,of thetop 50
stationsdo notcarryall (3) threeof the
networkaffiliates?
(4) THE WITNESS: No, theycarry-
theyare(s) requiredto carry— they
usedto berequiredto carry (8) the local
stationsin Washington.
(7) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
(8) THE WITNESS: On theDistrict
cable(9) system,theycarry thethree
WashingtonD.C. network (10) affiliates:
theCBSaffiliate, theNBC affiliate and
(11) theABC affiliate. Thoseareall
carriedaslocal, (12) andtheyarenot

NEAL R. GROSS& CO., INC. (202) 234-4433 Page358to Page365
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compensatedin this proceeding.
(13) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Yes.
(14) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
They'ecarriedby (15) FCC
requirements?
(16) THEWITNESS: Yes, I thinkthat-
I'm not (17) exactlycertainaboutwhat
thestatusof themost(18) carria 's
thesedays. They'egonethrougn
some(is) litigation, but—
(20) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: If I

couldjust (21) interjecthere,oneof the
thingsthatwe keepshowing(22) with
this interplaybetweenthe requirements
of Title (23) XVII andFCC requirements.
(24) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And
you all maybe

Page366
(1) totally familiar with all of theFCC
requirementsand (2) would prefer
shorthandat76.65orwhatever. But I

(3) think you shouldassumethatweare
notfamiliar.
(4) THE WITNESS: Right.
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM.'nd
it's important(e) for us to distinguish
what'srequiredby theFCCand (7)
what'srequiredby ourstatute.
(e) THE WITNESS: I'm notanexpert
onwhat(8) thecurrentstatusof the
FCC regulationsarein (i o) regardto
carriage.And in theold regime,
whenever(11) thatwas,operatorswere
requiredto carryall locally (12) licensed
stations.
(13) That is, if there's- if I'm acable
(14) systemand I'm within 35 milesof a
local broadcast(1 s) station,underthe
old FCC rules— andasfar as I (16)
know, theserulesarestill in effect, I

think, but (1 7) I'm not positiveabout
this.
(18) Then I would be requiredto carry
all (is) thosebroadcastsignalsthatI'm
within 35 milesof.
(20) And it is thecasethat, in some(21)
instances,cableoperatorsalsocarry
distantnetwork(22) affiliate stations.
(23) That is, theycarryanABC, CBSor
NBC (24) affiliated stationfrom outside
of their local market,(2S)aeherewhere
thethreeBaltimoreaffiliated efatfone
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(1) arealsocarriedon Distrfct
Cablevisfon.
(2) Sothatpeoplein WashingtonD.C.
actually(3) havetwo CBS,two NBC and
two ABC stationson their (4) local cable
system,onethat'slocalandonethat'
(5) distantand imported.
(8) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Sothat
onyour (7) charthere-
(8) THE WITNESS: Right.
(8) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: — is that
is only (ic) for the imported?

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91,. & 92 CABL
(11) THE WITNESS: That'sdorrhct.'12)

CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: So that'na- (13) MemphisI think it was
yesterday.
(14) THE WITNESS: Nashvilleor
whateverthe (15) other-
(16) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Yes,
okay. All (17) right, in Nashville,would
thestationdownthere(18) have,,'aspart
of Its basicpackageCBS, NBC and
ABC (is) tyPically?
(20) THE WITNESS: Yes'.
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
Now- (22) andjustaboutevery 'ackagein thetop 50would have(23)
those,would theynot?
(24) THE WITNESS: Almost, by
definition, yes.
(25) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
Now, but
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(1) that is not reflectedin whatyou have
herelisting (2) networks.
(3) THE WITNESS: Right, I'm only
considering(4) distantsignalshere.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
Now, how (6) — you'eonly considering
distantsignals,so- but (7) anetwork
providesdistantsignals,doesit not?
It's (8) not compensatedfor it, but it 'rovidesdistant- I (8} m0an,~it's the~

sourceof distantsignals,'cor'rect?
(io) THE WITNESS: No.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I 'mein,
anetwork- (12) I'm sorry,' -'13)THE WITNESS: Thenetwork-
(14) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: — a
station.
(1S) THE WITNESS: A network 'ffiliated(16) station?
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Yes.'18)

THE WITNESS: I guessl'mhot'ntirely

(is) clearon thequestionhere.
If-
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTl: L@rAe 'ithdrawit (21) becauseI don'tthink it'
leadinganywhere.But th'e (22)
significanceis, andyourstatisticshere
thatthe(23) networksyou include
would bedistantsignalnetworks,(24)
eventhoughthey'eanetWorkaffiliate.
(25) THE WITNESS: Theyaredietant
signal
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(1) broadcaststatlons-
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
Broadcaststations.
(3) THE WITNESS: - thatareaffiliated'ith

(4) oneof thethreerrfajot
networks.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
Now- (6) well, I guessI'll'saveitfor Dr. 'ortzbecausehem hasachannelon it
- I mean,atestimonyon pages(8) ten
and11, andit sortof confusesme
alongthose(8) samelines.

E'OYA'LTY FUNDS... xMAxai

I1O) But I think I'm prettysure-'Mr.
Lane, (1'1) s(ibjecttb—
(12) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: I,
too, am (13) confusedby this testimony
on page30, yourTable10- (i4) 1. In
thebodyof yourtext,your tes&imony,
you talk (15) aboutTable10-1
presentingaveragenumberof distant
(16) signals.
(17) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
(18) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
That,to me, (18) suggestssomething
thatI'e learnedfrom you all the (2o)
fastcoupleof days. In'yourtable,you
identify it (21) astheaveragentumLerbf
signals.
(22) You did notdistinguishbetween
distant(23) signalsandsignals.
(24) THE WITNESS: Right.
t25) 'ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: First
ofall-
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(1) THE WITNESS: But that'sa—
(2) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:-
howdoyou (3) rationalizethat?
(4) THE WITNESS: Thetitle should
say(5) "DistantSignals."
(6) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Oh,
it should.
(7) 'THE WITNESS: I mean,how'do I

deci'dewhat(6) 'constitutesbeinga
distantsignal?
(8) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Yes.~
(1O) THEWITNESS: Well,theFCC
i'uleSthatsay(11) that if thestationis-
(12) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDESf So
you'eusing (13) FCC rules. I'm clear
now'. That'sall'that—
(14) THE WITNESS: Well, the
operatorsfile (1 S) thesestatementsof
account-
(ie) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Yes.
(17) THEWITNESS: -thatwewent
through(18) yesterday.Theyareusing
1'eFCC rules-'ie)

ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES. All
right.
(2O) THEWITNESS: -whenthey
distinguish(21) betweenwhat'sa local
andadistantstationfor the(22)
copyrightpurposes.
(23) 'ARBITRATOR'FAFIMAKIDESt
Okay.
(24) THE WITNESS: And therule is, If

the(2S)systemis outsidethe35 mile
zoneof thebroadcast'Page
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(1) station,thenit's consideredto'be
distant.'2)

ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: In
this table,(3) othertha'nav'erage-'hen~
you'comeup with anaverage(4)
number,okay,you'etalking aboutan
averagenumber(5) of what?
(6) THE WITNESS: Let'ssuppose
therewere100m top- 100cable
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systemsin the top 50, and30 of them
(s) carrieda distantnetworkaffiliate.
Thenwe would (9) getanaverageof .3.
(10) MR. NEIMAN: Justto clearup one
thing (11) relatedto yourquestion,Your
Honor. Dr. Lemieux, (12) thedatathat'
reflectedin this table,that'sbased(13)
on the informationprovidedby the
cableoperators?
(14) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(15) MR. NEIMAN: Whentheyfile their
(is) statementswith theCopyright
Office?
(1 7) THE WITNESS: As wesaw
yesterdayon Form (15) 3, theyhaveto
distinguishis this a local or a (19)
distantsignalfor eachonetheycarry?
(20) MR. NEIMAN: Okay,andyou-
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Thank
you.
(22) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I'm
justtrying to (23) understandthe
numbersherein yourtable. For (24)
example,under"OtherShipper
Stations,"thetop50 (25) you had .12.
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(1) Doesthatfigure meanthat12
percentof (2) thestationsin thetop 50
marketscarrysignalsfrom (3) other
superstations,or doesit mean
somethingelse?
(4) THE WITNESS: No, it maybe
somewhat— it (5) maynotnecessarily
meanthat if theycarriedmore(5) than
one,sincetherearefoursignalsin that
(7) category.
(5) Somesystemswould carrytwo,
other(9) superstations,for instance.
(10) So it can'tbeseenpurelyasa
percentage(11) because—
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well,
whatdoesit (i3) mean?Whatdoesthe
"0.12" signify'?
(14) THE WITNESS: Supposethat
therewere— (15) we had100cable
systemsin thetop 50 markets.We (ts)
havemanymore,obviously,butJustfor
purposesof (i7) discussion.
(ie) And if, let'ssay-getthenumberto
get(19) .12 here. Let'ssaythatof
those,eightcarriedone(20) other
original superstatlon,andtwo carried
two other(21) superstatlons.Thenwe
would get12 instancesof (22) carriage
averagedacrossthe100systems.
(23) It's likely to bethecasethatfor
these(24) categories- for example,if
we lookattheoriginal (25) superstatlon
columna,okay,clearlythatnumberis
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(i) muchbiggerthanone.
(2) It's closerto two, which suggests
that, (3) on average,acablesystemin
thetop50 market(4) carriescloseto
two of thethreeoriginal (5)
superstationsonaverage.

(s) Therearesomethatcarryonly one
or-
(7) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: This is
theaverage(e) carriedby anysingle
cablesystem.
(9) THEWITNESS: Right. Basically,
it's (10) computedby takingall the
instancesof original (ii) superstation
carriagein thetop50 markets,and (12)
dividing by thenumberof cable
systemsin thetop 50 (13) markets.
(14) And thatturnsoutto be1.76.
(15) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
But these(15) numbersall referto the
averagenumberof distant(17) signals
in variouscategoriescarriedby any
onecable(is) system?
(19) THE WITNESS: Carriedby the
averagecable(20) system.
(21) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Yes,
butasingle(22) average.It's notsome
aggregatenumber.
(23) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Ifl
couldstayon (25) this for justamoment
longer-

Page374
(1) THE WITNESS: Sure.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: — I'm
goingto do (3) somethingI said I

wouldn'tdo. I'm goingto do it (4) with
Dr. Bortz.
(5) He uses"mile high" asanexample.
And he (5) saysfor thebasicservice,
theycarrythreestations:m CNC, RMA
andMGH, andthosearetheNBC, CBS
andthe (5) ABC is KTCI or KUSA.
(9) But thosearelistedthereaslocal
(io) broadcast,sothosearethelocal-
sothatwouldn't(11) becomputedin
youraverageof distantsignals.
(12) THE WITNESS: Right, they'enot
(13) compensablehere.
(14) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Now on
theexpanded(15) basis,theyhavea
CNBC,andthat's- would thatthen(15)
bethedistantstation'
(17) THE WITNESS: No, CNBC Isa
cablenetwork(15) that'sownedby
NBC. It's like — it's like TNT or (19) MTV
or oneof theoneswetalkedabout
yesterday— (2o) ESPN.
(21) CNBC is anothercablenetwork
Iike-
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: It'

possiblethough(23) to carryNBC as
boththe local broadcastasCKNC and
(24) asadistantsignalthroughanother
city or something.
(25) THE WITNESS: That'strue.

Page375
(1) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
(2) THE WITNESS: CNBC, on the
otherhand,is (3) notNBC's regular
networkprogramming.It's an(4)
entirelyseparateservicewith entirely

X MAX(a)

different (5) programs.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay
Thanks,(7) Doctor.
(5) Mr. Lane,thatwasa long
preliminary. (9) I'm sorry. Go ahead.
(10) MR. LANE: No problem.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
mayproceed.
(12) MR. LANE: Thankyou.Wouldyou
turn to (13) pagefive of yourtestimony,
please?And thetop (14) chartin that
lists thenumberof cablesystems,does
(is) it not?
(15) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(17) CONTINUED CROSS
EXAMINATION
(18) BY MR. LANE:
(19) Q And thatnumber- let'sjustsay
with (20) 92.2, 13,291 is thetotal
numberof cablesystemsin (21) the
UnitedStatesthatreportedroyalties
duringthat(22) period,correct?
(23) A As of thedateof theday I had
them-
(24) Q And eachof thosefiled oneof
these(25) statementsof account?
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(1) A Oneof theotherone,yes.
(2) Q Yes. And thatwaswherethe
information (3) wastakenby Larson
andyou tookthatandthen,in (4) turn,
cameup with this chart,right?
(5) A Yes.
(5) Q Now for the restof your
testimony,you'e(7) only concerned,
areyou not,with the line entitled (8)
"Form 3," which is 2,236systems?
(9) A That'scorrect.
(10) Q Okay. Now couldweturn to
pagetenof (ii) yourtestimony?Do
you havethat? And justkeeppage(12)
five — keepyourfingeron thataswell.
(13) A Are yougoingto askmewhile
thereare(14) six systems?
(is) Q Well, I wasn'tgoingto askyou
that(15) becausethat'sgoingto bea
little — I knowwhy it (i7) is, but-this
chartshowswhatyou call, 'instances
(15) of carriage,"right?
(19) A Yes.
(20) Q Now let'ssayI wantto takea
simple(21) example,andI'egotmy
Form3, andI'm aForm3 (22) system.
I'm justonesystemandI'm filing out
my — (23) I'm filling outmy pagenumber
threewhereI list my (24) callssignsand
my stations.
(25) Now let'ssaythat I Justhappento
put
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(1) downWTBS, WGN andWWOR on
my state,netof accountand(2) they'e
all distant,okay'? Do you havethatin
mind?
(3) A Sure.
(4) Q How manyinstancesof carriage

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91, & 92 CABLE ROYALTY FUNDS
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do I have(5) in thai, siLuation?
(8) A By my count,three.
(7) Q Threeinstancesof carriage.So
if I took(8) — if I took thenumberdown
here,you have— at the (9) bottom,you
havea total of 7,377,andthoseare(10)
instancesof carriage,right?
(11) A Yes.
(12) Q But in this case,you'eidentified
2,242(13) cablesystems.
(14) A Yes.
(1s) Q Soyou haveinferredfrom that
thatthe (18) averagecablesystem,
Form 3 in 1992-2carriedthree-(17)-
nearlythreeanda third distantsignals,
right?
(18) A Yes,theratioof-
(is) Q It's 3.29.
(20) A Yes.
(21) Q Exactly. Soobviously,some
carriedfour (22) or five, somecarried
two.
(23) A Rlgh't.
(24) Q But you addedall thoseup and
you just (25) divided it out?
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A Right.

(2) Q Okay. Then,you didn't really
givea (3) total on page— well, you-
well, actuallyyou did (4) doatotal and
that'sthe331 is, for all practical(5)
purposes,comparableto this 329on
pageten. Is that (8) correct?
(7) A Yes.
(s) Q Sowhatyou did is acable
systemdoesn't(9) justcarryonedistant
signalin mostcases.Is that(10) right?
(ii) A Generallyspeaking,right.
(12) Q So theycarrytwo, theycarry
three. And (13) in our parlance,we'e
alwayscalledthatinstancesof (14)
carriage,right?
(15) A Yes.
(18) Q You'enotthefirst personthat
thought(17) thatup—
(18) A Not atall.
(19) Q — or nottheonly personthat'
everused(20) that?
(21) A No.
(22). Q And soyou'edivision, if wego
backto (23) page30, the3.31 means
thatof the2,242systems(24) carried
somethingin theorderof 7,400
different (2s)distantsignalsonly?
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(1) A Yee.
(2) Q Okay. And in addition,theymay
have(3) carriedawholebunchof local
signals.And you (4) haven'tcounted
that in here,haveyou?
(5) A Not atall.
(8) Q And theymayhavecarrieda
wholebunchof (7) cablenetworkslike
ESPNandMTV andCNN andCNBC
and(8) awholebunchof paysystems:
HBO, Showtime,all of (9) that,PayPer
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View.
(io) Noneof that is in this chart, is it?
(11) A That'scorrect
(12) Q All this is limited to is thatvery
(13) limited areaof distantsignals?
(14) A That'scorrect.
(1 5) Q And thoseareidentified by the
cable(15) systemon page30 of the
statementof account,Form3, (17)
putting"yes" if theythink it's distant,
correct?
(18) A Yes, it is page30'.
(19) Q There'sacolumntherha6dit'ays

(20) "distant"andtheymark.it
"yes."
(21) A Right.
(22) Q And all you'vedoneis justsort
of (23) reportedall thatandshuffled it in
variouswasthat(24) you put in here
andcomeupwith thesenumbers?
(25) A That'scorrect.
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(1) Q Now if we look atpage30, for
example,we(2)seeas-4vellIlet'lstsllk 'boutthetop 50 markets,(3) That'slike,
NewYork, L.A., Chicagoandsoon
downthe (4) markets.
(s) Howarethemarketsranked?Gan
you tell (8) usthat? How do you tjet to
be in thetop50 markets?~(7) Whit's the
definition of it?
(8) A Well primarily, it's by
populationsize.
(9) Q Okay. Sothetop 50 marketsare
(io) essentiallytheonesthathavethe
mostpopulation,(11) correct?
(12) A That'scorrect.
(13) Q And thenthesecond50 markets
arethe(14)onesthathave-~
(15) A Thenextsetof ranklngsl
(18) Q-thenext-okay.Andthereare'ists(17) of theserankingsin various
placesaroundthatare(18) readily
available,correct?
(19) A Yea.
(20) Q And then,couldyou tell uswhat
a (21) "smallermarket"means?
(22) A lt meansmarketsthatare
betwunrank101 (23) andwhatever
thebottomof theranklngaare~which ~

la (24) ln thelow 200'e. '25)Q Sothereareabout210,220-'age
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(1) A Sotnethiftglike that.,
(2) Q — marketsin theUnitedStates,
right?
(3) A Rightaroundthe-'iflht,'ea,
overall.
(4) Q Overall.
(5) A And about120of themare
smaller.
(8) Q Right. Soall themarketsthatare
101 to (7) 220,orwhafeve'rtheexact'umberIs, areconsidere8(8) aslmaller'arket?

(9) A That'acorrect.
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(10) QAnd-
(11) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: What
arethese(i2) numbersyou'ereferring
to: 101 and220?
(13) MR. LANE: Marketsize.'14)THE WITNESS: The rankof each
market.
(15) MR. LANE: Thetop50,thesecond
50, then(18) 101 to 220 is thesmaller.
(i7) ARBITRATOR WEATHEIM: Qkay.
(18) BY MR. LANE:
(19) QOkay. Andwhatother
Characteristicdo (20) all these'220
marketshavein co'mmbnthatthe'utside

(21) all marketsdon'thave?
Theyhaveatelevision(22) station,don'
they?
(23) A Yes,theyhavea local
broadcaststation.
(24) Q Right. So "outsideall markets'eans

an (2S)areathatdoesn,'thavea
televisionstation,doesn'
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(1) ~~

(2) A Yes, it's a cablesystemthat'
morethan(3) 35 milesfrom any
broadcaststation.
{4) Q Right. So it's notconsideredto
be (8) insideatelev'Isiohmarket.'8)A Right.
(7) 'Q And that'wa4an important
consideration,(8) was it ndt, fdr th'e
FCC rulesabouthow manysignals(9)
you couldcarry?
(1O) A Yes. Thosesykterhs*ed
exemptfrom the (1 i) carriagerules.
(12) Q In otherwords,theycouldhave
carriedin (13) 1972or 197fl or ~1979,any
timethattheFCC rules (14) applied,
theycouldhavecarriedas'mahy

'ignalsas(is)theywahted?'18)A That'acorrect.
(17) Q But all theotherpeoplethatwere
inside(18) atop50or asecond50or
smaller,theyall had(is) limitationson
howmanytheycould Carry, right?
(20) A That'sright. Undertheold
rules,yea.
(21) QUndertheoldrulesiSonew
whenwe look (22) atyourChaithare,we:
kind'ofseethatin playasyou (23) go
downthechart,theaveragesbecome
bigger,(24) generailyspeaking.Isn'

correct?
(25) A That'atrue
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(1) Q And theChairmhn'9qLIestion .

aboutyouhave(2) only .3 networkin
the1op50market,but if yougo (3)
down in thesmallerandoutside,you'ee

you haveover(4) one.
(5) A That'acorrect.
(5)

' And that'sbecausein a lof of 'hosep) markets,theymightonly have
two affiliate stations(8) or oneor they
havecombinationsor—
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(9) A I don'tknow, but they'e
eligible to (10) carryanadditional-
theyhavechosento carry(11)
additionalnetworksandtheymay
havebeeneligible to (12) do so.
(is) Theymaybecarryingthemat
the3.75 (14) rate.
(16) Q And that'spartof whatyou saw
in oneof (1 6) yourchartsthatthe
smallermarketscarriedmoreof (17) the
3.75signals?
(16) A That'scorrect.
(19) Q And that'sbecause,in some
sense,they (ao) alreadyhadthose
signalsandtheywantedto continue
(21) to carry— I'm sorry,thesmaller
markets,theyhad (22) thetightest
restrictions,did theynoton whatthey
(2s) could carry?
(24) A Yes.
(25) Q So their permittedsignalswas
the
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(1) smallestof themarket?
(2) A YEs.
(s) Q Okay. Sothat'sonereasonwhy
theyhave(4) 3.75signals.
(6) A That'sa reason,yes.
(6) Q Okay.
m ARBITRATORWERTHEIM: Justto
go back(8) briefly, I think it's fairly
clear. ButyourTable5- (9) 1 on page
ten, "Distribution is to becarriedby type
(io) of signal,"thoseareall distant
signals?
(11) THE WITNESS: All distantsignals.
I (12) don'tbelievethere'sa figure in
this reportthat(is) refersto a local
signalatall.
(14) BY MR. LANE:
(16) Q Now it's true, is it not-maybe
this is (16) partof theconfusion.WTBS
is a local signal in (17) Atlanta,correct?
(18) A Yes.
(19) Q Butyoudon' countthat. Even if
they'e(ao) 150cablesystemsin the
AtlantamarketcarryingWTBS (21) asa
local signal,notoneof thosegoesin
here,did (22) it?
(2s) A Unlesstheoperator
misclassifiedIt In (24) this form.
(25) Q But I'm assumingtheydldn't.
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A Right.

(2) Q Soall thesestationsarelocal
signalsin (3) their local marketwhere
theygooutovertheantenna,(4) right?
(5) A Right, WGN in Chicagoand
WWOR in New (6) York.
m Q Right. Butyou'ecountednone
of those(8) local carriages.
(9) A That'scorrect.
(i 0) Q And theseareonly wherethey'e
in (11) marketsthattheyhaveto getto
thatthey'edistant?
(12) A Yes.
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(ia) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: In
Atlanta— in (i s) Atlanta, it is a local. But
elsewhere,it is not. It (14) would bea
distantsignal.
(16) MR. LANE: Correct. And justthe
sameas(16) — isn't it true,Dr. Lemieux,
thatjustthesameway, (17) WGN in
Chicago—
(16) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(19) BY MR. LANE:
(20) Q — is a local stationin Chicago
andWWOR (ai) is a localstationin New
York? Everystationis (22) local in its
own market?
(as) A Yes.
(24) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: But
it would be— (26) it would be, in your
Table5 andalso in Table10, it

(1s) Q Okay. And again,juststicking
with Table(14) 3, you'eonly identified
this for theForm 3 systems,(15)
correct?
(16) A Three?
(17) Q I'm sorry,pageten,Table5-1.
(18) A Right. Yes,theseareonly for
Form 3 (19) systems.
(20) Q And why did you limit yourselfto
Form3 (21) systems?
(22) A Two reasons:1) aswesaw
theotherday, (2S) it's nothereright
now, theyconstitute97percentor
(24) soof thetotal royaltypool. And
theotherreasonis (26) somewhat
moretechnical.
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(1) That is, it's only thosesystems
thatwe (2) candeducefrom the
statementsof accounthow signal(s)
carriagecontributedto royalty
paymentsby this DSE (4) allocation
businessthatwe talkedabout
yesterday.
(6) Q SotheForm 1 systemsjustpay
$28and-
(6) A Right, andtheydon'ttell us
anything.
P) Q Theydon'ttell uswhethera
signalis (8) distantor local-
(s) A Right.
(io) Q - and it's not reallyworth our
timeto (11) look up$28,whetherthis is
adistantor local (12) station.
(13) A Right.
(14) QThesamewiththeForm2
systems,they (15) just playaflat
percentandtheycan100or theycan
(16) carryone-
(17) A Right.
(16) Q - and it's thesamepercentage.
(19) A Right. Theydo list the
stations,but (ao) theydon't indicate
whetherthey'edistantor local. Are there(ao)anotherquestions?
(21) Q Right. Soonly thoseForm3's
havethat(22) columnthatsay"distant
or local,yes,no?'as)

A Yes.
(24) Q Okay. Are thereanyother
questionsthat(25) - arethereanyother Why didn'tyou provideuswith the
areasthatyouwould like meto numberof
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(1) explorehere?
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I think a
lot of (s) them lateron, butnot right
now.

MR. LANE: Okay.
(5) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Well, I thankyou (6) very muchfor that.
Thatclarifiedanumberof p) things.
You saidonething, Mr. Lane,andyou
(8) responded,Dr. Lemieux,with
respectto WTBS in (9) Atlanta,what
wasyourquestionrelatingto thefact
(io) thatit is anAtlanta localstation'
(11) MR. LANE: In Atlanta, it is a local.
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(1) would beadistantsignal in markets
anywhereother(2) thanAtlanta.
(s) THE WITNESS: Anywhereoutside
of-
(4) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: And
you have(6) marked- you have
calculatedthatasbeingadistant(6)
signal?
m THE WITNESS: Yes.
(8) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Thankyou.
(9) BY MR. LANE:
(io) Q And you'eexcludedall the
caseswhereit (ii) wasa localsignal?
(12) A To thebestof my abilities,
yes.
(is) Q Thoughasyou said,yourentire
exhibit is (14) basedsolelyon the
distantcarriagewith noneof the(15)
local market—
(16) A Right.
(17) Q - involvement.
(18) A By Form3 systems.
(19) Q Right, by Form3 systemsonly.

(21) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: No.
(22) BY MR. LANE:
(28) Q Why don'tyou- justturningto
page(24) seven-I thinkwecango
throughanyof yourtables(25) here.
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(1) subscribersthatcarried— thatwere
carriedby each(2) of thesetypesof
systems?
(3) A Why didn't I?
(4) Q Yes.
(5) A Well, I mean,I guessthe
primaryreason(6) is because
subscribers,perae,arenot relevant
here.p) What'sbeing- whatour
concerniswaswith royalties(8) and
wemightalsobe interestedin how
manysystems(9) arecarrying
differentkindsof signals.
(10) But thesubscribersdldn'tseem
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to be(») rzlavaatgerticularly.
(ia) Also to somedegree,I mean,
systemsthat (13) generally— you
know, revenuesandroyalty
payments(i4) aregoing to be,on
somedegree,proportionalta (15)
subscribers,but not- obviouslynot
perfectlyso.
(1 5) Q But wouldn'tsubscriber
information (17) provideuswith an idea
of how manypeoplearegetting (15)
differentypesof stations?
(1S) A Certainly.
(20) Q I'd like to turn to pageten, if you
will (21) please. I thin you stated
yesterdaythatthereare(22) other
superstations,butyou didn'tcount
them,(23) besidesthefour thatyou'e
listed hereas"other (24)
su perstations?"
(25) MR. NEIMAN: Objection,Your
Honor. I
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(1) think thatmischaracterizeshis
testimony.
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I think
heshould(3) clarify.
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
Overruled.
(5) THE WITNESS: I saidthatthere
wereother(5) stationsthatwerecarried
by satellite.
m BY MR. LANE:
(s) Q Okay. Well, what is your
definition of (s) superstation?"
(is) A My definition tendsto conform
to industry(11) usage,which is that
theyarethesesevenindependent
(12) signalsthatarecarriedby
satellite.
(1 3) Q So is thedefinition thesesignals
or is (14) thedefinition thatthey'e
carriedby satellite?
(is) A Formy purposes,a
superstationis the(is) signalsthat
wedefinedherein this list.
(17) Q We understandthat. What'sthe
industry(1e) definition'?
(is) A I believethatconformsto the
industry(ao) definition.
(ai) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: This is
an informal (aa) term "superstatlon'nd
it's notdefined-
(23) THE WITNESS: It wasoriginally
invented(24) by WTBS andIt's been-
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: For
advertising
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(1) purposes?
(2) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(3) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I

mean,it's not (4) pursuantto any ruleor

(5) THE WITNESS: No, there'sno
legal-
(e) BY MR. LANE:
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(7) Q Weil, that'snotquitetrue, is it?
(5) A Well, I guessnow thereis, but

(s) Q There'snot- there'snota
definition, (10) is there,foi cable'urposes, butthereis a (11) definition in
Section119of theCopyrightAct of (i 2)
"superstation?"
(13) A Thatmaybe. But it's notan
FCC term, (14) for Instarice.i
(15) QOkay. Nowwhatis— whatisthe
pointof (15) this Chart5.1 on pageten
of your.testimony?
(17) A It's to givesomeevidence
aboutwhich (18) signalscable
operatorscarrymorefrequentsod
less(1s) frequently.
(ao) Q And you sayatthe'bottom'fthe
pagethat(21) oneof thefactorsthat
distinguishesthe (22) superstationsis
thattheyall carry live spotting(aaI)
events?
(24) A That'scorrect.
(as) Q And arewe to take'anyjthingfrbm'his
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(i) tableaboutstationsthatcarry live
sportingevents?
(2) A Well, to theextentto which
WTBS, for (3) instance,andWGiN
bothcarrya lot of live sPorting'(4)'ventsandtheyarealsowidely
carried,wemight (e) concludethat
thestationswith live sportingevents
(5) havewidecarriagesincethese
do.
(7) Q Butwe havefive other

'uperstationsthat(e) areri'twidely
carriedthatcarrya lot of live (s)
sportingevents,right?
(10) A I guessit dependeupionfoui'efinitionof (1 1) 'widely carried"
here. Theseare,afterall-
(12) Q They'enotwidely carried.
(13) A pardonme?
(14) Q I saidthey'enotwidely carried.
(is) A Well, that'ssortof ar'elative'1e)

comparison.
(17) Q Well, doyou think KTLA atl32 is
widely (is) carried?
(19) A It probablyputsit in thetop 25
signals(ao) in termsof tfie n'umber'of
systems.
(21) Q Is thefactthat-wHattlendcan
wedraw (22) from this?
(as) A Fromthis tableoverall? As I

said(24) yesterday,thattheoriginal
superetationa,andreally (as) in
particularWTBS andWGN, have
shownmarkedgrowth
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(1) overthethreeyearperiodhere.'2)

While I believewith only one
exception,(3) educationalstatlbnei
all otherformsof carriagehave(4)
generallydeclined.
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(5) Q And that includesthefive other
(5) superstations,ail of 'which carry
sports?'7)A Yes,that'strue.
(5) Q So that- whenyou havetheall's)

superstationline with theplusdight
percentover(1O) therein theright-hand
column, if we tookoutTBSand(11) GN,
we'd haveanegativenumber,wouldn'
we?
(12) A That'strue.
(is) Q Now did you look atother
stationsthat(14) carry live sportin~
events—
(15) A Only for the-
(ie) Q -'separately&
(17) A Only in theanalysisthatwe
showed(1 5) yesterday'bout'regional
carriagepatterns.
(1s) Q Okay. Soyou didn't— you didn'
break(ae)themoutan)/plabeelseto
determinewhethertheother(21)
flagshipstationshadadeclinein
Carriage'likethe(22) five superstations?
(23) A I don'tbelieveeo.,
(24) Q And how manyflagshipstations
arethere,(25) to yoUr

knoWledge?'age
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(1) A Ourcountw'asthat'hereWe&
59 that(9) carrieda professional
slportlngevent,of 'which 5B (3) were
carriedoverdistantsignai.
(4) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Is
therea (5) substantiald'iffefence
betweenthe lives sports(e)
programmingcarriedby theoriginal
s'uperstationand (7} carriedby the
othersuperstationsin termsof typical
(5) hoursof programmihgCrwhatever'he

elementmaybe?
(S) THE Wl'TNESS: As my report
says,WTBSand(10) WGNlcarryniorei
sportingevents,morelive professional
(11) sportingevents,thananybther
distantsignal.
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Aire'oureferringto (13) ap'agethat
quantifiesthatcomparedto theother
(14) Superstatlohs?'15)THE WITNESS: It's not in my
testimony.(ie) I don'tknowaboutother
parteof thecase.
(17) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well
rbughly,if you (ie) know,arewe talking
abouttheoriginalscarrying(19) sports
on78 percentof theirprogramhours
whereas(ao)theotherscarryonly 25'?
Orwhat'stherangeof the(21),
difference,if youhavethattotal?'22)THE WITNESS: If youcouldgive
mea(23) secondhere.
(24) ARBITRATOR WERThlEIM: Qkay.
(as) (Pause.)
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(1) THE WITNESS: Ovevthejthree'earperiod?
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,24) TliRJALiT~ ~a. tbat'3just for hour" (23) column,andI believeit'
cne(25) year. The431 eventswasover "6.7" in the "percentof (24) time"
thethree-yearperiod. column.

Page401 (25) Q Sowhat I'm askinghim now is
(1) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Oh, i

see.
(2) MR. LANE: So thereareroughly-
(3) THE WITNESS: In 1992,there
were156 (4) events. with whathis calculationswould (3) be?
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Where (4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Mr.
areyou (5) gettingthat information? Lane,atthis (5) time,we'egoingto
m THE WITNESS: From documents
that I (5) believearein anotherpartof
thecase.
(9) MR. NEIMAN: Your Honor, these
are(10) documentsthathavebeen
producedin discovery. And (11) as I

offeredbefore,we'ehappyto make
them (12) availableto youatthebreak.
(13) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well, if
you'e(14) going to give usnumbers,
it's helpful to knowwhere(15) the
numberscomefrom. wentoff the(14) recordat 10:31 a.m.
(15) MR. NEIMAN: Well, Your Honor- andresumedat 10:45a.m.)
yes,they (17) cameup in cross (15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We'e
examination. markingthat(15) Exhibit—
(15) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And I (17) (WhereuPon,theabove(15)
don'tthink (19) anyof this hereon the identified documentwasmarked(19) as
PanelyetknowwhatExhibit 8- (2o) X ProgramSuppliersExhibit (20) No. 8-X
purportsto be.
(21) MR. LANE: Why don'tyoushow-
(22) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: We And (22) duringthebreak,I talkedwith
don'thaveacopy (23) so it's hardfor us Dr. Lemieuxand(23) Counsel,and I

(24) MR. LANE: TheChairmanasked
metado it(25) this way. I would have
tried to get it — I would
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(1) ratherdo it theotherway, that whichareflagship(2) stations.
everybodyhavea (2) copy,but- (3) Thereis — all theonesthathave
(3) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I don'
mind doing (4) that if you justhaveyour
witnessidentify what it is (5) sowecan with zerosarenotflagshipstations
follow- because(6) thosearetheonesthat
(5) MR. LANE: It's not my witness,I'm don'tcarrysports.
sorry.p) I am trying to do that. He is P) Therearedifferences- Dr.
not my witness. Lemieux,when(5) hegaveyousome
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well, numbersearlier,theywerethree-year
hemaybeable(9) ta identify it. (9) numbers.He hasnumbersona
(10) MR. LANE: I think he'sindicated
thathe (11) can'. Is thatcorrect?
(12) THE WITNESS: It-
(13) BY MR. LANE:
(14) Q This wasn'tpreparedby you,
waslt?
(15) A No. It purportsto bea list of
stations(16) with thetitle "Major 'portsShareof Tlmo During (17) well, measureviewing in local (16)
SweepWeoks1991 on Indopondont televisionmarkets,theydo it In four
Stations."(15) It hasa columnof call different(17) periodseachyear.
signs,a columnof (19) cities,a (16) Therearefourweeksin essentially
columnmarked'numberof quarter (19) February,May, JulyandNovember
hours,"and(20) a columnmarked whereindividual (20) householdskeep
"percentof time." (21) And thenlt haa diariesof thetelevisionprograms(21)
individual figures; for (22) instanco,
WTBS/Atlantahas602 in tho 'quarter

from his own
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(1) calculationstudythatheearliergave
us, is that (2) percentageconsistent

takea tenminuterecess.
(5) MR. LANE: Okay.
p) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And I

suspectyau're(5) goingto goseeLeah
and—
(9) MR. LANE: All right.
(1o) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: — make
axerox.
(11) MR. LANE: I'l behaPPyto do that.
(12) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
(13) (Whereupon,theproceedings

for identification.)
(21) MR. LANE: I thinkwe'emarking it

think it's fair to saythatExhibit 8-X (24)
is a list thatwaspreparedby us.
(25) It, asthetitle indicates,is basedon
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(1) independentstations,notall of

zeros,(4) althoughwe haveto check
exactly- we'eassuming(5) theones

yearlybasis.
(10) As thetitle of 8-X indicates,it'
only (11) for thesweepweekswhich,as
I'm sureyoudo not(12)know,arothe-
I'l askDr. Lemieux,whatarethe(13)
sweepweeks?
(14) THEWITNESS: WhonthoA.C.
Nielsen(15) Company,anArbitron as

theywatch.
(22) MR. LANE: Okay. Sotherewere
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some(23) differencesin thenumbers
from — Dr. Lemieuxwas (24) trying to
extrapolatesomeof his numbersand
wewere(25) trying to extrapolateour
numbersto try to cometo a
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(1) commonground.
(2) And I think it's fair to saythatwe
were(3) unableto do thatduringthe
break. But I think both (4) sidesfelt if
thiswasinformationthatthePanel(5)
thoughtwasuseful,wewould keepit in
for now.
(5) And Sports,as I understandit, will
p) provideyouwith someadditional
information. And to (5) theextentyau
think it necessaryon Exhibit 8-X, one
(9) of ourwitnesses,whenhecomes
up, will beableto (1O) discussthis
further.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Soyour
proposalis (12) now?
(13) MR. LANE: I thinkwe'ekeepingit
in for (14) whateverweightthePanel
thinksthatit's valuedat (15) this time.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
(17) MR. NEIMAN: Your Honor,we
don't(15) necessarilyagreewith the
numbershere. If theywant (19) to
presentit to you with awitnessto come
later, (20) that'sfine with us.
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
So it (22) will beadmitted.
(23) (WhereuponProgramSupplier
(24) Exhibit No. 8-X wasreceived(25)
into evidence.)
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(1) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Justto
clarify, (2) there'sanumberherethat I

can'tread. Thatmustbe (3) in the
"percentof time" columnfor WTBS. Is
that a (4) "6.7?"
(5) MR. LANE: I believeit is, sir.
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So
doesthatmeanp) thatduringthe
sweepweeks,somethinglessthan
seven(6) percentonTBSwasdevoted
to majorsportsprograms?
(9) MR. LANE: Correct.
(10) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Is that
howyou read(11) it, Dr. Lemieux?
(12) THE WITNESS: That'show I read
it, yes.
(13) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay,
Mr. Lane,(14) proceed.
(15) BY MR. LANE:
(16) Q Now, doyouhavesufficient
information(17) with you, Dr. Lemieux,
to tell usonayearlybasis(18) what
percentageof time— on thestations
thatyou (19) mention,you have
informationdevotedto sports?
(20) A I havesomeof the
Information,butnot- (21) I don'
think sufficient informationto
gonoratoa (22) numberwhich is

NEAL R. GROSStc CO., INC.
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'(2) 'RBITRATOR WERTHFIM: Well,
whatever.
$3) l THEE WITNESS: Well, oyerthe
threeyear(4) period,by my count,
WTBS carried431 iive (5) professional
sportsevents.WGN carried498.
(5) I'm afraid I don'thaveanumberfor
WWOR. p) WSBK carried380,andthat
was;thanextmost(8) substantial
nuiribei»morethanWWOR.
&s) MR. NEIMAN: Your Honor,we'
behappyto (io) provideyouwith the
numbersfor theother(11)
superstationsafterthebreak.
(12) MR. LANE: I havehere-I don'
have(13) sufficientcopies,but if there'
acopyingmachine,(14) I couldmake
qn ej»;hit?it.

(15) We havecalculatedtheamountof
tjme,for,(15)sportsprogramsonall the
superstationsfor which we (i7) had
qlata„ I ifon't know how manythereare
here,but- (ie)-
(1s) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well, I

tIiinli that (28) would behelpful because
you'emakingapresentation,(21) your
sIndyouI otherwitnessesfor theSports
(22) Claimants,avery strongpoint-
()3) MR» LANE: They'renot my
witnesses,just (24) to makeit clear,
qkayi?
(gs) QRI»IITRATOR WERTHEIM: You'e
makinga
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(i) st'rongpointthatthe longestgrowth
qf th»i.'(2), superstationis marginally
aitriputaIileto thesports(3)
programmingbeingcarried. It
substantiatestheclaim (4) of sportsfor
abiggersharein this proceeding.
(p) I~f, in, fact, theothersuperstations
carry (e) very closeto thesameamount
of sports,andtheir (7) grouphas
declined,that'san important
qualification (8) whenyou'emadeyour
point,you'etrying to make.
(sI Itch»I maybetheyhaven'tdeclined.
I donIt (io) know. But I think those
thingswould behelpful.
(1,1) QHQIRPERSONJIGANTI: Mr.
Qne„ if you'e(12) goingto usethatin
crossexymination,I suggestyou (13)
mark it asanexhibit, useit, enterit, and
wp cqn (1,,4) haveit reproduced
siibsqqu»,ntly.
(ip) MR. +NE: Okay. At this time, I

wpul4 (iel) like to haveonethat I do
havepreparedasExhibit 7- (17) X, and
this is a list which I believewegotfrom
(1II) Sports,althoughwe mayhave
retypedit.
(is) And arethese,Dr. Lemieux,the59

i toi(20) wflich you earlierreferredas
,

"flOgsliipS?" Seven- (21) 7-X.
, (22) THE,WITNESS: Well, I count56
~ signals(23) here. So I'm assumingthat

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91, 8c 92 CAB
XMAXm

signals.
(25) (Whereupon,theabove
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(1) identified documentwasmarked
(2) asProgramSuppliersExhibit (3) No.
7-X for identification.)
(4) BY MR. LANE:
(s) Q Right. And therearethreemore

(1) can.
(2) MR LANE It appears doesit
appearto (3) beapproximately43
stationsof theonesthatwere(4) listed
on Exhibit 7-X?
(s) THE WITNESS: Forty-something,
yes.
(e) BY MR. LANE:
(7) Q Would you lustcomparethose
to theones(e) on 7-X andarethoseall
stationson there?
(s) MR. NEIMAN: You wanthim to
compare(1o) whethereverysingleone
of thoseis on this other(11) list?
(12) MR. LANE: Yes.
(13) THE WITNESS: Well, I don'tsee
KBHK. (14) Well, thefirst oneis not.
This oneis.
(15) (Pause.)
(ie) THE WITNESS: I don'tseeKHTV
either.
(17) (Pause.)
(18) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Mr.
Lane,do you (is) wantthewitnessto-
(2o) THE WITNESS: Someof those
stationsare(21) andsomeof these
stationsarenoton the list.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay,
that'syour— (23) Dr. Lemleux'sanswer.
Your nextquestion?
(24) BY MR. LANE:
.(25) Q Okay,doyou knowwhether-do
you know

that(e) weren'tcarriedasdistant
signals?
(7) A That'scorrect.
(8) Q Oo you knowwhatthosewere?
(s) A Not off thetopof my head.
(10) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Would
somebodytell (1 1) mewhy half the
stationshavecall signsthatbegin(12)
with "K" andtheotherswith "W?" What'
the (13) difference?
(14) MR. LANE: Eastor westof the (15)
Mississippi. Is thatcorrect?
(ie) MR. NEIMAN: That'smy
understanding.And (17) the"C's" are
obviouslyCanadian.
(ie) MR. LANE: Right, exceptfor
Pittsburgh(1S) with KDKA is theonly—
(20) MR. NEIMAN: Right.
(21) BY MR. LANE:
(22) Q Now thesearethestationsthat
are(23) somehow- arethesein other
independentsexceptfor (24) theseven
that-
(25) A And someof the- numbered
affiliate as
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(1) well.
(2) Q At this time, Mr. Chairman,
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(1) whatthedefinition of "sports
programming"for the (2) Nielsendata
is?
(3) A Not precisely. I presumeit
includes(4) professionalovonta. I

/on'tknowwhat it doeswith (5) other
ones.
(8) Q And arethenumbersthatyou
seefor WTBS P) — you hadaWTBS
renumberof thenumberof events,did (8)
you not, thatyou earliertestifiedto?
(s) A Yoa.
(10) Q And howmanyhoursdoesthe
representfor (11) theentirebroadcast
yearof WTBS?
(12) A Thenumbertho'aon heroor
thenumber(13) that I reported?
(14) Q Thenumberthatyou reported.
(15) A Well, wedon'tknow. I'm
countingevents,(is) butjustasa
guoaa,probablysomewherein the
i(17) neighborhoodof 300,maybe400
hours.
,(18) Q And whatwould thattranslateto
for the(19) entireyear?
(20) A Well, I'd haveto havea
calculatorfor (2i) that.
(22) AABITRATOA WERTHEIM:
Excuseme,you said (23) maybe400
hoursfor431events?

althoughI (3) only haveonecopyatthe
moment,I'd like to markas(4) Program
SupplierExhibit 8-X aone-page
document,I'l (s) showthewitness-
(e) MA. NEIMAN: canI seoaqopyof

~

that,p) please?
(8) MR. LANE: I only haveonecopy
(9) MR. NEIMAN: Well, can I seeit
juston (10) thy w@y oyer?
(11) BY MR. LANE:
(12) Q And you'efamiliar with theway
thatthe(13) time is calculatedfrom
Nielsendatafor sports(14)
programmingcomparedto all
programmingonstations,(15) areyou
not,Or. Lemieux?
(ie) A I'm notaurawhattho
methodologyla in (17) thia caao. Is
thismotorsordivora?
(18) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well,
beforeyou (19) startanswering i

questions,wouldyou identify whatthe
(20) docuiiientis for us?,
(21) THE WITNESS: I think thatwould
be-
(22) MA. LANE: Okay, I'm sorry. I

thoughtI (23) had. This is a list of-
(24) ARBITRATOR WEATHEIM: Maybe
weshouldhave(2S) thewitnessidentify

LE ROYALTY FUNDS
thesearetheonesthat (24) aredistant it ratherthanCounsel,lf he
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comparableto thenumbershere.
{23) BecauseI havenumbersabout
events,but (24) I don'thaveall the
eventsfor which we'eseeking(25)
compensation.Nor do I havegood
estimatesfor the
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(1) averageamountof time perevent
to beableto (2) generatea
time-basednumber.
(3) Q And thenumbersthatyou earlier
read into (4) the recordwere,just to be
clear,three-yearnumbers,(5) werethey
not'?
(6) A Theywere—
(7) Q Theyweresummingthreeyears.
They (6) weren'tjustasingleyear,
(9) A Right, the total numberof
eventsoverthe (1o) three-year
period.
(11) Q So that in anyoneyear, roughly
a third (12) of thoseeventsoccurred?
(13) A Right.
(14) Q Any oneof thethreeyearsat
issuehere?
(15) A Yes.
(16) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Dr.
Lemieux, I'm (17) havinga little trouble
reconcilingthe percentageof (16) the
time for — sportson this exhibitwith
other(19) testimonywe received
concerningthedominanceof (20)
sportingeventson thesesuperstations,
(21) Six or sevenpercent,asthe largest
share(22) of time underWTBS, doesn'
seemvery largeto me.
(23) But do thesefiguresseemin the
ballpark (24) from youranalysis?
(25) THE WITNESS: I'd bewilling say
that
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(1) they'ein theballpark.
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So in a
typical, (3) say,12-hourday,seven
percentof thetimewould (4) amountto
— how manyhours?
(s) THE WITNESS: Aboutone.
(6) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Was
thatpun (7) intended,"in theballpark?'6)

ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay,
thankyou.
(9) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Can
I clarify (10) somethingthatjustcame
up'? What is theaverage(11) numberof
daysthatasuperstation- average
number(12) of hoursthatasuperstation
is on theair?
(13) THE WITNESS: They'reon24
hoursaday.
(14) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: So
they'eon 24 (1S) hoursaday.
(16) THE WITNESS: Right.
(17) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES; So
whenwe talk (16) abouttheseratios,
we'etalking aboutascomparedto (19)
24 hoursin a day.

(20) THE WITNESS: For those
stations,yes,
(21) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Now
theseare (22) percentagesof a24-hour
day?
(23) THE WITNESS: I would presumeit
mayvary (24) from stationto station,
Well actually, I don'tknow (25) because
Nielsen, I don'tbelieve— at least
Nielsen
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(1) usedto not measurebetween2:00
a.m.and6:00a.m.
(2) I don'tknowwhetherthat'sthe
casein (3) thesedataor not. So it
could bethatthereis a (4) four hour
block lateat night that'snot included
here(5) thathasto do with theway
Nielsencollectsdata.
(6) But I haveno ideawhetherthat'
true (7) abouttheseparticularnumbers.
I know that'sbeen(6) true in other
periods.
(9) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well,
2:00a.m.on (1O) theeastcoastis only
11:00p.m. on thewestcoast.(11) And
theremight bea lot of sportingevents
still (12) going on at 11:00p,m.
{13) THE WITNESS: Well, the
householdsin (14) Californiakeeping
diariesarekeepingtheirdiaries(1S) at
11:00p.m..So from their point of view,
it's still (16) 11:00p.m.
(17) Theydidn't useto collectdata
between(16) 2:00a.m.and6:00a.m. in
the local time zone,(19) whateverthat
turnedoutto be.
(20) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So if

someonein (21) Washingtonwas
watchinga fight in LasVegasor aSan
{22) Franciscoballgameor something
thattheypickedup on (23) cable,and
they'ewatchingit at2:00 in the
morning, {24) thatwouldn'tbecounted
here?
(25) THE WITNESS: Underwhatwas—
I don'
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(1) whattheNielsenpracticeis that
underliesthese(2) data,Your Honor,
okay'? So I — butyes, in earlier(3)
periodsthat I am moreawareof what
Nielsen's(4) policieswere,that'
correct.
{s) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
(6) BY MR. LANE:
{7) Q I'd like you to turn to page17of
your (a) testimony,footnote8. And this
did - this explains,(9) doesit not, how
you calculatethe3.75 royaltiesthat(10)
you'eassignedto differentstations?
(11) A Yes, it describeshow I

allocatethe (12) royalty fund, the3.75
royaltiescollectedto the (13)
individual signals.
(14) Q And let meseeif I understand

this (15) correctly If a systemcarries
WTBS, WWOR andWGN, (16) and it
hastwo permittedsignals,andso it'
carrying (17) onesignalthat'sa3.75
signal.That'smy hypothesis.
(16) And let'ssay,eventhoughthis is
not (19) real-world,thatthe3.75
royalties in total re $150.
(2o) A Okay.
(21) Q Okay. How did you assignthat
$150a (22) monthto thosestationsfor
3.75purposes?
(23) A I would havegivenanequal
shaFeof $50 (24) eachto eachof the
threesignals.
(25) Q And let'sassumethatthebasic
royalties
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(1) in thatsituationwere$300. How
would you have(2) assignedthat$300?
(3) A By thesameprocess.I would
have(4) assigned$100 to eachof the
threesignals.
(s) Q So in effect,eachsignal is
counted,or (6) the royaltiesrelatedto
eachsignalarecounted,for (7) basic
purposesand3,75purposes?
(6) A For systemsthatcarrya 3.75
signal,yes.
(9) Q Now in the instancesof carriage,
whatdo (1O) you do in thatsituation?
Do you countall threefor (11) basicand
all threefor 3.75?
(12) A You'l noticewe don'treporta
figure for (13) instancesof carriage
for 3.75signalsbecauseit's (14)
difficult to know what— eitherwe
could have(15) assigneda fractional
instanceandsaideachof these(16)
stationsconstituteda third of an
instanceof 3.75 (17) carriage.
(16) I chosesimply not to — I chose
that (19) ratherthangetting into
doing it thatway to simply (2O) not
discussinstancesat all in thecaseof
3.75 (21) signals.
(22) Q But in effect,theway that;you've
(23) assignedthe royaltiesis giving
eachstationthat's(24) carriedthesame
value if there'sa3.75 royalty pay'?
(25) A Unlessthere'sa mixtureof
networksand
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(1) Independents.But if we'Fetalking
only about(2) independentshere,
then- andonly thosesignalsthat (3)
couldhavebeen- that'smore
complicatedthanthat.
(4) I mean,I"m only attributing
royaltiesto (s) signalswhich could
havebeendroppedunderthe former
(6) rules in orderto allow themto
substitutea new {7) signal.
(a) So for example,if I wasa cable
operator(9) carryinga signalunder
the formerrules,undersaya {10)
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waiveroreArena/etherclause,oi
oneof thoseother(ii) categoriesof
itemsthatwe sawyesterdayin the
list (ia) on placeswheretheFCC
rulesdid not applyfor some(is)
uniquereasonon this particular
system.
(i4) Let'ssay I havepetitionedthe
FCC for a (is) waiverto carryasignal
aboveandbeyondmy legal (is)
quote,andtheFCCgrantedthat.
Thatsignal is not (17) a signalto
which we thenreallocatedroyalties
(is) becauseit couldnothavebeen
droppedandreplaceby (19) another
signal~
(20) Becauseonly thatsignalhas
beenwaived,(21) andthewaiver
wasn'tjustgenerallysaid,aoh,you
(22) canjust takeanythingelseand
stick it in there."(22) Thatsignalwas
waivedspecificallyfor (24) that
signal. And sotheexchangethat I'm
talking (2S) aboutherecouldn'thave
takenplace.

Page413
(1) So therearecategoriesof signals
in (2) which thereis no reallocation
donebecausethey'e(2) being
carriedfor reasonsthatareoutside
of the (4) marketquotarules;that is,
howmanysignalsyou can(5) have
by whatsizemarketyou'ein.
(6) ls thatreasonablyclear?
m Q Soyou allocatedthe3.75
royaltiesamong(6) themarketquota
signalsplus thesignals— some(9)
othersignalthatwould havebeen
outsidethemarket(io) quota,butnow
subjectto anyof theotherexemptions?
(ii) A Essentially,theonly signals
thatwere(12) subjectto themarket
quotarulesareonesthatare(is)
eligible for reallocationin this
model.
(14) Q And did you takethetable
system's(15) designationof these
systemsbeingmarketquota?
(is) A Yes, I did.
(1 7) Q Now in this case,I'm lookingat
Page18, (16) Table7-1, I'm a little
unclear.Why did you only (ie) give us
1983and19992andnotgive us
anythingin (20) between?
(21) A Becausein my 1980testimony
beforethe(22) tribunal,this
allocationdidn'ttakeplace.
(23) Sowedon'thaveIn therecord
comparable(24) figuresfrom a prior
year. Theonly datain the(25) record
for which therearecomparable
figuresis the
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(1) 1983figures from my reportfor
thatyear.
(2) Q But you could havecreated

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91, 81 92 CABL
somethingto go (3) ir1to this reC6rd,'ight,Justiike you createCI92-2to(4)'et—

(5) A Right. Substantively,theother- (6) anotherpointof view is that
1983wasthefirst year(7) thatthe'.75onewascreated.And sothis
givesus (6) somesenalabbut 'whit's'appenedto thefuridedself (9) ovtsr'tsentirelifetime.
(io) QAnd-
(11) A It's anarduouspj oclssto do
this (ia) allocationbaca'useI have'to'ookateach,individual) (ial) calble'ystem, look at its comglinienfof 'ignalsand(14) seewhich oneswere
permittedorexcludedUnderthe(fs) 'ormerrules,andthenrhaklsa 'esignationasto which (16) ones
haveto royaltiesallocatedto them.
(17) Sowechosenot to~goChrbugh
thatprocess(is) for ethery'ears.
(19) Q And in your 1990testimony,the
terminated(2O) 1990proceeding,'ou
did presentsuchinformation,did (2i)
you not?
(22) A Thatmaybe,yesi
(23) Q I'd like to showyouacopyof i

Board's(24) Exhibit 2 from the1990
CableRoyaltyFundsreport(05) iirhidh
you indicatedyouarethelauthori In I

fact,were
Page415

(1) youauthorof that?
(2) A Yes, I was.
(2) Q And doesthat, in fact, do the
3.75 (4) allocation?
(s) A I believeit does,yes.
(6) Q Soyou hadalreadyddnethat~
previouslyp) and introduoed~it irito ~

proceedingsthatinvolvedcable(6) ~

royaltydistribution?
(9) A I guessso.
(io) Q And wasthereanyreasonwhy
you didn't (11) justtakethatandplug it
Into this testimonyhere?(12) I mean,
you haddoneall thework, right?~

(13) A I guess- I mean,primarily, we
werejut (14) trying to reducethe
numberof numbersin tlhis Nepert,~

(1S)whichalreadyhastoomany,'umbersin it.
(18) MR. NEIMAN: Your Honor, if I can
just (17) clarify, it's the1990numbers
thatareIn thereport(16) thatMr. Lane
showedthewitness.
(i9) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Mr.
Lane,doyou (20) acceptthat?
(21) MR. LANE: Yes,absblufely.'hlc
1990ls (22) partof thiscase,isn't it? I

(23) THE WITNESS: I believeso,yes.
(24) BY MR. LANE:
(2S) Q Sothosenumberswould have
beenclearly
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(1) relevantto the issueshere,right? '

ROYALTY FUNDS... xMAx(10)

(2) A I'l let you c'har&cthrlzk it that
way.
(3),Q Now,whenyou look atsomeof
these(4) numbers,like let'6 lobk at
KTLA-
(5) 'ARBITRATORiWEATHEIM: Are
you referring(6) againto—
7) 'MR. LA'NE', Nb, TiblsJ7-1'ongage
8 of (6) this testimony,'ir. KlLA,'do

youseethat?
s9) THE WITNESS: Yes.

10) 'BY MR. LANE:
i 1) 'Q Okay. Now you showa 139
ercent(12) increase.'13)A That'scorrect.'14)Q Right? Nowwhatarewe

supposedto take(is) flora that
hu1iiber?
(16) A From the139percent
increase?
(i7) 'Q Yes.'sthat'animportant
numberon this (16) tableto your
testimony?
(19) 'A No, I don'tthink it'is ak
importantasthe (2O) 81 percent
sharethatgoesto theoriginal three
(21) isuperstatiensor the84 percent
shareteall (22) superstat'loneoverall.
(as) QSo-
(24) A They'enotunimportant
figures,'utnd, (25) I would saythat,
youknow,we'etalking - that1398,
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(i) percentis - we'etalking about
$50,000or 880,000(2) hereor even
lese.
(2) Q Bo is thattruethatthegrowth
column(4) really doesn'ttell usawhole
Ibt i'hyrsetables?'s)A Well, I think it tellsusaout
itiortc about(6)'thelskjnalisfoir which
t'herewasa largerbasein 1983-p) 2.
That is, clearlythefact thatKTBT
wentfrom (6) 811,000'to8178,000,
onecouldarguethatthat1,400(9)
percentincreaseis somewhatless
sigriificantbecause(io) it started
from suchasmallbaae.~

(11) On theotherhand,thefleetChat
WTBS went(12) from $2 rhillion to
80.8million, that'sa more(18)
Oompellingrateof growthbecause
theunderlyingbase(i 4) in whichwe
arecalculatingthepercentage
changels (15) largertb blsgihwith. l

(16) Q Now, butthefactof thematteris
thata(17) percentageof thefund,
exceptfor WTBSandWGN, all (itl) the
Othersuperatatlonswentdown,did
theynot?
(19) A WWOR did'no@.
(2O) Q It wentfrom 14.4 in 1983-
(21) A I'in sorry,areyoutalking
aboutshares'0
(22) Q Yes.
(23) A Yea.
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(24) Q Percentageof the fund.
(25) A Yes, in termsof shares,that'
true.
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(1) Q So eventhoughthey hadsome
sortof a (2) growth raterhere,like
WWOR had 197 percentgrowth (3) rate,
it still wasasmallerportionof theentire
(4) 3.75finding, correct?
(5) A Right, WTBS andWGN grew
so fastandso (6) substantiallythat
otherstations,evenif they (7)
showed,like is WWOR'scaseis
essentiallynearlya (8) tripling of its
royalties,didn't keeppace.
(9) And so its share,its relative
share,(10) falls.
(i 1) Q So oneof thethingsthatwe
haveto (12) determineis whetherthe
growth ratekeptpacewith (13) the
growth in theoverall fund?
(14) A Right, which is largelybeing
drivenby (15) thegrowth in WTB and
WGN.
(16) Q And theotherindependent,how
many— do (1 7) you know how many
independentstationstherearethat (18)
haddistantsignalsfor which you
counted3.75 (19) royalties?
(20) A No. I'd haveto go back
throughthedata(21) and look for the
answerto that.
(22) Q And you don'tknow how many
of thosewere (23) flagships?
(24) A No.
(25) Q Weretheyall flagships'?
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(1) A Theotherindependent
stations?
(2) Q Yes.
(3) A No, I'm surethat'snot the
case.
(4) Q But someportionof themwere
flagship (5) stations?
(6) A Theotherindependents?
(7) Q Yes.
(s) A Yes.
(9) Q I'd like you to turn to page20of
your (1 o) testimony.And this is where
you talk aboutthe (11) effectsof
reinstitutionof thesyndicated(12)
exclusivity, right?
(i3) A Yes.
(t4) Q And whatarethoseeffects,just
that(15) programsor blackedoutor-
(is) A And thesyndicatedexclusivity
fund has(t 7) beenmovedfrom the
royalty pool essentially.
(18) Q And whatdo thechargesthat
showup on (19) page22andfollowing,
whatdo theyhaveto do with (2O) this
case?
(21) A Whatdo theyhaveto do with
thecase?
(22) Q Yes,
(23) A My understandingis thatthe
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substitute(24) programmingin not
compensable.So asa result,this
(25) is an indicationof the fractionof
theprogram
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(1) scheduleson thesetwo
representativedaysherefor (2)
which programmingwasdeleted
from thedistant(3) signals'ersion
of WGN andWWOR.
(4) And in its placewassubstitute
(5) programmingthat'snot
compensableunderthecurrent(6)
proceedings.
(7) Q Now thechartthatyou showed
on page21 - (8)-
(9) A Yes.
(1o) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Excuse
me. Could (11) you go backto that?
Thepurposewasto showthat (12)
theseprogramswerenot
compensable?
(13) THE WITNESS: That
programmingwasdeleted(14) from
thesesignalsasa resultof the
syndicated(1 5) exclusivity ruleand
replacedwith programmingwhich, (16)
to my knowledge,is notcompensable
underthe rules.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And the
significance(18) of that is?
(19) THE WITNESS: It removesastep
— a (20) reasonableportionof the
broadcastdayof these(21) stations
from thebodyof programmingfor
which (22) syndicatorscanreceive
compensation.
(23) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay,
thankyou.
(24) BY MR. LANE:
(25) Q And if you would turn to page21,
please,
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(1) andthechargeon thatpage.Where
did you getthis (2) from?
(3) A Thiscamefrom the1990
MPAA Nielsen(4) Reportthat listed
which quarterhoursweresubjectto
(5) syndicateddeletions.
(6) Q Now from theNielsenstudyin
thatcase,(7) theyhadalreadybeen
deleted,correct,from any (8)
consideration'?
(s) A In thenumbersthatare
reportedin your (10) Nielsenstudy?
(11) Q Yes.
(i2) A That'smy understanding,yes.
(13) Q SowhateverNielsenstudieswe
have(14) reportedhavealreadydeleted
theseprogramsthat (15) you'e
identified on page21 in the"deleted"
column,(16) correct?
(i7) A I believeso.
(i8) Q And that'swhy you listed them
hereas(is) beingtheamountof
deletions,right?
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(2O) A Becausetheywere in the
Nielsenreport,(2i) yes.
(22) Q Right. And I take it you accepted
these(23)'umbersasthepercentages
thatshouldbe presented(24) hereas
theamountof deletionson these
stations?
(25) A As I say in thereport, I

couldn*t
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(1) independentlyverify these,this
information. I'm (2) simply reporting
thesummaryresultsfrom the (3)
materialsthatthe MPAA provided.
(4) Q Now I'd like to turn backto page
20 at (5) thebottomof thepage. Do
you seethatyou indicated(6) thatthe
chargethatyou provided— it's a
negative.(7) "ln noneof thesefour
instancesarethe levelsof (8) deletions
unrepresentativeof otherSundaysand
(9) Wednesdaysin Novemberof 1990."
Do you seethat'?
(io) A Yes.
(11) Q And whatcheckdid you do for
that?
(12) A I examinedthesimilardata
herefrom both (13) the MPAA study
andtheBostonGlobeTV Weekfor
those(14) otherweeks.
(15) Q Now I'd like to showyouacopy
of an (ts) exhibitthatwas introduced
into evidenceyesterday.(17) it's Exhibit
6-X. It's theNBA BroadcastManual.
(18) And I'd like you turn, if you will, to
the (19) pagefor WednesdayWGN in
Novemberthatyou — the (2o)
Wednesday.And that'spage23, is it
not?
(21) A Yes.
(22) Q And you selectedWednesday,
November14th, (23) did you not?
(24) A Yes, I did.
(25) Q Now this list- youwerehere
yesterday
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(1) whenMr. Sterntestified—
(2) A I was.
(3) Q — andhe indicatedthis wasthe
complete(4) scheduleof theNBA
gamesfor the1990/91season.Do (5)
you recallthat?
(6) A He indicatedthat it was— what
it wasas(7) of July, but it was
subjectto laterrevision.
(8) Q For theNBC gamesof theweek
thatwere(9) changed,correct?
(io) A I believe. Well, I think there
werealso(i 1) questionsaboutTNT
or otheroutlets.
(12) Q Well, this—
(13) A Okay,whatever.
(14) Q — exhibit is datedin September
of 1990, (15) is it not?
(16) A Yes.
(17) Q Yes.
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(18) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And
this is 6-X?
(18) MR. LANE: 6-X, sir. And I'm

turningto (2c) thefirst pagethatwe
discussedyesterdaywhich, as(21) you
recall,hasthedate9/17/90 in thetop,
right- (22) handcorner. And I would
just like you to look at (23) Wednesday,
November7, 1990,andtell me if there
was (24) agameon WGN on thatnight
of theBulls.
(25) THE WITNESS: Wednesday,
Novemberseventh?
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(1) BY MR. LANE:
(2) Q Yes.
(3) A Yes,therewas.
(4) Q Okay. And if we turn thepageto
thenext(s)page,andthenwesee
Wednesday,November14th,which (8)
is thesamedateyou pickedon-
p) A Right.
(8) Q — page23 of yourtestimony,is it
not? (8) Wastherea Bulls gameon that
day?
(to) A No.
(11) QAndthenweturntothenext
Wednesdayin (12) November,the21st.
Wastherea Bulls gamethatwas(13)
broadcastby WGN on that
Wednesday?
(14) A Thereappearsto beso,yea.
(1S) Q And then if we turn to thefinal
Wednesday(18) in Novemberof 1990,
wasthereaBulls gamebroadcast(17)
onWGN on thatWednesday?
(18) A Thereappearsto beso,yes.
(1 9) Q So threeoutof thefour
Wednesdaysin (20) Novemberof 1990,
therewasaBulls gaveduringthe(21)
periodthatyou'eidentifiedasbeinga
lot of black- (22) outson November
14th, right?
(23) A It would beabouta two hour
blockof (24) these,yea.
(25) Q Right. And thatwouldoccur
roughlyat
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(1) thesametimeasourfavoritemovie
for this year, (2) Biloxi Blues,right?
(3) A Yes.
(4) Q ~c if you hadpickedanother
Wednesdayin (s) Novemberof 1990,
thattime periodwould havebeennot
(6) blackedoutbecauseaBulls game
would beon, correct?
m A ForaWednesday,yes.
(8) Q Right. And yousaidthis was (9)
representativeof all Wednesdays,did
you not, on page(to) one?
(1 1) A I believeso,yoa.
(12) 0 Yes, right thereatthebottomof
the (13) page.
(14) A Well, what I sayhereia thattho
levels(ts) of deletionsarenot
under-representative.
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(te) Q And if you took thoseout, that
would (17) certainlyreducethe levelsof
deletion,would it not?
(18) A Perhaps,but therebeanother
programthat (to) wasdeletedsome-
what I meantby thatwas irt terms(20)
of thenumberof hours'of deletions-
thepercentage(21) of thedaythat
wasdeleted.
(22) This particularday'wakn't'(23)
unrepresentative,but the-
(24) Q Of theotherWedttesdays'n
Novemberof (25) 1990. Isn'tthatwhat
you saidin-

Page426
(1) A Yes.
(2) Q — blackonwhite on page20of
your (3) testimony.
(4) A Yea. I saidthe levelsof 'eletion.I (5) didn'tsayspbcific
programs.
(8) Q But the levelschangeby the
numberof p) hoursthataredeletedin
anyoneday,don'tthey?'8)A Yea.
(9) Q Now-
(to) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: 'I'm'not'00

percent(11) sureI'm following this.
Dr. Lemieux, looking at (12) Table8-23
in yourexhibit-
(13) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(14) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: - we
havebeginning(1 S) at8:00tHe ntovie
Biloxi Bluesshowinglocally in (1 6)
Chicago. But elsewhere,'WGNI3
showingamovie. Is (17) thatright?
(18) THE WITNESS: Yes'. Thesatellite'eed(19) carriedamoviecalledThe
Bachelor'sDaughter.
(2o) ARBITRATOR WER7HEI~M: ~And

whatwe'e(21) showingIS - and%hit
we'ejust learnedfrom the(22) recent
responseis thaton mostWednesdays
in the(23) monthof Noveinber,ittstehd'f

gettingasubstituted(24) movie,what
is listedasgettingthedistantslghala,
(25) whatweregettingwastheChicago
Bulls game.

Page427'1)THE WITNESS: That'sdorr4ct.l

(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
(3) BY MR. LANE:
(4) Q Now evenwith thelevelof
deletionthat(6) you'eshownhere,it's ~

alsotrue, is it not, that(6) WGN's
carriageroyaltieseverywayyou'e
measuredit p) in thisstudy,increased
overthis porlod?

. (8) A Yos, it did.
(s) Q And it's alsotruefor WWOR that
in many(to) cases,therewasadecline
in theamountof royalties'(t1)by'tho,'ay

you measured,wastherenot, at
leastIn (12) theshare'of thercyaltles'omparedto earliershares?
(13) A Yos, it showsa smalldecline.
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(14) Q And sotheavailability of sports
on WWOR (1S) didn'tmake— somehow
increasetheamountof (18) royaltiesor
theamountof carriage'ofthatstationin
(17) theseyears,did it?
(18) ' I'm notsureI clan fttakoa'inkagebetween(1s) iIhotIe. '2O)Q You can'tmakea linkage
betweenthe (21) availability of sportsof
whetherthe royaltiesg'o up (22)or'own

from yearto year?
(23) A I'd h'ave'tosee. I mean,I don'
know (24) whethersportswentupor
downon WWOR over,thethree(25)
yearseither. I'd haveto go and look.
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(1) Q Butyouindicatedinyour 'estimonythat(2) oneof the
char'acteristlcs:ofthesbveh
5uperstations(3) wastheCvaihbillty of
live sportsevents.'4)A Yes, right.
(5) Q Butyou'enot lihking thatto the
change(8) in theamountof royalties
thatyou showin thesep) tables?
(s) A I thoughtyouwereaskingmo
aquestion'(9)thattalkedaboutthe
relationshipbetween'changesin (1C)
theamountof sportscarriedand
changesin royalties.(11) Are you
askingme justabout-
(t2) Q I'm askingyou aboutyour
testimony. I (13) thaughtif wababout
theavaliability of sports(14)
programmihgon thesesevenlstations
thatmadethemso (ts) heavilycarried.
(te)'I th'oug'htthatwas'the'poihtybu'ere(17) trying to make.
(18) 'A I'believethat,yes,thecarriage
Of (18) sportson theseprograms- on
thesestationsis one'(2o)'ofthe'actorsthatmakestom 'heavily
carried,yes.
(21) Q Okay. Whatarssolneof tite
otherfactors?
(22) A Fortheoriginal superatationa
or
(23) Q Forall sevenof them.
(24)

' Well, certainlythefactthat
they'ro'on'(2S)'satellitemakesthem
moveconvenientto carry.
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(t) Q And that'sit, thesetwothings?
(2) 'A Thoseareat least'twothings.
(3) Q I'm justbasingitori your i

testimonyand(4) notanybodyelse'.
Whatdoyou think? That'sall (s) I'm
asking.
(6) A I believethatbothof those
factorsarep) «t leastttiso thingsthat
contributeto theircarriage.'8)

Q Okay. And We'es',certthator)
variousof (9) thesechartersthat a i

numberof thesuperstationshave(to) a
decline,notagrowth, in theperiod
studied,right?
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(11) For example,I'm looking atpage
13, Table(12) 6-1.
(13) A Yes. All but—
(14) Q All butWTBS andWGN, correct?
(15) AAnd WWOR show- i mean,ag
threeof them (18) showan increase
in theactualamountof royalties(17)
paid.
(18) Q Butadeclinein theshare.
(19) A In theshare.
(2o) Q We justtalkedaboutthegrowth
rate,and (21) you'eindicatedthat
that'snot really — we'enot - (22) - that
maynot beagoodnumberbecauseif
we look at (23) thebottomof Table6-1,
weseethetotal 6.6growth (24) rate,
right?
(25) A I believeit's 16.6.
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(1) Q I'm sorry, 16. You'eexactly
right. And (2) that'skind of a
benchmark.We'd haveto say if (3)
somethinghadgrown morethan16.6
beforewe couldsay(4) it really-
(5) A Beforeyouwould seean
increasein its (8) sharein the
revenuepool.
(7) Q Right, right. SoWWOR only
grew7.4 (8) percent,right? Sothat'
lessthan16.6atthe (9) funds. So it
wasn'tgrowingasfastasthefund (10)
overall, right?
(ii) A That'scorrect.
(i 2) Q And theothersuperstatlonsall
have(i 3) negativegrowth rates,
correct?
(14) A Yes.
(is) Q And theyhavenegative
numbers,andWWOR (is) hasnegative
numbersfor thedifferencein the(17)
percentageof theshare,right?
(18) A Yee.
(i 9) Q And sowhenwe look atthis,we
seeonly (20) two stationsthathave
growth ratesfrom either(21)
perspective.andthatalsohavesports
programsand (22) thatarealsocarried
on satellite,andweseefive (23) that
wentdown.
(24) And theyall havethesame(25)
characteristics,collect?
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(1) A Yes. Well, tftoy havethesame
(2) characteristicsthattheycarry
professionalsports(3) programs.I

can'tcharacterizetheirother
features.
(4) Q Okay. And they'ecarriedona
satellite?
(s) A Yes.
(6) Q And thosearethetwo features
thatyou (7) havehighlightedasthe
reasonyou haveseparately(8)
identified thesesevenstations,correct?
(9) A That'scorrect.
(io) Q You didn't look atanyother
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carriageof flagship (9) stations,other
than I guessWTBS is pretty localized
(1 o) or regionaiiszed.Is thatfair to say?
(11) A Yes, I'd saythat'sfair to say.
WTBS is (12) certainlytheonethat'
mostlikely to becarried(i3) great
distancesawayfrom Atlanta.
(i4) Q Justonefinal setof questions
here. How (1s) manyinstancesof
carriagewerewe talkingaboutwith (is)
theotherflagshipstations?
(17) I mean,how do we knowwhatthat
average(18) means,96 percent?It's-
thereare7,877instances(1 9) of
carriageI think you saidsomeplace.
It's like 100 (2o) instancesof carriageor
howmany— how manyarethe (21)
otherflagshipsrepresenting?
(22) A How manyinstancesof
carriage?
(23) Q Yes. How big - how big — we
know how (24) big WTBS or GN and
othersuperstationsarecomparedto
(25) theuniverse.But thenwhenyou
look atother

Page484
(1) flagships,weseethis afterof 96
percentin thesame(2) region.
(3) Are we talkingabouttwo instances
of (4) carriage,50, 100?
(5) A We'egot-
(8) Q Do you haveany idea?
p) A I'm trying to - we'egot40-
in 1992,(8) wehave52 stations,
accordingto page27. Sothere(9)
areessentially45 otherflagships
here.
(io) You know, someof themcould
have30or 40 (11) instancesand
someof themcould havetenor 20.
(12)Thereareprobablyhundredsof
instancesof carriage(13) there.
(14) Q Butyoudon'thavean ideaof the
(15) magnitude?
(16) A I don'tknow theexactnumber,
no.
(17) Q Now, I'm a little bit confusedjust
on (18) something. I thoughtI hadthis
correct. I hadgiven (19) youanexhibit
earlier,7X, which I thoughtlisted56 (20)
flagshipstationsandnowyouare
telling methereare(21) only 52'?

(22) At onepointyousaidtherewere59
(23) flagshipstationsin yourtestimony,
did you not?
(24) A Yes, I believe,nowthatyou
havepointed(25) It outagain,whenI

rereadthereport, I believethe
Page435

(1) number52onpage27 ls In error
and it shouldbe50.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That
would be52 (3) plusthesuperstations.
(4) THE WITNESS: Yeah,thatmaybe
how I got (5) to thatnumber,yes,thatI

left thoseoutby (8) accident.

featuresof (11) them,did you, these
stations?
(12) A Not too close,no. Well,
exceptfor the(13) syndicated
deletions.
(14) Q Now l justwanttoturn to page
28 of your (1S) testimony.What is the
purposeof Table9.2andthe (18)
testimonyrelatedto it? And I guess
Table9.11'd(17) havethesame
question.
(18) Whatareyou trying to showuson
these(19) two pages?
(20) A Thatwith theexception,
especiallyof the (21) original
superstations,mostflagshipstations
arenot (22) carriedgreatdistances
awayfrom wherethey'ebeing(23)-
wherethe local broadcaststake
place.
(24) Q Okay. Now in this case,you
didn't look (25) atall independents.
You just lookedatflagship
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(1) stations,right? Soyou hadto break
thatout, (2) correct?
(3) A That'scorrect.
(4) Q And you hadto somehowdivide
thecarriage(s) by all thesestatesthat
you'elisted on page27and(8) divide
it up into differentregionsandthen
figureP) out if it wasnextto theregion
or notnextto the (8) region?
(9) A Yes.
(1 0) Q Why did you do thatfor the
flagships(11) here,butyou didn'tdivide
theotherflagshipswhen (1 2) youwere
countingroyalties?
(13) A Becausewewereconcerned
aboutcarriage(14) patternsof
flagshipsin thisparticularcase.
(15) Q Butyouweren'tconcerned
aboutthe(is) royaltiesof flagshipsin
theothercase?Are you (17) willing to
lump togetherthe52 otherflagships
that(18) you didn'tcountin theseven—
withouttheseven(19) superstations,
justwith all otherindependentsand(2O)
networkaffiliatesandwherevertheyfit;
justsay(21) they'ejust like them?
(22) A I'mnot-
(23) Q You don'tseeanydistinguishing
(24) characteristicsthoughfor royalty
calculationof (25) distributionin all
thesecharts,andthewonderful
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(1) graphsthatyouputtogether,dkl
you?
(2) A It wehad- I don'tknowwhat
thocaseis (3) for flagahlpethatare
outsideof thesatellite(4) delivered
ones. It's certainlypossiblethat
they(s) havemoreextensivecarriage
orwhatever,but I just (8) don'tknow.
P) Q Sothepointof thesechartson
pages27 (8) and26 is thatmostof the

NEAL R. GROSS4 CO., INC. (202)234-4433 Page429to Pago435



BSA 1 2'06/95:CARP: D

(7) But, yeS; on pacfe2f, thenumber
52 should(8) be59. I remember
rereadingthe reportmyselfand (s)
thinking thatcan'tbecorrect.
(1o) MR. LANE: All right. And in that
same(1 1) sentence,you meanthat52
stationsoriginatedlive (12) telecastsof
professionalbaseball,basketballor (13)
hockeygames.Not thattheycarriedall
threesports?
(14) THE WITNESS: Certainly. Yes.
Or.
(15) MR. LANE: Right. Thoseareall
the (18) questionsI haveMr. Chairman.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
said"for"?

(18) THEWITNESS: Or. Heaskedme
if the (ts) implication herewasthat
thosestationsall carried(ao) all three
sportsandtheansweris clearlyno.
(at) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And
we'etalking (22) about,arewe not, the
top of page27?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes,thesecond
sentencein (24) thefirst paragraphon
page27.
(25) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Right.
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(1) THE WITNESS: It reads,"In all," it
(2) shouldbe, "59 stationsoriginated
live telecastsof (3) professional
baseball,basketballor hockeygames."
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
Fifty-nine including (5) thesevensuper
stations?
(8) THE WITNESS: Yes. Right. I see
where(7) the52 camefrom.
(8) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Mr.
Stewart,you (9) weregoingto
examine?
(10) Are you okayDr. Lemieux?
(1 1) THE WITNESS: Yeah, I'm fine.
Justkeep(ta) going. If I couldjust
haveaglassof water?
(13) CROSSEXAMINATION (14) BY
JOHN STEWART
(15) MR. STEWART: Goodmorning,
Dr. Lemieux.(te) I'm JohnStewartandI

am representingtheNational(17)
Associationof Broadcastershere. The
NAB is claiming (18) royaltiesfor
programsproducedby stationsand
(te) broadcastonly on thosestations
whichare(20) retransmittedonadistant
signal.
(21) First, justapointof clarification.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Excuse
me. Your (23) colleagueis?
(24) MR. STEWART: I'm sorry. This is
(25) JacquelineHands,my colleague
from Crowell & Moring,
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(1) alsorepresentingNAB.
(2) MS. HAND: Jacqueline?
(3) MS. HAND: Hand. H-a-n-d.
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
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Very good.(5) Thankyes.
(8) MR. STEWART: A pointof
clarificatian (7) from yesterday's'estimony,You talkedaboutacable(8)
operatorwho operatedacablesystem
thatwould have(8) acontractto carry
WGN. Do you recallthat?
(ta) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(11) MR. STEWART: Thdcohtraktybu'ere(12) talkingaboutwasacontract
with, for example,a (13) s'atellite 'etransmitterfor theserviceof
delivering(t4) WGN.
(15) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
(18) MR. STEWART: Because,under
the (17) compulsorylicensemeansthat
cableoperatorsdon't(18) net 'ontractswith thestationhthemselves
to (to) retransmit.
(ao) THE WITNESS: In fact, t'hey'on'
sign (21) thematall, asfaras I knew.
(22) MR. STEWART: Right.
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Sothe
contract(24) would bewith thesatellite
operator?
(25) THE WITNESS: Whatis calleda
satellite
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(1) commoncarrieror someother
resalecommoncarrie.(@ It dould bh
microwave.
(3) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So, lt
would bewith (4) thatcarriernotwith
WGN.
(5) THE WITNESS: Right. Ifl wantto
carry (8) WGN, I makeacontractwith
andorganizationcalledp) Untied
Videowhich is thecompanythatputs
WGN on the (8) satellite.
(8) MR. STEWART: And that
agreementwould (to) justbefor
transportingthesignal,eSserltialiyfromm't1)whereit is pickedup near'hicago'o

thecable(12) operator.
(13) THE WITNESS: That'sright.'14)

MR. STEWART: And other
commoncarriers(15) might, for
example,operatemicrowhveIinkh
wherethey(t8) would providethesame
Idnd of serviceof delivering(17) a
signal,correct?
(18) THE WITNESS: Yee.i
(19) MR. STEWART: And'in thatbase,
thecable(ao)operatorwould'hat/on5
contractwith WGN?
(21) THE WITNESS: Thattscbrrdct. i

(22) MR. STEWART: Further,ithereare'23)situationsin whichacable
operator,let'ssayin (24) UVestVb'ginia, 'ouldbuild his ownantenna4ntOp af
(25) amountainandpick up distant
signalsfrom Pittsburgh
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(1) andbring them in.
(2) In thatcase,therewouldn'tbeany
middle (3) manandtherewouldn'tbe

E.ROYALTY FUNDS... xMAx(14)

Any bontrac'twith tHe (4) station?
(5) THE WITNESS: That'sright. Yes.
(8) Thefundamentalissuehereis that
the (7) stationsthemselvesare
fundamentallypassivein this (8)
arrangement.
(8) 'MR'. STEWART: Thankyou.
(1o) Next,would you turn pleaseto
pagh22of {t 1) pourtestimony?
(12) Now, on thesefour pages
beginningwith (13) 22, 'yo6 ha0e
sampleprogramschedulefoi'elected
(14) daysfor two of thesuperstations,
correct?
(15) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(18) MR. STEWART: LookingJustatthe
first (17) 'onefor'Sunday,Nbveinber11
anWGN, doyouseeat (18) 10t00p.m.
ih thh left ha'ndboldmn,thereis a listing
('18) for news?
(2O) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(at) 'MR'. STEWART: And thatprogram
is not (22) substituted,correct?
(23) THE WITNESS: No, it's not.
{24) 'MR; STEWART: Do you know
whetherthatis (25) astation-produced
newsprogramthatappearsorl WON,
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(1) only?
('a) THE WITNESS: Whenyou mean
that it (3) appearsonWGN only, it also
appearsin thesatellite(4) list/ibulion 'of
WGN.
(5) 'MR.'TEWART: Oh, let'sbeclear
about(8) that. It doesn"tappearon any
otherbroadcast(7) stationin the
country. It's WGN'sown n'ews
prog'ram.
(8) THE WITNESS: If that'swhat it is,
yes.(8) I don'tknowwttethlsrtitat lh
specificallyWGN's local (10) news'cast.
(t 1) But'if it Werh, tl1enyesi it Woukl not
('12) appearanywheredisc.'13)

MR. STEWART: All right. And that,
in (14) fact, ie thedefinition',ofourclaim
in this (15) proceedingareprograms
producedby thestationand(18) not
appearingonotherstations.
(17) Areyou familiar with, Ibokingat':0,(18) 8:30and9:00a.m.,areyou
familiarwith those(19) programs?
(ao) THE WITNESS: Only to theextent
that I (21) readtheprogramschedUle. I

haven' actuallyseen(22) anyof them in
my ownexperienceto know.
(23) iMRi. STEWART: All right. i But
those(a4) programSarealsonot
substitutedfor?
(25) THE WITNESS: No, theytreriot. 'acje441
(1) MR. STEWART: Thoseprograms-
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You are
referringto (3) what,now, 8:00,8:30
and9:00?
(4) MR. STEWART: A.M.I

(5) 'CHAIRPERSONJIGANTlt Oh,
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a.m.
(8) MR. STEWART: Yes.
(7) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Qh, I'm

sorry.
(8) MR. STEWART: So,those
programsif they (9) arenotsubstituted
for, theyareamongtheprograms(io)
thataredeliveredto cableoperators
whentheycarry (11) WGN asadistant
signal.
(12) THE WITNESS: Yes. Distant
signalviewers(13) of WGN couldWatch
thoseprograms.
(i4) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That
would betrue (15) of all theprograms
whereyou don'thavea (1 8) substitution
show.
(ir) THEWITNESS: That'sright.
(18) MR. STEWART: And, just looking
atthese(is) programshere,doyou see
othersyndicatedprograms(20) and
moviesthatwerenotdeleted'?
(21) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(22) MR. STEWART: Do you seeany-
I guesswe (23) don'tseeanydevotional
serieson thatpage. But in (24) general,
stationsmightalsohavedevotional
series(25) representedby anotherone
of theclaimantsherethat
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(1) would getdeliveredaspartof the
packageof (2) programs?
(3) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(4) MR. STEWART: And, of course,
sportson (5) anotherWednesdayin
November,1990,therewould have(8)
beena Bulls gamethatwould have
beendeliveredas(7) partof the
package?
(8) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(8) MR. STEWART: And all these
programs(10) togetherarewhatthe
cableoperatorreceiveswhenit (11)
carriesWGN asadistantsignal,
correct?
(12) THE WITNESS: Correct.
(13) AABITRATOR WEATHEIM: Is your
pointhere(i4) thatwecannottell from
this tablewhich of the local (15)
programswerein fact locally produced
andwhich were(is) not?
(ir) MR. STEWART: Your Honor,we
will be (18) putting in directevidenceon
WGN andWWOR.
(19) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: With
respectto what (20) youareaskingthis
witness,is thatyourprinciple (21) point
youwantto elicit?
(22) MR. STEWART: ThepointthatI

amseeking(23) to elicit, thanksfor
askingmeto explain it, is (24) simply
thatthesuperstationsignalcomprises
(25) programsfrom all of the
commercialcategories
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(1) representedhere. So,when it gets
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pickedup asa (2) distantsignal, it's a
packageof programsclaimedby (3) us,
claimedby sports,claimedby
devotionaland (4) claimedby MPAA.
(5) If youwould turn overto page24,
looking (8) attheWWOR schedule,are
you familiar with the10:00m a.m.
programtherecalledSteamPipeAlley?
(8) THE WITNESS: Again, only to the
extent{8) that I know its title. I haveno
knowledgeaboutits (10) content.
{11) MR. STEWART: All right. And
turningover (12) to thenextpage,are
you familiar with theprogram(13) listed
thereat10:00a.m.calledNine
Broadcast(14) Plaza'?
(15) THE WITNESS: I havethesame
answer.My (18) understandingis it was
broadcast,but I don'tknow (17) its
content.
(18) MR. STEWART: And asyou have
indicatedon (ie) thesepages,noneof
thoseprogramsI'e namedwere(20)
substituted,correct?
(21) THEWITNESS: That'scorrect.
{22) MR. STEWART: Are you familiar,
basedon (23) yourbackgroundin the
broadcastindustrywith a (24) network
affiliatesprogrammingschedule,
generally?
(25) THE WITNESS: Certainly I watch
network
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(1) affiliate stationsand I know
somethingaboutthem,(2) yes.
(3) MR. STEWART: Thesetwo
stationsthatyou (4) havelaid out
programmingschedulesfor hereare(5)
independentstations,correct?
(8) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
m MR. STEWART: If astationwere
affiliated (8) with, for example,WABC in
NewYork, affiliate with (9) ABC, it'
true, is it not, thattherewould bea
block (10) of programsduringthe
daytimeand in primetimeand(11) an
eveningnewsprogramthatwould have
beensupplied(12) by thenetwork,by
ABC itself?
(13) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
(14) MR. STEWART: And those
programsarenot (15) compensatedin
this proceeding?
(is) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
(17) MR. STEWART: But ln addition,on
a (18) typical networkaffiliate'sprogram
schedule,there(is) would beprograms
producedby thestation,possibly(20)
syndicatedprograms,possibly
devotionalprograms,(21) possibly
sportsprograms
(22) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(23) MR. STEWART: - in the
non-networktime, (24) correct?
(25) THE WITNESS: Yes.
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(1) MR. STEWART: So,whena
networkaffiliate (2) getscarriedby a
cableoperatorasadistantsignal,(3)
thereis asimilarpackageof programs
onceyou take(4) outthenetwork
programs.Programsownedby
different(5) claimantsin this
proceedingwhich thecableoperator(8)
picksup and resellsto its subscribers?
(7) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(8) MR. STEWART: All right, would
you now (8) pleaseturn to page28 of
yourtestimony?This is the (10) tableat
thetop herethatMr. Lanediscussed
with (11) you.
(12) I believeyou notedthatWTBS was
more(13) distributednationwidethan
theothersuperstations(14) thatyou
listed here,correct?
(15) THE WITNESS: Yes. I seewhat
the(18) evidenceheresuggests.
(17) MR. STEWART: Ifyoulookatthe
(is) subscribercolumnin themiddle
andaddtogetherthe (is) sameregion
andadjacentregionsnumbers,for TBS
you (2O) getsomethinglike 51 percent
of subscriberswithin (21) thatsameor
adjacentregionarea,correct?
(22) THE WITNESS: Right.
(23) MR. STEWART: If youaddthe
numbers(24) togetherfor theother
superstations,WGN andWOR, (25)
bothcoincidentallyhave88 percentof
their
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(i) subscribersasall thepeoplethat
receivethemas(2) distantsignals
within thesameregionor adjacent(3)
region,is thatright?
(4) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(s) MR. STEWART: Thenumbersare
roughlythe (8) sameor evenhigherfor
theothersuperstationsm listedbelow,
is thatcorrect?
(8) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
(9) MR. STEWART: So,for KTVT
which is from (i o) whatmarket?
(11) THE WITNESS: Dallas-FortWorth.
(12) MR. STEWART: A100percentof
its (13) subscribers,distantsubscribers
arewithin thesame(14) region.
(15) THE WITNESS: Y@$.

(18) MR. STEWART: I would like to
showyou, (17) Dr. Lemieux,aprintout,
aboundprintoutandaskyou (is) to
takea lookat it andtell me if youcan
identify (19) what it is'?

(20) AABITRATOR WERTHEIM: Are
yougoingto (21) havethis markedfor
identification?
(22) MA. STEWART: I amgoingto
markand(23) distributeapagefrom
this document.But I wantedto (24) give
Dr. Lemieuxandhis Counseltheentire
document(25) sothathecouldconfirm
thesourceandwhat it is.
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THE WITNESS: It aPPearsto bea
(2) compilationof reportsfrom the
CableData(a) Corporation.
(4) MR. STEWART: Now, theCable
Data(s) Corporationyou'ereferredto
alreadyin your (8) testimony,correct?
(7) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(8) MR. STEWART: andthat'sthe
companythat (8) compilesthedata,the
statementof accountdatathat (1O) is
filed with thecopyrightoffice and
makesit (11) availableto all theparties
herefor usein this (12) proceeding?
(1a) THEWITNESS: Yes.
(14) MR. STEWART: It wasdatafrom
CableData(1S) Corporationthatyou
usedin preparingmostof the(18)
tablesin thetestimonythatyou
presented?
(17) THE WITNESS: Yes,all theones
thathave(18) to do with carriage
patterns.
(18) MR. STEWART: Now, I would like
to askyou (2O) to turn to thepageI have
tabbedthere.
(21) I would like this documentmarked
asNAB (22) 1990-92,exhibit 1-X.
(2a) (Whereupon,theabove-referred
(24) to documentwasmarkedasNAB
(25) 1-X for identification.)
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(1) Would you confirm, Dr. Lemieux,
thatthis (2) document,1-X, is acopyof
apagefrom thatprintout (3) that I have
shownyou?
(4) THE WITNESS: It appearsto be
identical.
(s) MR. STEWART: Okay. Now, let'
go through(8) just for a few minutes
and identify thedifferent (7) partsof this
printout.
(8) Firstof all, in theupperleft hand(9)
cornerthereis adate,do youseethat?
(1O) THE WITNESS: Yes. TheAugust
15 dateyou (11) mean?
(12) MR. STEWART: Yes. And youcan
usethe (13) exhibit; I think it is easier.
(14) THE WITNESS: Okay.
(1s) MR. STEWART: Doyouknow
whetherCable(1 8) DataCorporation
typically identifiesthedateasof (17)
which theprintout is madein that
fashion?
(18) THE WITNESS: Yes. That'
presumablythe (18) datethatthis
particularreportwascreated.
(20) MR. STEWART: Now, CableData
Corporation(21) will updateit's dataas
amendedstatementsof account(22)
arefiled, or the like, is thatcorrect?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) MR. STEWART: So,theremight be
slight (25) differences,dependingon
which datetheprintoutwas

Page449

(1) prepared?
(2) THE WITNESS: Yes. It could
differ from (a) thenumbersin my report
asa resultof thataswell.
(4) MR. STEWART: But this datahere
is the (5) datathatall thepartieshere
rely on?
(8) THE WITNESS: Yes.
m MR. STEWART: Now, it says'Next
period (8) 92-2'. Would you explain'hatthatis?
(8) THE WITNESS: That'sthesecond
half of (1o) 1992;thesecond'ccountingperiod.
(11) MR. STEWART: And that'sthe
periodthat (12) you haveusedfor a
numberof youranalyses,is that (1a)
correct?
(14) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(15) MR. STEWART: Thenthenext,
underthat(1e)August15 dateis a
code,SSF3Call,do you knowwhat(17)
thatstandsfor?
(18) THE WITNESS: I'm hotkurtI I

knowwhatthe (18) SSmeans.TheF31 'elieverefersto form 3 systems(2O)
andcall meansthatincludesball~sighs. ~

(21) MR. STEWART: In fact, if you read
to the (22) right of that,whatthetitle of
theprintout is, (2a) would you do that?
(24) THE WITNESS: Itis Form
3-Carriageof (25) Signals,apparently,
rankedby thenumberof full4imtt
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(2) MR. STEWART: Okay. And below
thatarea(a)numberofcolumnsof'ata.
(4) First, the 'Call Sign'dentifiesthe
(5) particularstation,is thatcorrect?'e)THE WITNESS: Yes.
m MR. STEWART: Thesecondis the
'Channel(s) Number'nWhich the
stationbroadcastsovertheair (8) in its
local market,is thatcorrect?
(1O) THE WITNESS: Yes. WTBS is
channel17 In (1 1) Atlanta.'12)

MR. STEWART: InAtlanta, rlghtl
(13) Now, thenextcolumnis labeled
'Type'. (14) Canyou tell uswhatthatis?
(15) THE WITNESS: The Il'tatidnsire!
(1e) independents,the 'E'stationeare
non-commercial(1 7) educational
stations,andthe 'N'tationsare(18)
network-affiliatedstations.
{18) MR. STEWART: Thenexttwo
columnsare(2O) communityandstate.
Whatcommunityandstateare(21)
they?
(22) THE WITNESS: That'sthe ideation'f

the(23) televisionstatlo'nitself.'24)

MR. STEWART: Now, thereare
four (2S) bracketedsetsof columns !

labeled,'Total', 'All
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(1) Distant','Full Time Distant',and
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'Local'.
(2) Canyou explainw'hattholeare?
(a) THE WITNESS: As we hadtalked
about(4) earlierthis morning,all of the
stationsthatwe talk (5) abouthere,as
distantsignalsarealsolodal td sojne'8)otherbroadcastmarket.
(7) So, if we taketheWTBS case,for
(8) instance,if we look underthe
humberof cable(8) systems,this r'eport
indicatesthattherewere2 118 (1O)
cablesystemsthat'car/iedIWTI3S6t alt.
(11) If you go to the 'All Distant'olumn,

we (12) find that2,090of those
systemscarriedit on a (1a) distant
signalbasis.
(14) And if you go all thle wLy tb th4
right (1s) handside,in the 'Local'olumn,

wefind thatthere(1e)were34
cablesystemsthatwerelobal to WTBS
and(17) carriedit ona localbasis.'18)

Theseareall presumably
somewherein the(19) Atlantamarket.
(2o) 'MR'. STEWART: S'o, this is what'ouwere(21) discussingearlier?
(22) THE WITNESS: Right'.
(N) 'MR'. STEWART: That is, thatWTBS
is nota (24) distantsignalwhenit is
carriedby cablein its (05) local market,
but is adistantsignalelsewhere?
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(1) THE WITNESS: Rlghtl,
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: What
is the (3) differencebetweenall distant
andfull time distant?
(4) THE WITNESS: Ybu'll sehthatthe
numbers(5) herear'eidentical.'hisis'n

artifact I believe,(8) from anearlier
periodof time in the rul'esWhere,(7)
befo'rethec'han'gein thesignalcarriage
rules,cable(8) systemswereallowedto
bring in distantsignalsona (9) parttime
basis,particulaily latehightbetween,
like (10) 11:00p.m.and6:00ajm. !

(11) Theywereallowed,for instance,if
oneof (12) their local bloalcakt
stations'wehtoff theair, they (13) were
allowedto bring in Sorheotherstation
to fill in (14) thatremaining!timhsilt oh
theircablesystem.
(&s) This is whatusedto bis %lied pait
time'(18)cahiage.
(17) After thecablerules

Were'bolished, part (18) tim'e

carriage,'ssentially, becomesno longeran(19)
issue.And thereisn'tanythingany
longerthat(20) coristituteepatttime '.

carriagehere.
(21) 'You canseethatthenumbersare
Identical(22) throughout.so,either
oneof thosecolumnsis going (23) to
tell you theexactsamething. i

(24) .MR, STEWART: Now, this printout
provides(2S) thesedatafor each
station,rankedin descending
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(i) orderby thenumberof full time
distantsubscribers.(2) Do you see
that?
(3) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(4) MR. STEWART: So thatWTBS is
carriedto (s) some44 million asa
distantsignal, is thatcorrect?
(e) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(7) MR. STEWART: And thenWGN to
23 million (s) andsome?
(9) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(io) MR. STEWART: Let' shiftone
columnto (i i) the leff and look at the
numberof cablesystems(12) again.
(13) THE WITNESS: Okay.
(14) MR. STEWART: WTBS is carried
by 2,090as (15) adistantsignaland
WGN carriedby 1,237. Do you see(16)
that?
(17) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(1e) MR. STEWART: Someof those
1,237arethe (19) samesystemsthat
carryWTBS, of the2,090thatcarry (20)
WTBS, is thatcorrect?
(21) THE WITNESS: Yes. Quitea few
of them. (22) We found thatthemost
commoncablecarriagepattern(23) is
to carry thosetwo signals,andthat'
doneby 25 (24) percentof thesystems
(25) MR. STEWART: Okay. And when
you look at

Page454
(1) distantincidents,or instancesof
carriage,whatyou (2) do is addup
thosenumbers. If you wantedto find
the (3) total instancesof carriageof TBS
andGN together,(4) you would simply
addthosetwo numbers,is that (5)
correct?
(e) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(7) MR. STEWART: Thatwould give
you some(e) ideaof theavailability of
thosetwo stationsin the (9) distant
signalmarketplace,nationwide?
(10) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(11) MR. STEWART: Let's look down
the list, (i2) startingwith WTBS, and
identify thesevensuper(13) stations
thatyou featuredin yourtestimony
here.
(14) THE WITNESS: Thefirst five
system(is) signals,WTBS, WGN,
WWOR, WPIX andWSBK areali in the
(ie) list of superstationsthat I

presented.Threeplaces(17) further
down is KTLA in LosAngeles.Then
further(i e) downthepage,aroundthe
middle, is KTVT, channel11 (19) in Fort
Worth.
(20) MR. STEWART: So, it's justabout
at the (21) mid-pointof the list.
(22) The first five superstationseach
are(23) carriedby moredistantcable
subscribersthanany (24) other?
(2S) THE WITNESS: Thosefive
stationsreach
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(i) moredistantsubscribersthan
anyoneelse,yes.
(2) MR. STEWART: With respectto
theother(3) two superstations,some
otherstationsarecarriedto (4) more
distantsubscribers,is thatcorrect?
(s) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(5) MR. STEWART: Do you know
whetheranyof (7) theotherstationsin
thatfirst 20 or 25arealso (e) carriedon
satelliteor areavailableon satellite?
(9) THE WITNESS: I don'tknow the
specific(10) identities. I understand
theremaybea coupleof (11)
network-affiliatedstationsin that list as
well.
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Would
you call KTLA (1 3) andKTVT
not-so-supersuperstations?
(14) THE WITNESS: I'm notgoingto
(15) characterizethem in thatway, Your
Honor. If you (15) would like to do so,
you may.
(i7) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: All
right. Theterm (1e) superstation
simply meansit's broadcastby (19)
satellite,it's carriedby satellite'?
(20) THE WITNESS: Accordingto-
yes. I (21) mean,if you look at the
glossarythatwassubmitted(22) on
behalfof thesportsclaimants,I believe
that's(23) thedefinition.
(24) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Is that
theway the (25) term is generallyused'?
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(1) THE WITNESS: The industry,I

think (2) generally,tendsto look at
independentstationsthat (3) arecarried
by satelliteassuperstations. I think (4)
that'sgoingto beamatterof some
discussionhere.
(5) MR. STEWART: I think, Your
Honor,that (e) theSection119statutory
definition which appliesto (7) theother
compulsorylicensesusestheterm
super(e) stationto referto independent
stationsdeliveredby (9) satelliteand
not net-workaffiliatesdeliveredby (1 o)
satellite.
(11) Whetherthat is thesameusein
which the (12) witnessis using it or not

(13) I haveno furtherquestions.
(14) CROSSEXAMINATION (15) BY
MR. HESTER
(ie) MR. HESTER: For therecord,I'm
Timothy (1 7) Hesterrepresentingthe
public televisionclaimants.
(ie) Goodmorning,DoctorLemieux.
(i9) THE WITNESS: Goodmorning.
(20) MR. HESTER: Let mefollow-up
very quickly (21) on Mr. Stewart's
exhibit NAB-1990-92,exhibit 1-X.

(22) If I could takeyou backto your (23)
discussionof KTLA andKTVT, your
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referenceto those(24) two super
stationsandwherethey rankedamong
the (25) full time distantsubscribers.
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(1) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(2) MR. HESTER: Am I correctin
readingthis (3) exhibit thatthereis an
educationalstationthat is (4) listed,
WVIA thathasmorefull time distant(5)
subscribersthanKTLA, thesuper
stationout of Los (e) Angeles?
(7) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(e) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: What
station?
(9) MR. HESTER; I'm sorry,
(io) THE WITNESS: Numbersix
rankedstation,
(11) MR. HESTER: WVIAwhichis listed
out of (12) Scranton,Pennsylvania.
(13) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That'
an (14) educationalstation?
(15) THE WITNESS: That'swhat it says
here,(ie) yes.
(17) MR. HESTER: Couldyou clarify by
the (is) referenceto educational?Is
thatalsoa referenceto (19)
non-commercialstations?
(20) THE WITNESS: Yes. It is a
non-commercial(21) educational
station.
(22) MR. HESTER: So, immediately
behindthe (23) five superstationsyou
list the largestdistant(24) signal in
termsof full time distantsubscribersas
(25) this non-commercialstationoutof
Scranton,is that
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(1) correct?
(2) THE WITNESS: In termsof
subscribers,(3) yes.
(4) MR. HESTER: And thenfollowing
it a (5) little furtherdown,doyousee
alsoa referenceto (e) WTTW, channel
11 outof Chicago'?
m THE WITNESS: Yes.
(e) MR. HESTER: And thatis alsoa
non- (9) commercialstation?
(io) THEWITNESS: Yes.
(11) MR. HESTER: And in termsof full
time (12) distantsubscribersthatranks
aboveKTVT, is that (13) correct?
(14) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(15) MR. HESTER: And thereis also
oneother(ie) non-commercialstation
thatranksaheadof KTVT. Do (17) you
seethereferencethereto KCET outof
Los (1e) Angeles?
(19) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(20) MR. HESTER: In yourtestimony,
atvarious(21) points,you discuss
educationalstations.Do you (22) recall
that in yourtestimony?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) MR. HESTER: Am I correctthat
those(25) referencesareto signify
non-commercialstations?

Page453to Page458



'.'06/95:CARP:
Pape459

(1) THE WITNESS: Yes. I believeat
the (2) beginningof the report I referto
themasnon- (3) commercial
educationalstationandthen I referto
(4) themaseducationalstationslateron
asashorthand.
(5) MR. HESTER: So, for instance,if I

could (8) directyourattentionto the
tablethatwe discussed(7) atsome
lengthtoday,on page10 of your
testimony,(8) table5-1 on instancesof
carriage;do you havethat (9) table?
(io) THEWITNESS: Yes, I do.
(1 i) MR. HESTER: And thereis a line
reference(12) to educational.That'
meantto beeducationaland (13)
non-commercialstations?
(14) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(15) MR. HESTER: What is commonly
referredto (18) apublic television?
(17) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(18) MR. HESTER: Let measkyouto
turn back(19) to page9 in your
testimony,please. I wantto direct (20)
yourattention,specifically,to the
bottomparagraph(21) on page9, the
third sentencewhich reads,"Only (22)
distantcarriageof theoriginal super
stationsand (23) educationalsignals
grewduringthis period." (24) Oo you
seethat?
(25) THEWITNESS: Yes, I do.
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(1) MR. HESTER: Theperiodyou are
referring (2) to is what?
(3) THE WITNESS: 1989to 1992. The
second(4) accountingperiod in both
cases.
(5) MR. HESTER: So,your reference
thereto (8) educationalsignalsis again
to non-commercialpublic (7)
television?
(8) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(9) MR. HESTER: So,yourpoint is
thatthe (10) only two typesof signals
thatgrew in termsof (ii) distantsignal
carriageweretheoriginalsuper(12)
stationsandpublic television?
(13) THEWITNESS: Yes,
non-commercial(14) educational
stations.
(18) MR. HESTER: Letmeaskyoulf
thatpoint (16) is alsoreflectedon table
5-1 on page10?
(17) THEWITNESS: Yes, itis.
(18) MR. HESTER: And if youcould
alsoexplain(ia) that,please?Just
describefor therecordwhatyour (20)
datashowasto thecarriageof
educational,non- (21) commercial
television.
(22) THE WITNESS: In thesecond
accounting(23) period in 1989,we
found497cablesystemsthat(24)
carriedanon-commercialeducational

DISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91, 8c 92 CABLE
stationon a (25) distantbasiswhich
represented6.8 percentbf all

Page461'1)the instancesof carriagein thatyear.,
(2) By 1992,thatfigure hadrisen7.2
per(3) centto 533station'scdrrield
cablesystems,or 7.2 per(4) centof the
entirenumberof instances.
(5) MR. HESTER: And sIgaih,wIien'ou

are(8) talkingabouttheentire
numberof instances,you are (7) talking
aboutinstancesof distantsignal
carriage?
(8) THE WITNESS: Instancesof
distantsignal(9) carriage,'1o)

MR. HESTER: So,am I right that
this (11) tablereflectsthat in per
centageterms,public (12) television's
distantsignalcarriagegrewby 7.2 per
(13) centduringthis period?'14)THE WITNESS: Yes!
(15) MR. HESTER: Goingbacktothe
pointthat(1e)weJustdisoussed,'eside

WTBS andWGN, this is the (17)
only kind of signalsfor which'youshow

'

growth in (18) distantsignal'carriage
duringthis period?
(1 S) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.
(20) MR. HESTER: Am I ttight aisb,iri
looking (21) atthesefigures,and'let me
focusyou on thesecond(22),
accountingperiodfor 1992if I could,
thatyourdata(23) hereshowthatthe
distantsignalcarriageof public (24)
televisionsignalswasroughlydduble
thatof the(25) othersuperstationsyou
list here?

Page462'1)THEWITNESS: Yes. Thatis
correct.(2) Takentogethe'ras' g'oup.
(3) MR. HESTER: So,what I wanted
to do is (4) askyou to simplyconfirm
theaggregationthatyou (5) showother
superstationshereof WPIX, SBK,
KTLA AND (8) KTVT, andthosein the
aggregateamountto distantm signal
carriageof 3.7percent?
(8) THE WITNESS: Yes.'a)

MR. HESTER: And public
television,during (10) thesameperiod
is essentiailydoublethatat7.2per(11)
cent?
(12) THE WITNESS: YesJ
(13) MR. HESTEA: letmeaskyouto
turn to (14) page80of yourtestimony,
please.Table10-1 atthe(18) bottomof
thepagels whatI wantedto discuss
with (16) you.
(17) Again,youseeareferencein the
headings(18) to educational,andagain
doesthatreferto public (19) television, ~

educational,non-commercial?
(20) THE WITNESS: Yes'21)

MR. HESTER: And sothisshoes,'f

you (22) look atthecolumnsfor 'Other
SuperStations'ersua(23) 'Piubllc

ROYALTY FUNDS xMAX(i@

Television'igures,thatessentially
public (24) television,oh av!erase,Was
carriedtwice asoftenas(28) adistant
signalaeweretheothe'uperhtatlonS?
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(1) 'THE WITNESS: Yeah,' tHink 4ve'anmake(2) that-
(3) MR. HESTER: In otherwords-
(4) 'THE WITNESS: I assume-that'
(8) fundamentallythesamerelatiohshfp
wesawin the (8) othertable,yes.'7)MR. HESTER: 'Thyrsefigui'es In
table10-1 (8) areultimatelyderived
from thesamedatathatyo'u (9) shbwin
t'able5-1?
(1O) THEWITNESS: Yhs. 'Downthe
line datais (11) all thesame,yes.'12)MR. HESTER: And the
categorizationsthat (13) you showin 'able10-1 aiethesamecategories?
(l4) THEWITNESS: Thesamesix
categories,(15) yee.
(18) MR. HESTER: the'samesiiX

categoriesyou (17) showin table5-1?
('s) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(19) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: The
changethatMr. (2O) Hesterjustasked
you about,or ratherthecomparison,
(lai) is rathefdrdmaticallydiffefent,'sit
not, between(22) thetop 50arid tlie
smallerstations?
(23) Thesmallerthestation,thegreater
the (24) gapwith theeducational?
(25) THE WITNESS: Thesmallerthe
market.
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('1) 'ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Yes.
(2) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(3) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And in
thestop50 (4) theyareaboutequal?
(8) THE WITNESS'lss I

(8) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Thank
you.
(7) MR. HESTER And thisn belolw tlie
top 50 (8) thereis adifferemcein terms
of thepercentagebf (si) calrriage4f
educationalandnon-commercialas
compared(io) asto theothersuper
stations?
(11) THE WITNESS: Yes.'12)

MR. HESTER: Thecomparison
thatI had(13) drawnbefore,askingyou
to agreewith methat,on (14) average,
thecarriageof publictelevisionsignals
was(15) twicethatof theothersuper
stationswasbasedona(is) reference
to thebottomline, referenceto all, (17)
systems? '18)THE WITNESS: Tihatiis correct.
(19) MR. HESTER: And doyouagree
with'me'that(2o) thatshows,on
average,lookingatall Isystemls,tAis (21)
reflectsthatpublic'televisionsignals
werecarried(22) twiceiasoftendistant
signalsin comparison,'tothe (23) other
superstations?
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(24) THE WITNESS: I would saythatis
a fair (25) interpretation,yes.
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(1) MR, HESTER: Letmeaskyouifi
could to (2) directyourattentionto
page31, table10-2.
(3) Again, this is a tablethatyou have
(4) discussedbefore, It showsthe
patternsof distant(5) signalcarriage
thatyou haveobservedby reviewing (5)
thestatementof accounts?
(7) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(5) MR. HESTER: I wantedto askyou
if you (3) could,to againconfirm that
the referencesto EDUC (1O) thatappear
startingatnumber11 andcontinuing
on (1 i) for severalof these. I takeit that
is a reference(12) to public television
signals?
(is) THE WITNESS: Yes,
non-commercial,(14) educational
stations.
(15) MR. HESTER: So, ifl focusedon,
let's (ie) say, item 13 in your listing
here,this is a pattern(17) thatyou
observed,of distantsignalcarriageof
WTBS, (18) WGN andthenyou list an
educationalsignal.
(19) THE WITNESS;.Yes.
(2O) MR. HESTER: Thatwould bea
referenceto (21) public television
signalsbeingimportedasadistant(22)
signal?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) MR. HESTER: Okay. Ifyouwill
acceptmy (25) math,would youagree
with methatonecouldadd
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(1) togetherthepercentageof systems
in yourpatterns(2) herethatshow
somedistantsignalcarriageof public
(3) televisionsignalsanddeterminethe
percentageof (4) systemsarethat
importedapublic televisionsignal? .

(5) THE WITNESS: Yes,plussomeof
themare(5) also in the 'OtherPatterns'ategoryatthebottom.
m MR. HESTER: Okay. If wefocus
on those(8) thatyou list in yourtop25
signalpatterns,would (9) youagree
with methatnumbers11, 12, 13, 14, 15,
16, (i o) and 19 from amongyourtop25
all showa patternof (11) importinga
public televisionsignal?
(12) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(13) MR. HESTER: And in the
aggregate,those(14) patternsaddto
12.7percent. You cancheckmy math
(is) if you want,buttheway thatI have
derivedthatand (16) I will representto
you that I havederivedit by (i7) adding
togetherthe 'PerCentof Systems'olumn.

(i s) Do youagreewith me?
(19) THE WITNESS: Yes,12.7.
(20) MA. HESTER: You arebetterat it

than I (21) am.
(22) The 12.7numberreflectstheper
centof (23) systems,aggregated
togetherfrom amongthesetop 25 (24)
thatshowapublic televisionsignal?
(25) THE WITNESS: Itisthesumof
2.5,2.4,
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(1) 2.1, etcetera.
(2) MR. HESTER: Okay. Now, you
mentioned(3) earlierin yourtestimony
today,anexampleoutof the (4)
Washingtonmarketin which the
observationwasthat (5) thecable
systemherein Washington,D.C.
imports (5) network-affiliatesasdistant
signalsfrom Baltimore.
m Do you recallthat?
(8) THE WITNESS: I believethat'
true.
(8) MA. HESTER: Am I right that
takingthat (1o) exampleastepfurther
alongthe linesof Mr. (ii) Stewart's
discussion,am I right that in that
example(12) thenetworkaffiliate
programmingcomingfrom (13)
Baltimorewould bedifferentfrom the
network(14) affiliate programming
foundon the local stationhere(15) in
thedistrict?
(ie) THEWITNESS: Inthe
non-networkportion (17) of theday,
yes.
(is) MR. HESTER: Therewould be
someelements(is) of theprogramming
thatwould bethesameon the(20)
networkaffiliate beingimportedfrom
Baltimoreas(21) contrastedwith the
localaffiliate. But someamount(22) of
theprogrammingwould bedifferent?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) MR. HESTER: You haddiscussed
yesterday,(25) thedistantsignal
equivalentsthatapplyto the
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(1) royaltycomputationswith respectto
independent(2) stations,network
stationsandnon-commercial(3)
stations.Do you recallthat?
(4) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(5) MA. HESTER: And yourtestimony
wasthat(5) thedistantsignalequivalent
for an Independentp) stationis 1 and
theDSEfor anetworkaffiliate is (s) .25
andfor anon-commercialstationit is
.25. Is (9) thatright?
(io) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(ii) MR. HESTEA: And thosedistant
signal(12) equivalentswereincludedby
Congressin theoriginal (13) copyright
legislationduringthe1970s,is thatyour
(14) understanding?
(i5) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(is) MR. HESTER: Hastherebeenan
effort to (17) calibratethosedistant
signalequivalentssincethat(15) time?

(ie) THE WITNESS: Not that I know of.
I (20) believetheyarefrozenby statute.
(21) MR. HESTER: Right. So there
havenot (22) beenon-going
adjustmentsin theDSE ratesto take
(23) accountof marketconditions?
(24) THE WITNESS: No. Theyarethe
samerates(25) thatwe usedin the1978
proceeding.
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(1) MR. HESTER: I takeit youwould
agree(2) thatacablesystemcouldwell
paya royalty ratethat (3) is substantially
belowthevaluethat it would place(4)
on agivendistantsignal?
(5) THE WITNESS: If you areasking
me if I (6) think thatthecompulsory
licenserewardscopyrightP) holdersto
thefull valueof their programming,I'd
(5) saytheanswerto thatis no.
(8) MR. HESTER: And thatacable
operator(1O) couldwell bepayingless
thanthevalueit placeson (11) agiven
signal?
(12) THE WITNESS: That is certainly
possible.
(13) MR. HESTER: Thankyou.Those
areall the (14) questionsI have.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Any
othercross(is) examination?
(17) MR. COSENTINO: Your Honor, I

haveabout(15) twentyminutesworth of
questions.
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Wewill
breaknow. (2O) Yesterdaywasthefirst
dayhadhereand I didn'tknow (21) If an
hourwasenoughtimefor you to have
lunch. Is (22) it asufficientamountof
time?
(23) All right, wewill meetbackherein
an (24) hour.
(25) MR. GERSCH: Your Honor, I

wonderif I
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(1) could raiseacoupleof
housekeepingissues;if you (2) would
preferto takethemup after lunch,we
could.
(3) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: It would
beagood(4) time nowbecausewe
coulddiscussthemat lunch.
(5) MR. GERSCH: Thereareanumber
of motions(5) with respectto Mr. Bortz
whowill bethejoint sportsp)
claimants'extwitnessandwe
wonderedif thePanel(8) hadruledon
thosemotions?
(9) CHAIRPEASONJIGANTI: We
haveruledon (io) them. TheyareIn the
processof beingtypedand(1 1)
explained.
(12) Do you needthembeforeMr. Bortz
(13) testifies?
(14) MR. GEASCH: I guessit depends
onwhat (15) theyare.
(is) CHAIAPEASONJIGANTI: Canwe
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talk Io &'~ &i 4 C&".p ~clashabout
that?
(18) MR. GERSCH: Sure.
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: After
lunchwewill (2O) addressthat.
(21) Okay. Anything else'? Any other
(22) housekeepingmatters.
(23) MR. GERSCH: Theotherissueis
justone(24) of maybejustaquestionof
formality. I would like (25) to beclear
on whenanexhibit is admitted.
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(1) My understandingis basically,an
exhibit (2) is notadmitteduntil thePanel
saysso. I believe(3) thereis a
referenceby oneof thecounsel'sto an
(4) exhibithavingbeenadmitted
yesterday,which was(s) neveroffered
into evidence.
(e) I would just like to beclearon what
thep) groundrulesare.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That'sa
good(9) question.We began
discussingit beforewe resumed(1 o)
hereawhile ago.
(11) My understandingof it wasthat
therewas(12) somethingprocedures
concerningtheadmissionthat(13)
would bedifferentfrom ordinarycourt
proceedings.(14) I maynotbeaccurate
on thatand I would like to (1S) checkit
autbeforeweaddressit.
(1e) Two thingswe haveto address
after lunch (17) arethemotionsandthe
questionof whenamatteris (15)
admittedasanexhibit.
(19) MR. NEIMAN: Justrelatedto that,
Your (2O) Honor, thereweretwo
cross-examinatianthatwereused(21)
in connectianto Dr. Lemieux's
testimony. Oneis the (22) NAB's exhibit
1-X; I would like to havetheentire(23)
copyput into therecord.
(24) And theotheris theprogram
suppliers.(25) I justwantto makeclear
thatundertherules,my
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(1) understandingis thatis not in as
substantive(2) evidenceuntil theyput
thatsponsoringwitness(3) forward.
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That
wasexactlythe(s) natureof our
conversation,beforewebrokehere. I

(5) will addressthoseimmediatelyafter
lunch.
p) Mr. Stewart,doyou havea
question?
(5) MR. STEWART: Yes,Your Honor, I

would be(9) happyto providethe
remainderof the listing of which (1O) I

providedthefirst pageasexhibit 1-X.
I'd askto (11) pleasenotprovideall the
datafor all theyearsin (12) this printout.
It is bulky andunnecessary.
(13) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
We'l discuss(14) that.

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,b1, '& 9I2 CIABL
(15) MR. HESTER: Your Hon'or, I'ave
one(1e) specificsuggestion.There
wasadiscussionyesterday(17) of the
form of accountthatweworkedon for
some(15) amountof time and I thought
it might beappropriate(1I)) to'ma'rkthat;
thatwould bemy suggestion.
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Theway't

was(21) introducedyesterday,it was
suggestedthattheCourt,'(22)thePanel
couldtakejudicial noticeof it.,

(23) Butyou preferto haveit markedas
an (24) exhibit?
(25) MR. HESTER: Well, I thihktliat'ateron
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(1) it mightbedifficult to find it. Years
from nowwe (2) mightall begrayand
trying to find this again,I (3) hateto say.
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I'm
inclinedto (s) agreewith you. I think it
shouldbemarkedasan (4) ekhibIt.
(7) Thatwasbroughtaboutby Mr.
Lane?
(5) MR. HESTER: Yes.
(9) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: The last 'umber

I (1O) havefor you is number8
sothosewould benumbers9 (11) and
10.
(12) MR. LANE: All right. Justsothe
record(13) will beclear, I will makeSA 1

and2, theshortform, (14) thestatement
of accauntnumber9, andtheform 3.
(1s) (Whereupon,theabovereferred'1e)

to documentsweremarkedasPS
(17) exhibits9 and10 for (19)
identification.)
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: With
thatinmind,(2O)wewillsleybulhorle'our.

(21) (Whereupon,theproceedings
wererecessed(22) at12:09p.m.)
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(1) A-F-T-E-R-N-0-0-N
P-R-0-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
(2) (1:14p.m.)
(3) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I guess
there'sno (4) reasonto interrupt 'r.Lemieux'stestimony,We can(5)
coverthoseothermatters'lateron,and
let (e) Dr.LemieuxberelieVedfor a little
while.
(7) THE WITNESS: Thankyou,Your
Honor.
(5) MR. COSENTINO: Dr. Lemieux,
my nameis (9) Victor Cosentlno,I'm
representingtheCanadian(1O)
claimantsheretoday,
(11) CROSSEXAMINATION
(12) BY MR. COSENTINOI;
(13) Q Dr.Lemieux,canydu alpen
Program(14) Supplier,Exhibit10-IX, I

which is theStatementof (1 S)IAceouht, 'orm3.

(1e) A Whatexhibit numberdid you
referto?

E AOYALTY FUNDS... xMAxap)

(17) Q 10-X. I think hereon page10 it
(18) describestheDSEvaluesfor the
differentsignai (19) typhus. '2o)A Yes.
(21) Q Canyou tell mehow'forhigvl
signalsare(22) treatedunderthis DSE
schedule?
(23) A They'etreatedItheIsariselay
as(24) independentstations,'and
they'egot full'1.0'SE.
(25) Q Soturningto NAB
Exhibit1-X-And also,
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(1) we'eheardthatAmericanstations
aremarkedasW (2) somethingor K
somhthing.'Canadi'anstations,howare
(3) theydesignated?
(4) A Theyhavea call signthat I

beginswith C.
(s) Q Soall Canadianstationswould
havethat(e) call signasthefirst letter?
(g A I believeso,yea.
(9) Q And if you'd look in Exhibit1'-X
downthe (9) columnherecanyou find
aCanadianstationfor us?
(to) A Sure.'BUTin VancouverIs
thefirst one.
(11) Q And thedesignationof typeis I.
(12) A Yes.
(13) Q Sotheonly waywe'l beableto
tell (14) Canadianstationsfrom otiier
independentstationsis (1s) by thecall
signItself, essentially.
(1e) A That'show l did, yes.
(17) Q And while we haVethis exhibit
aut,CBUT (15) is listed hereasthe
seventh,in termsof full-time (19)
distancesubscribers'
(ko) A I believethat'sright.
(21) Q And thatfollows immediately
after'the(22) first five superstationaand
theeducationalstatian(23) outof
Scranton?
(24) A Yee.
(25) Q And CBUT hasmoresubscribers
thantwo of
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(1) thesuperstationsthataredelivered
by satellite,is (2) thatcorrect?'3)'A Yea.'4)Q Goingbackto theSItatemehtof
Account(5) form, I havesomemore
questionsabouthow royalties'(5)are
calculatedhere. I thinkwegot into that
p) yesterdaysomewhatand I wantto'xploreit a little (s) further.i
(9) Firstof all, theStatementbf',
Account(1O) form refersto baserates
fees. Is thatthesameas(11) basic
rbyaitieaas'itappearsonyourexhibits?
('12) A You Wartt to showmewhere
thatmls?i

(13) Q Sure. Ifyoulookatthetopof
page11(14) it sayscomputing-
(15) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Which
exhibitnumber(1e)areyou referringto
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now?
(17) MR. COSENTINO: Exhibit 10-X
again,Your (1s) Honor.
(19) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM; Thank
you.
(20) MR. COSENTINO: At thetop of
page11it (21) sayscomputingthebase
ratefee. I justwantto (22) clearup that
terminology.
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes, I'm usually
referring (24) to whatwe referto
typically asbasicroyalties is (26) what
is discussedhereasthebaseratefee.
I might
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(1) addthatail Form 3 cablesystems
haveto paysome(2) royalty, evenif

theydon'tcarryanydistantsignals(3)
atall. That'swhat'smeanthereby the
minimum fee. (4) Thatcompulsory
licenserequiresthepaymentof a (5)
royalty feefor the right to carryasignal
evenif (6) one is not carriedatall. So
therearea few I (7) believe,maybea
coupledozensystemsthatarefiled (s)
on Form3but don'thaveanydistant
signalsbut (9) neverthelesswill paya
royalty.
(10) BY MR. COSENTINO:
(11) Q And that royalty is equivalentto
the (12) first full DSE on thesliding
scale?
(13) A Yes, I believeso.
(14) Q In this form, in calculatingthe
baserate (1s) fee, it alsodiscusses
partially distantsignals, Can (16) you
explainwhat theyare?
(17) A Sure,I'l try.
(18) Imaginewe havea cablesystem
that's(18) locatedon theedgeot the
35 mile zoneof a local (20) broadcast
station. So let'stakeanexample.
There's(21) a cablesystemin
Atlanta, that'snot in thecity ot (22).
Atlanta, but let'ssay is in a relatively
distant(23) suburb. Partot thecable
systemis insidethe (24) 35miiozone;
partof thecablesystemis outside
the (2s) 35milezone. Theoperatorio
requiredto pay
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(1) royaltiesfor thecarriageot WTBS,
eventhoughWTBS (2) would boa
local signalwithin the35milozone
there(3) aresomesubscribersfor
whom it's distantandfor (4) those
subscribersa royalty foo io required.
That's(s) what'smeantby partially
distant. It typically (8) refersto
systemsthathavesomeof their
subscribers(7) within the35miio
zoneof a TV stationandsomeof {s)
theirsubscribersthe35milezoneof
a TV stationand (9) someot their
subscribersareoutsidethe35 milo
(10) zone,so it's sitting on thoborder
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of themarket.
(11) Q So asystemthathadsome
partially (12) distantsubscribersto
calculatebaseroyaltiesit (18) would
breakapartits groupof subscribers
into oneor (14) moregroups?
(16) A Yes. Theoperatorhasto
designatehow (16) manysubscribers
are in eachof-It could bea (17)
numberof differentcategories
dependinguponhow many(18)
differentstationsoverlaphereand
so forth. But (18) eventuallyyou end
up with somenumberof socalled
(20) partiallydistantgroupsfor which
a royalty is (21) required.
(22) Q And thenfor eachof those
partially (23) distantgroupsthecable
operatorlooksatwhat (24) signalsare
just distantto thosegroups?
(25) A That'sright.
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(1) Q And theprocessof calculating
base(2) royalty is thesame?
(3) A Right. It's only for thatportion
of (4) grossreceiptsthatcomesfrom
thatsubscriberbase.
(s) Q Right. Sothey'eonly paying
base(6) royaltiesfor signalsthat
subscribersreceive(7) distantly,so
they'l neverhaveasubscriberwho'
(8) gota local signalpayingabase
royalty-
(8) A That'scorrect.
(1o) Q — becausethey'ecut out of that
group?]
(11) A Yes. I believetheway this
happensin (12) practiceis they
calculatea fractionalDSEsothat if
(18) tenpercentot theirsubscribers
arepartiallydistant(14) theywould
calculatea .IO DSE for an
independent(1 S) stationthat*s
carriedon this basis.
(16) Q Do theydo thator doesCable
Data(17) Corporationdo that?
(1 8) A No, theoperatorsdo it when
theyfile (19) Form3.
(20) Q If you'l look at page18of the
DSE (21) schedule,Exhibit10-X. This
would betheareawhere(22) theybreak
it into their individual communitiesor
(23) individual subscribergroups,
correct?
(24) A Yoo.
(25) Q And thenthe list only thesignals
that
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{1) weredistantin thatsubscribers
group.
(2) A Yoo.
(3) Q And whattheDSEwasfor that
group. And (4) theytotal it up, andthen
theycalculatethebase(s) ratewhich is
thebasicroyalties.
(6) And if you look on theproceeding

{202) 234-4433

Page,(7) page17,it tells us how to
computethebaseratefee (8) for each
subscribergroup?
(9) A Yes.
(1O) Q Do you seethat?
(11) A Yes.
(12) Q And then it saysat thebottom,
on the (18) lastpart, it says,computer
baseratefeefor each(14) subscriber
groupusingtheformulaoutlined in
BiockB (1S) of Part8.
(16) Couldyou readthatandtell us is
that (17) thenormalway of computing
thebasicroyalties'
(18) A I believeso,yes.
(18) Q Okay So they just pretendthat
for the (2o) purposesof this thateach
subscribergroup is its own (21) little
system?
(22) A That'smoreor lesscorrect,
yes.
(23) Q And thentheysumup all the
basefees.
{24) A Right.
(25) And actuallynow in responseto
yourother
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(1) questionI guess,it's not thecase
thattheyprovide(2) thesefractional
DSEs,that'sactuallydoneby Cable
(3) DataCorporation.
(4) Q Turning to CableData
Corporation.They (s) takethe
Statementof Accountsandpull from
themthe (6) informationthatyou used
ultimately to comeup with (7) thebasic
royalty ratesthatyou usein your report.
(8) A That'scorrect.
(8) Q And if we go to theJointSports
(1O) Exhibit2, your report-Ifwe go to
page13. It is (11) 6.I (12) Whenyou
allocateroyaltiesto aspecific(13)
signalsuchasWTBS, you do thatusing
thedatafrom (14) cableData
Corporation,is thatcorrect?
(15) A Yes,that'sthebasicdata
that's(1 6) involved. Forsystemsthat
carrya 3.75signal I (17) allocate
basicroyaltiesin theway thatwe
discussed(1 s) earlierin the
discussionabout3.75allocations.
(19) Q Thencouldyou explain-andI

thinkyou (2o) touchedon this yesterday
actually,butcanyou (21) explainhow-
Sayasystemhas,I thinkyourexample
(22) was,an independent,aCanadian,
aneducational,and (23) anetwork
aNIiate,usingthatDSEschedulethat
we (24) lookedatalready,it generatesa
certainamountof (25) fees,$25,000.
Howwould theCableDataCorporation
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(1) databreakthatout?
(2) A It would allocate410,000to
boththe (3) Canadianandthe
independentstation,and$2,500to
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(4) tAe networkaffiliated stationand
thenon-commercial{5) educational
station.
(8) Q And usingCableData
Corporation'sdata(7) you would know
exactlywhich signalthe independent
(8) was;you' knowif itwasWTBS or
WGN.
(9) A Yes.
(io) Q Soyoucould sumup all thefees
thatTom (11) Larsongenerated-that
CableDataCorporationfor (12) WTBS.
(13) A Yes.
(14) Q And that'sessentiallywhatthis
Is.
(15) A Yes.
(ie) Q Is this methodattributingthe
basic(17) royalties'? I meanis it a
reliablemethod?Whatdoes(18) it give
us? It's not really anaverage,is it?
What (19) doesit presentUs, in terms
of, howdo we getfrom (2O) themoney
thatgoesin to what'shere?
(21) A Basicallywe'elooking at how
carriage(22) generatesroyalties. So
I carrya full-time, distant(23)
independentstation,andthat'sthe
only signal I (24) carrythenall the
royaltiesthat I paywould (25)
presumablybepaid for thatsignal. If
I carrytwo
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(1) full-time distantindependents,
thenthosetwo signals(2) because
theyeachhave1.0 DSEwould each
have(3) generatedhalf of thetotal
royaltypayment.
(4) Q And this is themethodthat
CableData(5) Corporationhascome
up with to allocatethis?
(8) A I believethis wasevenusedby
people(7) prior to CableData
Corporationin the1978and '79 (8)
proceedings.
(9) Q And it's theprocedureweall rely
on to (1O) figure outhow muchis
allocated'
(11) A It haebeencustomaryin the
past,yes.
(i2) Q Now in your report,page19
please.The(is) sentenceactually
startsatthebottomof page18,"In(14)
contrastindependentscarriedthebase
gradecost(15) cableoperatorson
averageonly 4 to 13centsper(ie)
subscriberpermonth. Thecostfor
networkaffiliate (17) hasrangedfrom 1

to 3.25cents.'18)Canyou readthe
nextsentence,please,out (19) loud.
(2o) A No singlefigure canbegiven
for basic(21) royaltiesbecausethey
areassessedon a sliding scale(22)
dependingon thetotal numberof
distancesignals(23) carry."
(24) Q And canyou explainwhatyou
meantby (25) that?
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(1) A Yee. Whereasbeforewe sa'y,
in theother(2) half of theparagraphI

saythat,because3.75signals(S) are
assessedatthe3.75ratewe can
calculatethat (4) thattrhnslatetIIinto '0centson average'per'ignali(5)per'ubscriber. But signalscarriedat
thebasicrate(8) arepaid for in a
decliningscale,sothatthefirst (7)
signalthat'scarriedis chargedatthe'893percent (8) rate;thesecond
throughfourth signalis chargedat
(9) asomewhatlowerrate,and'ignalsafterthefourth (1O) signalare
chargedatanevenlower rate. So
there's(11) notaunique'umberthat'e

couldsayis whatthecdst(&2) of
a particularsignalis. ItIdepends I

uponwhereit (1S) is andhowmany
signalsarecarriedovei'all.'14)

Q Right. Andyou're'getting'those'ates,(15) .893,from Exhibit10,
pageii'?
(1e) A They'estatutoryi,
(i7) Q I'm lookingatpage11.
(18) A I believethat'sright.'t'the'op.of.(19).page11of Prbgrltm 'uppliers10-X there'sblockcalled
(2o) "ComputingtheBaseRiate',Fe»",
andtheygivethe(21) percentage
royalty ratesfor thefirst DSE, the(22)
second,third andfourth DSE,andI
thenonesbeyond(2S) numberfour.
(24) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: What
pageis that, (25) pleaee?

'age485
(1) THE WITNESS: Page11of
Program(2) Suppliers,10-X.
(3) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: AII

right. Let me (4) understandthis.'ou'e

sayingto us,asI understand(5)
theotherwitnessdid too, thattherewas
abaserate(e) appliedto anycable
systemthatpicksupasignal,m thatis
ableto pick upasignalwhetheror not it
(8) picksupasignal.
(9) THE WITNESS: All cablesystems
are(1o) requiredto payacompulsory
license.
(11) ARBITRATOR FARMIAKlbES: That I

baserateis (12) calculatedonafurmula
providedby law.
(13) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(14) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: The I

grossreceipts(15) will changeIn
accordancewith-Thegrossreceipts
(ie) determinewhatthatbasalfeelwill
be?
(17) THE WITNESS: That'srlghti.
(18) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Now
in additionto (19) thatyou havea3.?I5?
(2o) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(21) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: That
is calculated(22) onanotherforrrIula
givenby this particularexhibit, (2s) this
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SA-3.
{24) THE WITNESS: Y'es.
{25) ARBITRATOR 'FAAMAKIDES
Haveyousaid
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(1) gnythingl differentfrom thatatany
time? That'swhat(2) I understoodyou
to say.
(3) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(4) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Is
thereariything (5) differentthatyou
havein inind, counsel?'8)

MR. COSENTINO: No. I'm just
trying to (7) clarify Someof'this.
(8) THE WITNESS: I guesswhat'
being(9) discussedhei'eie thefactthat,
i'f we look at the (1O) bablefundan8
forgetaboutthe3.75fdr a JnoItient,(1'I)
Ilvhe'n ro'yaltlesarecalculatedthe
royalty ratethat's(i 2) paid for a
particularsi'gnaldeclinesthemore
signals(13) theoperatIlIrckrrids.'i4)ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Yes,
that"sclear.(15) w; That'sall thatwas
beingsaid.
(ie) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
That'sall.
(17) MR. COSENTINO.'II.LeIInietIx,
onequestion(18) on this. In thepast
hasn'tthetribunaltreatedthe(19)
differentfeesgeneratedby eachclass
royaltyasa (20) differejit fIjnd,~ 3.7I5
fund, thebasicroyalty fun'? (2i) And
peoplehaveaskedin their'claims 'for a
certain(22) percentageof different
funds?
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) MR. COSENTINO: And isn'tpart
of that(25) justbecausethey'e
calculateddifferentlyaind it's i
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(1) easierto calculateandhan'diethem
differentlyas(2} separateitemis,oir is I

theresomeotherreasonfor (3) keeping
themseparate?
(4) THE WITNESS: Well there's'ifferent(5) eligibility in the3.75fund
thanthereis in the (8) basicfuhd.'omeclaimantshaveho eligibilit}? in
them 3.75fund. And theremaybe
liffsirenhes'Inthe-Andi (8) theIie
certainlyaredifferencein the
bompositionof (9) signalcarriagein the
3.75fund from thebasicfund. (1O) Not
all signalsthatarecarIiied iin tlte Hasie
fund (1 1) alsogetcarriedon the3.75
basis.Soto theextent(12) to'whi'ch
thoSedifferenceandtheuompoeitian
of (13) signalsreflectsdifferencesin
contentthenthereImag(14) allso6e I

reasonsfor havingdiflierehtatvarls. i

(15) BY MR. COSENTINO'.
(ie) Q Comingbackto this page19,
whereyousay(i 7) thai avtlIrageof only
4 to'13oentepersubsItribhrplsr (fs) i

month,howdid yducbmeupIwith this
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rangeof 4 to 13? (i 9) Justroughly. You
don'thaveto recomputeit here.
(20) A Right.
(21) Q I meanhow would you comeup
with a (22) minimum anda maximum
general'
(23) A I believewhat I did wasfind
theaverage(24) numberof OSEs.
Well no. I think what I did was I (25)
found theaveragegrossreceipts
andthenappliedthe
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(1) ratesin thestatute,so thatthe
13centsrefersto (2) .893percentof
thegrossreceiptsof anaverage(3)
system,andthe4centsappliesto the
.265percent.
(4) Q Soyou could calculatea
maximumand (5) minimum by saying,
okay, this is the top of thescale(6) and
this is thebottomof thesliding scale,
andthe (7) mostthatcould be paid for a
signalwould be this (6) .893percent
andthe leastthatcould bepaid is the
(9) .265.
(10) A Right.
(11) Q Dr.Lemieux, I wantto change
topicsa (12) little now. On page28of
your report,this concerns(13) regional
distributionof flagshipstationsand
super(14) stations.Takingastepback
from this, you testified (15) earliertoday
abouthow distantsignalsare(16)
transmitted. I think we heardthree
ways;satellite,(17) microwaveand
antennaon a mountain.
(16) Is thatthebasicmethod? Is that
going (19) to really covermostof it?
(20) A I believeso,yes.
(21) Q Are you awareof limitations in
antennas(22) or microwave
transmissionthatmight makeit (23)
unfeasiblefor a signalto betransmitted
distantly (24) overgreatdistances,Say,
asystemin SanDiego (25) could not
pick up overtheair a Bostonsignal,
right?
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(1) A No, it couidn't.
(2) Q And probablythesamewith
microwave?
{3) A No, microwaveI don'
necessarilythink (4) would bethe.
casebut I don'treally know, I'm an
(5) engineer.
(6) Q But would limitationsof thattype
on over {7) theair transmission,
whetherit's by VHF or by (8)
microwave,could thatpossibiyaccount
for why non- (9) superstationshave
suchheavycarriagewithin the(10)
sameregion,just that it's moreeasyto
getthe (i i) signal in thesameregion?
(i2) A Thatmaybea reason,yes; I

don'tthink (13) it's theonly reason.
(14) Q And I think earliertodayyou
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attributed(15) thesuccessof super
stationsto thecarriageof (16) sports
and their presenceon satellite.
(17) A Yes.
(16) Q Is thatcorrect'? And TBS seems
to bethe (19) leadsuperstationby far.
Is thata fair-
(20) A That'sa fair characterization,
yes.
(21) Q Do you think thereareother
reasons(22) besidessportscarriage
andsatellitecarriagethat (23) TBS
might besosuccessful?
(24) A Theremaybe.
(25) Q Are you awareof-TBS is owned
by Turner
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(1) Broadcasting,is thatcorrect?
(2) A That'strue,yes.
(3) Q And don'ttheyalsoown TNT
andCNN?
(4) A Yes.
(5) Q And CNN HeadlineNews?
(6) A I believeso,yes.
(7) Q And I think theCartoon
Network?
(6) A I think so,yes.
(9) Q Could thepossibilityof
packaging(i 0) arrangementswhereby
someonecarriesTBS theygeta (11)
betterdealon theseothernetworks,
could thatkind (12) of thing effectthe
carriageof WTBS on a national(13)
basis?
(14) A I'm not really thewitnessto
askthis (is) stuff, I don'tknow.
(16) Q Well, you aresuggestingthough
thatthere(17) arereasonsthatthese
arecarriedso much,andyou (is) did
analysison why WTBS wasso
important,and it's at (16) the top of all
yourcharts. Haveyou lookedatany
(20) otherreasonotherthanjustsports?
(21) A No, I didn'tseemy role here
astrying to (22) characterizewhy
cableoperatorsmakethedecisions
(23) thattheydo. There'sgoing to be
a lot of other(24) evidencein the
tribunalsbeforethepanelto discuss
(25) that.
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(1) Q So on asimilar basishaveyou
considered(2) theeffectthatsaycable
systemownership,Turner(3)
Broadcastingwould haveon whetheror
notthecable(4) systemswould carry
it?
(5) A No, I didn't look atanyof
thesekind of (6) issues.
(7) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
Dr.Lemieux,would (8) therebeany
relationshipbetweenastationanda (9)
systemanda tie in arrangementfrom
selling-the(10) relationshipbetween
thestationandthecablenetwork(11) of
joint ownership,andthesellingof the
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cable(12) networkprogramwhich is in
cablesystemsandTBS?
(13) THE WITNESS: I honestlydon'
know, Your (i4) Honor. Theremay be,
but I'm not-I don'tknow (15) enough
aboutthecontractualarrangements
thatWTBS (16) haswith its client
systems.As I say, I suspect{17) there
areotherwitnessesthataregoing to
testify (16) thatwou!d knowaboutthis
than I do.
(ie) MR. COSENTINO: Well,
Dr,Lemieux, I think (20) that'sall I have.
(21) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Can
I raisea (22) question?
(23) Counsel,you askedthewitness
whetheror (24) not therewerethree
methodsof transmission;mountain(26)
top, themicrowaveandsatellite.
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(1) Why did you omit theseoptic fibers,
(2) becausetheywould automatically
putthemthrougha (3) cablesystem?
Assumingnowthatthesenewoptic (4)
fibersaregoingto becarrying
tremendousamountsof (5) these
signals,you excludethembecause
theyarein (6) cableform? Is thatwhat
youweresuggesting?
(7) THE WITNESS: No, I justdon'
think {6) they'eacommonmethodof
distributingdistant(6) signals. I maybe
wrong,but I don'tbelieveso.
(10) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES.'AII
right. That's(11) goodenough. I just
wantto know.
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Were
you referring (13) to overtheair
signals?
(14) THE WITNESS: I'm referringto,
right, the (15) importationof distant
signals.
(16) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: And
insofaras(17) you'econcernthat
meansovertheair signals?
(16) THE WITNESS: Right. What I

meanby a (ie) distantsignalis a
broadcaststationin someother(20)
market.
(21) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Thankyou.
(22) MR. COSENTINO: That'sall.
(23) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Any
furthercross(24) examination?
(25) MR. CAMPANELLI: The
DevotionalClaimants
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(1) haveno questions.
(2) MR. NEIMAN: We haveveryvery
briefly, (3) director.
(4) REDIRECTEXAMINATION

(5) BY MR. NEIMAN:
(6) Q Dr.Lemieux,do you haveNAB
Exhibit1-X m in front of you?
(8) A Yes.
(9) Q Takea look at this exhibit. What
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orderiioi arethesest@lanslisted in
here?
(11) A Theyarelisted by thetotal
numberof (12) distantcable
subscribersthatareableto watch
them.
(13) Q And I noticethatthere'sa
column,Total (1 4) FeeGen. Whatdoes
thatreferto?
(is) A In Larson'sparlanceit's the
sumof ail (is) basicand3.75percent
royaltiesthathehasallocated(17) to
thosesignals.
(18) Q And hedoesthatbasedon the
way the (18) cableoperatorsfill outtheir
forms?
(2o) A Right. He doesn' do anyof
the (21) reallocationof basicand3.75
royaltiesthat I do for (22) systems
thatcarrya 3.75signal.
(23) Q Okay. But lookingatthetotal
FeeGen (24) column,on this pagewhat
systemhadthehighesttotal (2S) fee
generators?
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(i) A Whatsignal?
(2) Q Whatsignal?Yes. Thankyou.
(s) A WTBS.
(4) Q And aboutwhatwas its total?
(s) A Justshortof $40million.
(8) Q And whatwasthenextone?
P) A WGN at$20million, andthen
WWOR at (8) $10million.
(8) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Are
you looking at (1 0) Total Fees
Generated?
(ii) rHE WITNESS: I'm looking inthe
Total Fee(12) Generatedcolumn. It'
thesixth or seventhcolumn(13) over in
themiddleof thepage.
(14) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Oh, I

see,theother(is) oneis just local fee.
(18) THE WITNESS: Right. There'sa
local (17) column,andMr.Larsanfails to
giveusenoughroom (18) hereto see
this spacebetweenthesubscriber
number(ie) andthebeginningof the
feenumber.
(20) MR. NEIMAN: And thenthenext
two down (21) arePIX andSBK about
$1.5million each?
(22) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(23) BY MR. NEIMAN:
(24) Q And soamongstthosetop five
you havea (25) total of about
$70million, $71million?
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(1) A A little over$70million, yee.
(2) Q And aboutwhatpercentageof
thetotal (3) royaltiespaidby all the
systemsfor thesecond(4) accounting
period in '92,wasthat$71million?
(5) A Give mea secondfor that.
(8) We had$88million in basicand
$22millon (7) in 3.75. Socollectively
therewaaabout$90rnillion (8) paid
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percarriage,andsothi's about7/9,
which I (9) guessis 77 or 78percent,
somethinglike that.
(io) Q So thesefive superstations
accountedfor (i1) about78percentaf
theroyaltiesgenerated?
(12) A Roughly,yes.
(1 3) Q And if youwanted'tocontinue
downthe (14) list andputthem in order
to getthetop tenon (1S) Laraon'Slist,
howwould thatgo? Whatwould~ bethe'18)nextane?
(17) A It appearsthenextoneis
CBUT in (18) Vancouver& And then I

think thenextone, it looksto (1e) be
WNAB in Lorraine. Is thatcorrect?
(20) Q Yes.
(21) A That$512,000.
(22) Q Sothat'snumberSeven?~

(23) A That'snumberseven.Number
eight is (24) KTLA.
(2S) Q And that'soneof thesuper
stations?
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(1) A Yes. And numbernineI guess
is WFLD in (2) Chicago. And number
ten is KTVT in FortWorth.
(3) Q Soof thetop ten in fees
generatedon (4) Larson'Slist hetje, 'evenof themaresuperstations?
(s) A Yes.
(8) Q And thetop five arlr super~
stations?
p) A Yea.
(8) MR. NEIMAN: Nothingfurtheraf
this (8) witness,Your Honor.
(ia) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I guess
maybeI have(ii) onequestion.
(12) You submittedatabl'ehare,92 'egional(13) Distributionof Carriage,
Rayaltlesfor sports(14) Flagship
Stations.
(15) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(18) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: ls there
a (17) conclusionto bedrawnfrom that
or is thatmerethe(18) infarm'ation?'ie)THE WITNESS: Well the
conclusionis that(2O) outsideof the
threeoriginal superstations,by far (21)
thebulk of distantsignalcarriageof the ~

restof (22) theseflagshipstationsis to
cablesystemsthatare(23) notall that
farawayfrom thelocationof theTV (24)
station. This goesto adlecussidnthat
yougentlemen(25) hadyesterday,
about-Ithink it hadto dowith the
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(1) questionabouthow interestedIt

would besomebodyin (2) Seattle,
Washingtonto watchaWashington
Bullets (3) basketballgame.
(4) Theevidenceheresuggests,
leavingaside(5) thetop threesuperi

stations,that'safairly uncommon(e)
occurrence.That is, it's Aot theWse
thatthe local m stationthatbroadcastsi
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theWashingtonBullets games(8) ',is

beingcarriedto Seattle,W'ashington.
This'8) suggestsit's beingcarriedto
othersystemsthatare(1a) in the
Mid-'Atlantic region'whichpresumably
hasfans(11) thatareof interestin the
WashingtonBullets.
(12) 'othat,while it's thecasethatthe
top (13) threesignalsh'ave'natfondf
distribution',ande0en(1 4) therewe can
Seethatfor instanceMANOR andWGN
in (15) facthavea lot of theirdistribution
in theirown (18) region'asWelf', ouhfde
of thosesignalsmastpeople(17) who
arewatchingadistantsigriaf a'e 'atchinga (18) distant'sighalfrom
someplacethat'snotail thatfar (i 3)
awayto'them. '2O)

I meanfor instance,there'are'many
(21) systemsthatareoutsidethe35mlle
zonebutmight (22) certainlybewithin
40 or50milesof thecable(2S)'system,
of the localstation. Those,are,all,
distant(24) Subscribersfrom thepoint
of view of the Iaw and(25) copyright
royalties,butthey'enetall thatfar
away
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(1) from thesignaleither.
(2) I grewup in atownthatwas'0miles(3) southof Boston,andatthe
lowerendof my town Some(4) pebpleif

theywereoncablewould havebeen
distant(5) to theBostonTV stations
becausethe line is (8) partiallydistant
again. But thatdidn'tmeanthatwe P)
weren'tRedSoxfans. That'sourcity;
thosewerethe (8) teamsthatwewere
I'oyal to. Saweweredistaht(9)
subscribersfrom thepointof view of
the law, butwe (10) certafrflyweren'tall
thatfar awayfrem theTV (11) stationor
theteams.
(12) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI'. With
regardto the(13) distantsignalsthen~

andtherelationshipwith sports,(14)
sinceit's mainly regionit would seem
thatsports(15) programsthat'are'on
thesuperstationswouldn'thave(18)
muchsignificanceto thepeoplewho ~

arewatchingthem.(17) Theydon',ttake
thestationsout in Washington,only,
(18) 9percentof WGN gaeloUtsideof
theregion,and(is) 15perpentafWOR
goesoutof theregion,'20)

THEWITNESS: Right. But 'ememberwhat(21) Commissioner
Sternsaidyesterday,that if thatwere
(22).reallytruethentherewouidn'tbe
anynetwork(23) carriageof sporting
eventseither. Why would NBC (24)
Wantto carlyagamebetweenthe
ChicagoBulls and,the(25)Washington .

Bulletsto theentirecauntryif ithey
'age499

(1) didn'tthink thatpeoplein otherparts.
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of thecoUntry (2) wantedto seethe
eventbecausetheyenjoyedwatching
(s) basketballperseasopposedto-I
mean,certainly (4) there'sa lot of
informationaboutloyalty to teams,(5)

butpeoplearealso interestedin

watchingthesport(5) itself for the
purposeof becausetheyenjoy
watching(7) thesport. And the
networkstakeadvantageof that. (s)
Theybroadcastnation-widecoverage
of eventsbetween(9) two particular
local teams.
(io) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay, I

haveno (11) questions.Anyoneelse?
(12) Thankyou very much. We
appreciateyour (1S) testimony.
(14) THE WITNESS: Thankyou,
gentlemen.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Before
thenext(is) witnesswe cantakecare
of someof thoseotheritems(17) and
thenwe'l takeabreak.
(is) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Thefirst
matteris (is) thequestionof the
motions. I believetheymentioned(20)
they ruled on thempreviously,and
therewasa (21) questionyesterday
concerningtheJointSports(22)
Claimantsand I told youwhattheruling
was. We (2S) still don'thaveit In printed
form for acoupleof (24) reasons,not
particularlynoteworthy. But wedo
have(25) thoserulings. We'l issue
themorally now, andthey
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(i) will befollowed assoonaswe can
with awritten (2) order.
(s) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well
thepanelhas(4) reachedadecision
thusfar, only with respectto the (5)
motionsaddressedto thedirectcases
of theJoint (5) SportsClaimantsand
theNationalAssociationof (7)
Broadcasters.We expectto beableto
giveyou (5) rulings relativelysoonon
the remainingones,butwe (9) address
thesefirst becausetheycomeup
soonest.
(i o) Thesewereall ProgramSuppliers'otions

(11) to strikeonavarietyof
grounds.With regardto the(12)
NationalAssociationof Broadcasters'irect

casethe(is) four motionsthat
werereferredto thepanelby the (14)
copyrightoffice areall denied,eitheron
themerits(i5) or asmoot.
(15) With respectto thedirectcaseof
the(17) JointSportsClaimants,all but
oneof themotionsis (ie) strikedor
denied,andtheonethatis grantedwas
the (is) onecharacterizedunder
subparagraphE-6of the (2O) copyright
office orderedNovember7.That
motionwas(2i) directedto pages10to
11 of theBoard'stestimony(22) and

Tabie1 concerningtheDenver'95
channelguide. (2S) Thatmotion is
grantedon relevancygrounds.All the
(24) othermotionsaredenied.And as
JudgeJiganti(25) indicated,awritten
orderwill beavailableshortly
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(1) with brief explanations.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Thereis
pendinga (s) motionaddressed
concerningtheJointSupport,andwe
(4) haveno responseyet. Will therebe
a responseto it?
(5) MR. GARRETT: Therewill bea
response,(5) Your Honor. We hopeto
geton file for tomorrow(7) morningwith
thecourt'sindulgence.
(8) MR. STEWART: Your Honor, if
you'e(9) referringto themotionwe
receivedyesterdayfrom (1O) Mr.Lane,
movingto strikethe resultsof the1990
(11) cableoperators'urvey,wealso
seekleaveto respond(12) to that
becausewe rely on thatstudyaspartof
our (1S) directcase,and I think thatmay
bethecasewith (14) respectto other
partiesaswell.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI; Well
anyway,it (ie) suggeststo me is that,
oneof thepartieswill file (17) the
responsetomorrow. Ourquestionis
whendoyou (is) wantusto rule upon.
And to knowthatwe haveto (19) know
whenyou'ehandingtheresponse.
(20) MR. GARRHT: Mr.Chairman,Mr.
Trautman(21) will beavailableto testify
assoonasMr.Bortz's is (22) done,so
obviouslythere'saneedfor usto
respond(2S) andyou to issuea ruling
beforethen.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
saidyouwill (25) haveit tomorrow
morning. Theotherpartieshere,
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(1) whenthey'l havetheir responsesin.
(2) MR. STEWART: Wewould have
preferredmore(s) timegiventhe
circumstances,butwewill file a (4)
responsetomorrowmorningaswell.
(5) CHAIAPEASONJIGANTI: All right.
Anyone(5) else?
m MR. GERSCH: I recognizeit'

eadyin the(8) proceedingand I think
weall appreciatethe (9) decisiveness,
andwith respectto thedecisionsto (io)
grantthemotionto striketheMile High
table,I (11) guesswe'ein a little bit of a
quandary.Had this (12) beengranted
by thecopyrightofficewecouldhave
(1S)goneoutto microfilm andtried to
replaceit with (14) something.I know
theMPAA which madethatmotion (15)
yesterdayquestionedwith respectto
thesameline (16) takenfrom
yesterday's"New York Times',with
respect(17) to CommissionerStern,as

LE ROYALTY FUNDS xMAxe5)

amatterof courseI would (18) be
loathedto evermakea requestlike this.
I would (is) just like to moveto
reconsideron this onepoint, (2o)
becausewe'ein apositionwherethis
is theexhibit (21) that'sin hiscase.
He'spreparedto testifyto 1995(22)
similar in 1992,typicaland illustrative.
(2S) Again, theMPAA did use
yesterday',the (24) sameline up for
NewYork stationfrom yesterday'-
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
Withoutobjection.
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(1) MR. GERSCH: I'm sorry?
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: They
usedit without (s) objection.
(4) MR. GEASCH: That'scorrect.
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: But
there'sbeenan (5) objectionraisedin
this case.
(7) MR. LANE: I mightaddthis also
wasnot (s) a line up of, cablesystems,it
wasa list of cable(9) networks.
(io) MA. GEASCH: It's justa-
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We'e
not in a (12) positionto considerit. If

you haveamotionfor (1S)
reconsideration,file yourmotionfor
reconsideration,(14) andmakeit, and
we'l rule on it. Becauseof the (15)
circumstanceswe'l ruleon it asquickly
aswe (1 5) possiblycan,
(17) MR. GERSCH: I understand,Your
Honor,and(is) I appreciateit. I only
raiseit now because(19) Mr.Bortz is
here. Thankyou.
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Tile
nextorderof (21) businessis the
questionof theexhibits,andthe (22)
exactquestionraisedis whenis an
exhibitadmitted.
(2S) MR. GEASCH: That'scorrect.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Under
therules(25) here,I hadachanceto
checkhim. I wasunderthe
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(1) impressiontherewasarule;
25146(g).Therearetwo (2) rules
actually(g) and (k).
(s) Thefirst rule (g), 'All written
testimony(4) andexhibitswill be
receivedinto the record,except(5) any
to which thepanelsustainsan
objection. No (5) separatemotionwill
berequired."m ThenextoneIs (k).
'Documentsthathave(8) notbe
exchangedin advancemaybeshown
to the(9) witnessoncrossexamination.
Howevercopiesof such(io)
documentsmustbedistributedto the
panelandto (11) otherparticipants,
whethercounseladhering,before(i2)
beingshownto thewitnessatthetime
of cross(is) examination,unlessthe
panelobjectsotherwise.'14)Well
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we'ehada few of thoseproblems
here.(is) "If thedocumentis not or will

not be (16) supportedby awitnessfor
thecrossexaminingparty (i 7) that
documentcanbe'usedsolelyto
impeachthe (18) witnessesdirect
testimony,and it canon itself be (19)
relied uponin findings of factas
rebuttingthe (2O) witness'irect
testimony. Howeverupon leavefrom
(21) thepanelthedocumentmaybe
admittedasevidence(22) withouta
sponsoringwitnessif official noticeis
(23) properor if in thepanel'sview the
crossexamined(24) party is theproper
sponsoringwitness."(2S)Thosearethe
rules I think we'ebound
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(1) by, andthequestionconcernswhat
exhibitsnowarewe (2) talkingabout.
(3) MR. GERSCH: The reasonI raised
the (4) questionwasbecausetherehad
beenno motion, until (5) today,with
respectto anyof theMPA's cross(6)
examinationexhibits,and I had in mind
theexact(7) provisionYour Honor
cited. Then I believetherewas(8) a
reference-Imayhavemisheard
Mr.Lane-toone(9) of theexhibits
yesterday.I thoughthe referredto (io)
it ashavingbeenintroducedinto
evidence,andmy (11) understanding
wasnothinghadbeenintroducedInto
(12) evidenceyesterday,andtheonly
thing thatwas (1 3) introducedwas
introducedtoday.
(i4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: The
only ones(is) introducedtodaywere
thetwo DSE reports,andthose(16) are
Exhibitsgand10. I havethe right
numbersan (17) that?
(18) MR. GERSCH: That'smy
understanding,Your (19) Honor.
(aa) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Those
werethetwo (21) wewereaskedto take
official noticeof.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We
wereaskedto (23) take,buttheywere
offeredasexhibitstoday. I (24) think
Mr. Laneofferedthemasanexhibit.
(25) Am I correct,Mr.Lane?
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(1) MR. LANE: Yes.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: All right.
And was(3) thereanobjectionto them?
(4) MR. GERSCH: Not here.
(s) CHAIAPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
Sothosetwo (8) exhibitswill be
admittedinto evidence.
p) Now, asI understandnowthere
areno (8) otherMr.Lane'sexhibitsthat
havebeenaskedto be (9) admittedinto
evidenceatthis time. Am I correct?
(io) MR. LANE: I'l makeiteasy. I'l
move(ii) theadmissionof Exhibits 1

through8-X, Program(12)

Suppliers'STRIBUTION
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document?
(11) MR STEWART'othis is
approximatelya (12) 20 pageprintoutof
whlah I providedthefirst page(13) and
aboutwhich I questionedDr.Lemieux
on theentire(14) pr'intout.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: What
areyouasking(16) to haveadinitted
into theevidence,thos'etw'o pagesor
(17) thosein theentireSupportingI

document?:
(18) MR. STEWART: Plerhkps'IsHould
do it in (19) thecontext'ofIIanding'you
thecompletecopywhi'ch (20) I'l da
tomarrowmorning.
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTII I think
It'd bea (22) betteridea. S'oyou can

Exhibits1 through8-X.
(13) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Doyau
wish to make(14) objections'tothose
exhibits?
(1s) MR. GERSCH: Yes,Your Honor,
with regard(16) to Exhibit8-X', I b'elieve'hatthere'sno sponsoring(17) witness
for thatexhibitandweobjectto its (18)
admissionwithoutasponsoring
witness. It wasn't(19) shownto us in
discoveryon theevidenae. ~

(ao) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That'
theonly one(21) you'eobjectingto?
(22) MR.GERSCH: No,3-XasWell.'23)

CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Thefirst
onewe'l (24) considerwill be8-X.
(25) MR. LANE: 8-X, Your Honor.
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(1) CHAIRPEASONJIGANTI: And the
basis?
(2) MR. NEIMAN: Mr.Lane
representedthathe (3) would pravid'ea
sponsoringwitnesslater,'ndour (4)
understandingls that it's natadmitted
andshouldn't(s) beadmitteduntil he
doesSo.
(6) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
However,uponme,p) from thepanel
thedocumentmaybeadmittedas(s)
evidencewithoutasponsoringwitness
if official (9) noticeis properor ifIin the I

panel'sview thecross(io) examined
witnessis thepropersponsoring
witness.
(11) So Mr.Lane,your response?
(12) MR. LANE: I indicatedwebring in
a (13) sponsoredwitness.
(14) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: $osIt
thepresent(is) time-
(16) MR. LANE: Imove-ifwedan't
comeup (17) with asponsoring
witness.
(18) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: At the
presenttime (19) themotion is denied,
whichyouwill representyour (20)
motionatasubsequenttime.
(21) Now theother-
(aa) MA. GEASCH: I'l withdrawmy
objection(23) for thebthhrekhiblit. I

(24) CHAIRPEASONJIGANTI: Sothe',
only exhibit (as)thatis notthen
admittedthenis Exhibit8.

Page508
(1) Okay,verygood.
(2) MR. STEWART: Mr.Chairman,I
alsofollow (3) upandmovefor the
admissionof NAB-1992Exhibit 'I-X.',(4),
That'ssupplementedwith the
remainderof thepages(s) which I'l do
tomorrowwith Dr.Lemieuxasthe(6)
sponsoringwitness.
m MR. NEIMAN: Aslangasthe
entire(8) documentis submittedwe
haveno objection.
(9) ARBITRATOA WEATHEIM:, You'e
talkingabout(10) the390page I

withdrawthat
(23) MR. sTEwART: I 'withdrawthat.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:
Anything further?(25) We'l taketen
minutes.

'Page509'1)(Whereupon,theproceedings
wentoff the (2) recordat2I00 p.m'.and
resumedat2:18p.m.)
(3) MR. GEASCH.'JointSports
Claimantscall (4) Mr. PauliBoltz. (5) I

Whereupon,
(6) PAUI.I. BORTZ p) wascalledasa
witness'and,havingfiret beenI'duly (8)
sworn,wasexaminedand~testifiedas
follows:.
(9) DIRECT EXAMINATION
(10) BY MR. GERSCH:
(11) Q Would you Stateyour name,sir?
'(12)' My nameis PaulBortz.
(13) ~ Q How areyou employed?
(14) A I am Presidentof Bortzand
Company,(is) Incorporated'.
(16) Q Whattypeof businessis Bortz
andCompany(17) engagedin?
(1S) A WeareconsultantsItt
broadcasting,cable,l(19) anld
prafosaioaalsports,I

(20) Q I understandfrom yourwritten
testimony(21) thatyou representa
numberof televisionindustry(22) trade
'assbciations.Couldyou tell uswhat
someaf (23) thosearel?
(24) A Yea. We representa fairly .

broadrangeof (25) trade
associations,havedonework for
them. Thia
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(1) includootho NationalAs'oociatibn
,of Broadcasters,.thai(2) National
CableTelevisionAssociation,the
Cable(3) Toloviaiott.Administrative
andMarketingSociety.,I ( think .

:theyhave;recentlychangedthenam~
slightly, (s) but it is basicallythe .

marketingprofessionalsociety(8) of
cabletelevision. APTS,which is
America'oPublicm.Telovieioti

,
'Statiotta,fopfosenting1he individual
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non- (8) commercialstationsin the
country. We havedonework (9) for
PBS,Public BroadcastingService,
andfor CPB, (1o) Corporationfor
public Broadcastingaswell. Those
(11) arethenationalassociationsthat
we represent.
(12) Q Generallyspeaking,whattypeof
work do (13) you do for thosetrade
associations?
(14) A Thosehavetendedto be
studiesthathave(15) addresseda
numberof broadissuesthathappen
to be(15) of interestto themat the
time. Forexample,the (17) National
CableTelevisionAssociation,wedid
two (15) majorpiecesof work. One
addressedthecomingof (19)
competitionto cablefrom sources
suchastelephone(20) companies,
directbroadcastsatellites,wireless
(21) cables,socalledwirelesscable,
awayof (22) transmittingovertheair
a numberof channels,
(23) We alsofor theNationalCable
Television(24) Associationin
associationwith Arthur Andersen
and (25) Company,did a multi-year
studywhich wasthecable
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(1) operatingperformance
benchmarks.With that,wework (2)
with mostof themajorcable
companiesin developing(3) a
detailedanalysisof both theircosts
andtheir (4) revenues.Thenthatwas
aggregatedin a numberof (5)
differentwaysandgivento all of the
companiesalong (5) with certain
customstudiessothattheycould
seehow m effectivelytheirsystems
wereperformingwhenput (5) against
othersystems.
(9) ForAPTS,we havemost
recentlycompleted(10) somework
looking at thepotentialandsomeof
the (11) implicationsof having
advertisingon public (12) television.
We did essentiallya futureof public
(13) televisionstudyfOr them,which
wasthenreprintedby (14) themand
widely distributedacrossthe
country,(15) looking atall of the
challengesfacingpublic (18)
television. Thiswasbeforethenew
Congresswas(17) elected,butthey
werereallyanticipatingthekinds(18)
of issuesthattheynow facein terms
of continuation(19) of funding.
(20) FortheNationalAssociationof
(21) Broadcasters,we lookedat
sportson television.(22) Again, a
reportthatwasverywidely
circulated. It (23) lookedat the
implicationsto a televisionstationof
(24) thecarriageof sports.We talked

abouthow you go (25) about
negotiatinga sportsdeal,how you
go about
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(1) determiningwhattherightsmight
be,whatkey terms(2) andconditions
would be in there,whatadvantages
(3) accrueto televisionstations
throughthecarriageof (4) sports,a
numberof elementslike that.
(5) Also for them,we did something
called (5) GreatExpectations,a
televisionmanager'sguideto m the
future,whichwasfocusedagainat
thestation(5) level. Thiswasdonein
themid-1980s,looking (9) forwardto
whattheyweregoing to befacing in
terms(1o) of competitionfrom cable
television,increasingcosts(11)
pressures,decreasingaudiences,a
numberof things(12) like that,a
future looking studythatwe did at
that(13) point.
(14) Q Haveyou alsohadoccasionto
work for (15) cableoperators?
(15) A Yes. We work frequentlywith
cable(17) operators.Ourclients
includeTCI, (15)
TelecommunicationsInc., which is
the largestcable(19) operator.Time
Warner,which is thesecond.Cox,
(2o) basedin Atlanta. Comcast,
which is anotherlarge(21) cable
operator.And companiessuchas
Providence(22) Journal,whenthey
hadcablesystems,which theyjust
(23) havesoldto ContinentalCable,
andTimesMirror (24) Corporation,
which hassold its systemsjust
recently(25) to CoxCable.
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(1) Somanyof themajorplayersare
clients(2) of ours.
(3) Q And I understandthatyourwork
for the(4) operatorsmaybemore
proprietaryandconfidential(5) thanthe
work for thetradeassociations,butcan
you (e) describeagainin ageneralway
whattypeof work it P) is you do for
cableoperators?
(8) A Well, a lot of thefocusrecently
hasbeen(9) onthecomingof
competition.We look for themat (10)
whatthelikelihood is of competition
in their (11) marketplace,whatthey
will befacing in termsof the(12)
needto providecertaintypesof
programming,what(13) their
strategiesmightberelatedto
pricing,how they(14) wouldgoabout
marketingIn thefaceof competition.
(15) Thisgetsdownto thevery
specificsystemlevel.
(15) Whenwedo this kind of work,
thesesay(17) havebeendonefor
specificgeographicclustersof (15)

systems.We work with peopleat the
systemlevel in (19) helpingthem
developplansto meetcompetition
that (2o) would becomingfrom
telephone,again,from wireless(21)
cableandfrom directbroadcast
satellite,like direct (22) television,
directTV.
(23) Q Do you alsohavebroadcast
station(24) clients?
(25) A We havea numberof
broadcaststation
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(1) clients. My oldestclient in terms
of continuous(2) relationshipis ABC,
AmericanBroadcastingCompany,(3)
whichwasthenacquiredby Capital
Cities,and is now (4) in theprocess
of beingacquiredby Disney. They
have(5) beena retainerclientof ours
since1979.
(5) Wework with themon avariety
of things,(7) network,broadcast
networkissues.You mayhaveseen
(5) in thenewspapertheir
announcementof a newscable(9)
channelwhichwasjust in thepaper
today. That is (1o) onethatwe
assistedthem in looking atthe
certain(11) aspectsof thatchannel
internationally.
(12) Wework with them in theirentry
into the (13) cablebusiness.In 1979,
1980,1981,ABC wasoneof (14) the
very first broadcastersto realizethat
they(15) shouldn'tdefinetheir
businessasbeinga (1e) broadcaster,
and insteadshoulddefinetheir
business(17) asbeing in the
televisionbusiness,and lot'sget(15)
into thecableside.
(19) As you mayor maynotbe
aware,theyown (2o) ESPN. We
assistedthem in valuing ESPNwhen
theymade(21) thepurchase.We
assistedthem in thestartupof (22)
Lifetime andArts andEntertainment
channels,which (23) arealsobasic
cablechannelsthatarelicensedto
(24) cableoperators.
(25) A numberof otherbroadcasters.
Wework
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(1) with thematthestationlevelas
well asbroader(2) strategicissues.
Wejust finishedsomemajorwork (3)
for theTelevisionOperatorsCaucus.
That is agroup(4) thatconsistsof
manyof themajortelevisiongroup
(5) owners,thatowngroupsof
stationsacrossthe(e) country. The
membersof theCaucusthat
participated(7) with us included
Tribune,which alsohasWGN, Cox
(5) Broadcasting,Meredith,Pulitzer,
a numberof other(9) largemajor
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broadcasts'ISSJ,@fXssacieteit
with the (io) Caucus.
(ii) We alsowork for theProvidence
Journal,(12) a companywhich is a
majorbroadcaster.
(13) Q Comingbackto thecable
industry,have(14) you donework for
whatwe referto ascablenetworks?
(15) A Yes. Cablenetworkshave
beenclientsof (15) oursfor a long
periodof time. We haveoverthe (1?)
yearsdonea substantialamountof
work for ESPN,the (18) sports
network. As I said,our first
acquaintancewas(is) whenABC
purchasedit, butwe havecontracted
(20) separatelywith themon a regular
basissincethenfor (21) a numberof
studies.
(22) Channelslike Lifetime, the
Weather(23) Channel,theTravel
Channel,E Entertainment,which is
(24) sortof ashowbusiness
entertainmentfocus,wehave(25)
workedwith themfrom theirstart-up.
And a large
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(i) numberof channelsthatarestill
trying to startup. (2) I couldgo
througha long list of that,butwe
work (s) with many,manycable
networks.
(4) Q WhenwasBortz andCompany
founded?Was (5) thatIn 1988?
(5) A It wasfoundedin 1988,yes.
m Q Couldyou give thepanela brief
sketchof (5) Whatyourexperiencewas
leadingUp to yourfounding(s) of Bortz
andCompany?
(io) A Yes. As wework backfrom
there,from (11) 1979to 1988, I was
theManagingDirectorof Brown (12)
BortzandCoddington,BBC. During
thattime, you may.(is)havenoticed
in my associateJim Trautman's
reportwe (14) conductedstudiesfor
theJointSportsClaimants.
(15) Thepracticeessentiallywasthe
sameas(ie) BortzandCompany. I

wastheChiefExecutiveONcer.(17)
We did work acrossawholehostof
areas,healthcaro,(is) economic
development,regionaleconomics
andenergy.(19) I decidedI wantedto
gotbackmy handson tho (20)
communicationsside. Sowesotup
BortzandCompany(21) in 1988. So
thatwae1070to 1088.
(22) In 1978and1979, I did my time
heroIn (23) WashingtonasDeputy
AssistantSecretaryof Commerce.
(24) Thatwasin theCarter
Administration. And actually(25)
camobackin early1978to combine
theold White House
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(i) Qffice gf TeiecoTiimunicatians
Policy into someelements(2) of the
Departmentof Commer'ce,'and
formedtheNational (3)
Telecommunicationsand
InformationAdministratiori, (4) NTIA,
whichstill existstodayJandis'the'xecutive

(5) Branch'schiefpolicy
makingadvisorto thePreslideht(II)
on communicationspolicy!
m Prior to that, I headedthel

Industrial(5) EconomicsDivision at
theUniversityof Denver(s) Research
Institute. It waswhile therein 1972
or (io) 1971 that I first blsgdntd dol
work in thetelevision(11) b'uslhesa
with my first client, in fact, beingthe
old (i2) White HouseOffice of
TelecommunicationsPolicy.
(is) Priorto theUniversityof Denver,i
I was(14) attheFordAe'rospac'eand
CommunicationsCorporation(15) in
NewportBeach,California. Thatwas
work thatwas(16) prlmkrilg rellste4to'issilesystemdevelop'rneht.'17)Q This is notthefirst timeyou have,
had(is) occasionto appearIn these
proceedings.Is that(is)'right?'20)A That is correct.
(21) Q Whenwasthefirst timeyduWere
involved (22) in doingastudyin
connectionwith theold CRT?
(23) A It wasthe1982proceeding,iI
believe,(24) thatoccurredin 1988or
somewherearoundthaitime (25) i

frame.
Page518

(1) Q What is it thattheJointSp'o|tS
Claimants(2) havebeenaskingyou to
do for themall these(S) years?
(4) A Whentheycameto ils tltey'aidwhatwould (5) bethebestway
to estimatetherelativelraluoof (5)
certaincategoriesof programming
thatarecarriedonp) distantsignals,
relativevalueto cablesystem(8) 'peratorssothatonecould
determineln asaccurate(9) aWay'as'ossiblehowyou mightallbcatothe
total (io) fundsthatarepaid Inihow a i

cableoperatorwould (is) alloeatoi
thosefundsamongthodifferent
catog0rico,
(12) Q If I canJustpursuehereai
questionthat(13) I believeoneof the
panelmembersaskedof Dr. (14)
Lemleuxwhenhewashole. Thil issue
of whether- (15) therewasaquestion
raisedthatconcernedwhy is'(ie)spOrts
programmingimportantif it ls thecase i

that(17) thenumberof hours'arelow
andtheratingsarelow. (15) The
questionI havefor you, Or., I,'m sorry,
Mr. (ie) Bortz, is whatis it thatmakes
sportsvaluable?
(20) A Will, wo work of coursewith a

E ROYALTY FUNDS .
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wide range(21) of programming,but
sportsis unique. It is live. It (22) is
now. There'sanemotional
involvementof the (23) viewerthat
you don'tgetwith otherkindsof (24)
Programming.It Is tdda))"sStark
today. so it is (25) solmethinlgthlat ia
veryspecialandvery importantin

Page519
(1) theachameof programming'asa
I esultof that.
(2) Q And is thevalueof programming
directfy (3) relatedto thenumberof
hoursit is oh theair or'its (4) ratings?
(5) ' No. 'I heardsomeof the
discussiona (5) little earlier. Of
courseI amacquaintedwith thep)
MPAA approach.Whenyou look at
programmingin terms(5) of',its lalue
to cableoperatorS,w'hichwasWhat
our'(s)chaige'waswasto do, it 'goes
far beyond. Certainly(id) ndt re/lated
atall to hours. To just run hoursof
Ii 1) 'programming,'sho rheslsurisof
value
(12) Therearemanycablenetworks
ontoday(13) thatgetlaughalsmlsll
audiencethatyou cah'tAver (14)
ineasuretheiraudienceor theymight
endup getting(15) ono-tenthof one
percentof 'the'householdsthathould
(15) watchthemto actuallywatch
them. Theymightrun24(17)hours'a~
day.
(is)! Well, youdon'tWantto ValUe
that24'(1S)'holirsof programmingon
a channelthatdrawsa (2o) minuscule
audiencethesam'oaayouWould
value(21) programmihgthatlbrihgsin
anaudience,notonly a (22) larger
audience,that is Only oneelement.'ut

an (23) audiencethat'isinvolved,
thatis excited,thatreads(24) about
theVery thing that is on thatnight.
Theyread(25) aboutit inithe
hewspaperduring theday. IThere IS
a

Page520,'1)pennantraCeor a

leaguer'hampionship cohteatthatis (2)
goingonthatpeoplolarel indoivtsd In
onacontinuing(3) basla.
(4) 'hatia fuhdamentallydNferent
theaother(5) kindsof telovlisloh
programming.Weworkiwith all of.(e):
those.Butwith sports,andwo often
got involved ia p) thevaluation'of
eporfa. Wo helpnegotiaterights(8)
dealsf'or sports.Weknowquite
clearly'thatthe(e) componentof
valuethoro is somethingthatgoes
far (10) beyondboththehoursand
thoviewing levelsof (1 i) sports.
(12) Q In yourpreparedtestimony,you .

compared(13) I think theresultsof your
studythatyoudid for the(i4) i1989
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proceedingandthe 1992proceeding.
Is that (15) correct?
(15) A That is correct.
(17) Q And you appearedbeforetheold
tribunal (1 5) in the 1989proceeding?
(is) AYes. I did.
(2o) Q I think you testifiedatthattime
about(21) themethodologyinvolved
there. Sawe'enot goingto (22) get
into thattoday. I will beaskingyou
aboutthe (2s) 1992studymethodology.
(24) Beforewe gafurtherthough,can
yaujust (25) summarizebriefly your
results?Let me handyaua
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(1) copyof your testimonyandyour
study.
(2) In summary,what is it thatyou
found?(s) Let'salsousethesummary
chart,it's thefirst chart(4) of your
resultsthatappearsin yourstudy.
(5) A I guesswe canreferyou to a
pagein the (5) report,which is page
two, wherethesesamenumbersp)
appear.What is it thatwe found'?
Firstot all, in (e) themostgeneral
way, whatwe found is thatsports
was(9) themostvaluablecategoryof
programmingto cable(io) operators.
(11) We found thatthe interestin
sportshas(12) increasedwhenwe
compare1989to 1992,asyou can
see(is) from thechart,thattherehas
beenan increasein (14) sports.That
is consistentwith my experiencein
the (1 5) industry. I'l behappyto
explainthatto you during (15) my
testimony.
(17) Specifically,whatwe foundwas
that it we (ie) wereta askcable
operatorshow theywould allocatea
(19) fixed programmingbudget,what
theywould do is to (20) provide- and
you know thesenumbers,wetakelt
out (21) to a tenthof apercentage
point, but I don'tclaim (22) thatthat
measureis anywherenearthatexact.
Quite (2S) clearly,morethanathird of
theallocation. Now we (24) are
gettingup to about40percentln
1992,closeto (25) that39percent
theywould allocateof a fired
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(i) programmingbudgetto sports.
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That is
in response(s) to ahypothetical
questionabouthowyou'dallocate(4)
100dollars?
(5) THE WITNESS: No. It's not100
dollars.(e) It's a fixed programming
budgetthattheywereaskedp) to
allocate.
(e) ARBITRATOA WERTHEIM: A fixed
budgetof (9) whatamount?
(io) THEWITNESS: It'safixed
programming(11) budget.

ISTRIBUTION OF 1990,91, & 92 CABLE ROYALTY FUNDS
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
Whetherit's large(1S) or small,hawwe
determine—
(14) THE WITNESS: Whateverit would
befor (1 5) thatsystem.
(15) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Might
it nathave(17) beenmoreinformative
taaskhow muchdid yauactually(is)
allocatelastyear?
(19) THE WITNESS: Well theydon'
allocate(2o) accordingta this. This is
somethingthatwe haveta (21) do, that
youarechargedwith doing, is taking
the (22) dollarsthattheypay in. They
pay in thedollars(2S) accordingtaa
formula,thatasDr. Lemieuxhasgone
(24) throughwith you, that is relatedta
thesignalsthey (25) carry. But the
allocationof thosedollars is related
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(1) to theprogramcategories.
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That'
my point. (s) Why insteadof havingthis
hypotheticalbudget,why (4) notask,
tell usaboutyouractualbudgetlast
year.(5) How muchdoyou spendto
importingdistantsignals,(e) andhaw
doyou breakit downamongthese
various(7) programcategories?
Gettingreal life datafrom a (5) recent
year,ratherthanhypotheticaldata.
(9) THE WITNESS: Well first of all, I

think(io) thatto tell them,to beableto
givethemaprecise(11) numberatthe
timethatwe call, which is rightatthe
(12) endof theyear,yauwould haveto
beableto include(i S) theirfilings, both
the-1 andthe-2 filings for that(14) year
to havethatbudget.Thatdoesnot
exist if we (15) areto conductthestudy
in atimely manner.
(ie) Westartthestudiesin December.
Theygo (17) into theearlyspring. Well
atthatpoint, let'ssay(ie) far 1992,the
92-2dallarsthattheyhaveto payare
(19) notavailableto us. Sowewouldn'
beableto do (20) that.
(21) ARBITRATOR WEATHEIM: You
areassuming(22) thattheironly
expenseis theroyalty payments.
(2S) THE WITNESS: No. Theironly
expensein (24) termsof what? I'm not
sureI understandthat(25) question.
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(1) AABITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well,
whetherthey (2) reportit to the
copyrightoffice or not,they'egot (s)
budgets.Thesearebusinesses.They
havegotall (4) kindsof records.Right?
(5) THEWITNESS: Aight. Butwe
don'thave(e) them.
P) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And
theyhavea (e) budget.
(9) THE WITNESS: Well, wedon'
havethose.
(10) ARBITAATOR WERTHEIM: I

know. Why don't(ii) you askthemto
tell yauwhattheir budgetwas,and(i2)
how muchof it wentto thesevarious
categories?
(is) THE WITNESS: I think if wecould
rely (14) uponthatandwefelt thatthey
would beableto pull (15) up that
numberin thatcategoryandhaveit
clearfor (1 5) thatyear,thatwouidn'tbe
abad idea.
(17) But I don'tthink thatwecanrely on
that(1e) in asystemthat is probably
residing— theywent(19) througha
budgetingprocessastheywentinto
theyear(20) generally. Justta tell
them,theyknowthatweare(2i) talking
aboutdistantsignals. Sothey
understandthe (22) portionof their
budgetthat is beingused.The (2S)
actualdollarsthattheyhave,I don'
believethatwe (24) could havewith any
kind of certainty. Thequestion(25) then
would bewell hawreliableis that,
becauseyau
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(1) don'tknowwhatthosedollarsare.
(2) Soto takewhatwecall aconstant
sum (s) approach,is whatI think ls the
mosteffective,(4) becausetheydo
knowwhattheyarecarrying,andnow
(5) theyareallocatingthatamonga
numberof different(e) services.
p) BY MR. GERSCH:
(e) Q Mr. Bortz, I wanttomakesure
thata (9) fundamentalpoint is clear
here. Ifyouhadasample,(10)
whateveraparticularcableoperator's
actual,yauhad(11) full accessto their
internaldocuments,whatyou (12)
couldseethereis howmuchtheyhave
spenton distant(is) signal
programming.Is thatright?
(14) A That is correct.
(i 5) Q Whatyou couldnatseethereis
howthey(ie) would allocateit among
thesecategoriesof (17) programming.
Theydon'tgetachanceto do that.
(ie) A Theydon'tgetachanceto do
that. The (19) question,I believe,was
it you couldhavethatnumber(2o) for
thatsystem,wouldyouthenask
themto allocate(21) thatnumber? I

sayIt you couldhavethatnumber
(22) reliablyand in a timely fashion,
thenthatkind of a (2S) methodology
couldbeconsidered.But It ls not
(24) availablein eitherareliableora
timely fashion.
(25) With respectto thebudgeting,
with all
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(1) duerespect,asyou haveseen
herein thecabledata(2) basethat
hasbeenreferredto, andyou have
seensome(s) differencesbetween
numbersthatwerein thebaseat (4)
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differentpoiatain time. Overthe
following yearor (5) moreof time
aftertheperiodwe'etalking about,
the (8) amountschange. I meanthey
go throughthe (7) calculationand
maybetheydon'tdo it right or they
(8) reconsiderwhatthebaseis, but
that is a database(9) that is in flux to
a pointof time far beyondwhenwe
(1 8) canappropriatelyconductthe
survey.
(ii) So that is why wego to the
constantsum (12) survey,which I am
preparedto go into in my (i3)
testimony. It is onethat is commonly
usedin such(i4) allocation
processes,and is onethatyou can
havea (15) high confidenceln.
(ie) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Thank
you.
(17) BY MR. GERSCH:
(ie) Q Mr. Bortz, if you could justturn
to pages(is) 10and11 of your
testimony. I justwantto walk (20)
throughsomeof themoresalientof 10,
top of 10, we (21) won'tgetinto the
chart,someof themoresalient(22)
featuresof your testimonyhere.
(23) In thebeginningwhencablefirst
started,(24) whattypesof programming
whatcarriedon cableTV?
(25) A Cablestartedasa reception
service.
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(1) Thatwaspeoplewho couldnot
getsignals,television(2) signals.
This newfangledmediumin the
1950s. Cable(3) aroseto bring those
televisionsignalsinto (4)
communitiesthatwerebeyonda
range.That is what (5) thebusiness
waafor quitea periodof time.
(8) Q And did thatchangeatacertain
point?
m A Thatthenchanged.Whatwe
saw in the(e) 1970swaathatthey
wereableto sell packagesof (9)
movies,whatwe cail paidtelevision,
mostnotably(10) HBO, to sell those
packagesof moviesto households.
(11) Well thatwassomethingthat
thona (12) lightbulb wentonsaying
geo, if wecanprovide(13) television
programmingbeyondthoalgnala
thataro(14) availableovertheair in a
community,thenmaybewe (15) can
takeourbusiness,which haabeen
prettymuch(is) confinedto tho rural
areasof theU.S.andbeginto (17) go
afterthobig markets.Wo can'tgo
into Chicagoor (18) Denveror
Washington,D.C. right nowwith just
giving (19) themtho signalstheycan
getovertheair. And by (2o) theway,
just havinga movieservicelike
HomeBox (21) Office ian'tgoing to
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beenough.
(22) Sowhatthenhappenedwars the
development(23) of a numberbf
basiccablechannelsartrd thebright '24)ideaof TedTurnerto createa
superstation. Because(2S) with the
1978copyrightdecision,w'hat'hit'imwashe
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(1) couldtakethis little independent
stationwhich (2) wasn'tvery
successfulin Atlanta,atrdklthbug'h
(3) there'sthissortof m'yth 'that
stationslike thatare(4) passivein
theircarriage,heencoUragedits ~

carriage(s) by a microwavecarrier,
at thatpointmicrow'avIand(ef thIn
satellite,to takethesignalaround
theU.S. and(7) to putsomething
specialon therethatwould be (8)
somethingthatyou couldsell in a
big market.
(8) And thena numberof other
thingswere(io) started,'SPN,'able'ews

Network,a long list of (11)
channelsbeganto becreat'edwhich
allowedthecable(12) businessto
movefrom a prettymuchmomand
pop (13) businessin rural aroseInfo
thebig businessthat it (14) 'is teday
natlonw'ido.
(is) Q Let'sskip overthechartthat'son'0

and(ie) 11. ButwhatI dowantto
askyou, Mr. Bortz, is I'd (17) like you to
describethetypesof programmingthat
you (18) would havefoundonatypical
cablesystemin the(is) 1990&92pared.'f

you couldJustwrite just like (20)
categories,if you couldwrite on that
chartthere.
(21) I takeit onecategoryof things
would be (22) you'dgetthesametypes
of channelsthatyou could (23) getover
theair. Is thatright?
(24) A Firstof all, Iot memekoa reisl
clear(25) distinction,becausewe ~

work both in tho cable

'age529'i)businessandin theHrorrjdckat i

business.When I am (2) wdrkiitg ~

with abroadcasterandI'm lin 0
geographic(3) area,.that
broadcaatoVaconcernla oho 'hannel,the(4) prograntmihgdn that'nochannel.Hia rovonUoal,hie (Q
businessIs derivedfrom theslrccess~
of thatsignal(s) channel.
p) What I justdescribedfbr tf cable~

operator(8) la somethingthatia a
totallydiNorontbusiness.(9) Hla 'uccesscomesfrom putting
togethera packageof (10) many,
manychannels,thatwill e&o4rago
peopleto (ii) subscribeandtel paya'onthlyfeo.
(i2) Sowhatwo do ia wl tatalijf
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jfepart)rom a (13) broadcastmind of I

wantyou to watchm)/ chhnnIrl, i'o (i'4)
Irssemblinga package.4etalkedpbit aboutwhatthe(isI paickdge'ouldbe.
(ie) We startedearlyon in the1950s
With (17} reallysortof the local, I'l
call it regional,(18) because.youare
takingthingsby microwavebeyond
the(18) local area,broadcastsignals.
Now whatarethose?'(2o)'B'C,the
network- theseareaffiliistes, their
(21) spaces.Sowe classicallyadd
ABC andCBSandNBC. (22) 'Fok is'otmaybein legalistictermscalleda
network,(23) but for Ill practical
Purposesis a net%ark,w'hich CBS
(24) learnedwhenthey loat theNFL to
Fox in a bidding (25) War.~
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(1) We havegot independentstations
thatare(2) notaffiliated. Therearea
coupleof start-up(3) 'networkslike
WarnerlraAd UPN'. Theyaretied into
(4) someof these,buf right itow'they
do notprogramvery (s) manyhours.
(8) MR. LANE: Mr. Citrairlnari, I em
goingto p) objectto the
Chatacteriz@lohof'wh5t is'ocourrlrrg(8)
today. UPN andWarnerBrothers
Network,clearlythe (8) NFL reference
to Fax ie clearlyafter199892.~
(io) I'l 1stthis go. I don'tmind the (11)
testimonycomingin ail all,ibutithei
questionwaswould (12) ybu p'leasetell
usabout1990to 1992.' Would ask(13)
thatyou instructthewitnessto confine
his remarks(14) to thatper'iod,'ince
you haveruledspecNcallythat(1 S) that
is whatshouldbeallowed in this
proceeding.
(ie) THE WITNESS: No problem,'17)

BY MR. GERSCH
(18) Q Mr. Bortz, maybeI canaska
clarifying (19) question.Thebroadcast
signalsthatyouhavelisted (28) filet an
that'chart,the locai broadcastsignals,
(21) thosearesignalsthatwerefirst put
6nSablesin the'(22)'19$0sorwhen
cablefirst startedto becarrying,and
(23) 'havestayedonthepackageinto
the1990arid 1992(24) period. Is that
I'Ight?
(25)

' Thai ia Correct. Obviouslyln
the1950a
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(1) wo dldn'thaveFox. But In 1992,
wo certainlyhad(2) pox.I

(3) Q Okay. And theethereCamea
timeWhenin (4) additlrirn tb theIOCai,
broadcastsignalsthatcable(5) started
carrying,you mentionedthatthey
started(8) addingotherkindsof
programming,otherkindsof m i

channels.
te) ,'AYoa,'otrttothoughputon
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herethenon- (9) commercial
channels.
lio) Q Whatwould beanexampleof
whatyou call (11) anon-commercial
broadcastsignal?
(12) A Well it couldbe KCET, KRNA
in Denver.(13) Thesearebroadcast
stationsin a local areathat(14)
typically carrysomeprogramming
from thePublic (15) Broadcasting
Service,but carryavarietyof other
(is) programmingaswell,
non-commercialprogramming.
(17) Q Okay. And then ln termsof what
other(is) typesof programmingor
channelsdid cableoperators(19) add,
moving into the1990-92periods
(20) A As I mentioned,we arenot
talking about(21) a singlestation
here. Thecablebusinessis a (22)
package.Let metalk from my own
experience.
(23) I amasubscriberin Denver. I

amon a (24) systemthat in 1992had
activatedsomethinglike 55 to (25) 60
channels.SoobviouslyI amnot
going to list all
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(i) thosehere,butyou can imagine
thatI'egotan (2) extremelylong list.
This categoryfills justa part(3) of
that.
(4) Then in additionto that, I carry
certain(5) whatarecalledaccess
channels.Thoseaccess(s) channels
aretypically mandatedby a
franchising(7) authority,sayingwe
wantyou to providesomechannels
(8) so theycanbeprogrammedby
theschools,by (9) government.
(io) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: You
arenowspeaking(11) of cable
channelsratherthanbroadcast
signals?
(12) THE WITNESS: Yes. Thoseare
cable(i 3) channels.You will find also
in this initial package,(14) distant
signals,which theyarebringing in. (15)
Typically onacablesystem,youwill
find acoupleof (16) them. I don'tknow,
I think theaverageMr. Lemieux(17)
cameupwith waa2.2oranumber
somethinglike that. (15) But distant
signalcarriagewill bethere.
(i9) That is abroadcaststationthat
they (20) bring in from adistantlocation
thatthegovernment(21) specifieswhat
theypayfor. There'sno marketplace
(22) handshakethereotherthanan .

agreementwith whomever(23) is
deliveringthesignal,theso-called
microwaveor (24) satellitecarrier,asto
whatyou pay in orderto get(25) that.
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(1) Thenyou haveawholehostof basic
(2) channels,basiccablechannels.

Now theseare(3) fundamentally
different.
(4) Theyarenotsignals.Theseareall
(s) signals.Thesehaveabroadcast
station,a (9) transmitter,atowerand it
goesout. Nowitmaygst(7)tothe
cablesystemin adifferentway.
(8) A basiccablechannelis not
broadcast(9) anywhere.Deliveredby
satellitetypically. There's(1o) awhole
arrayyougothrough.Butyouhave
probably(11) heardthem. If youarea
cablesubscriberyouare(12) familiar
with them. But it could beanESPN,a
TNT, (13) aUSA Network. It couldbea
regionalsportschannel,(14) Lifetime
andArts andEntertainment,the
Outdoor(16) Channelhasnow been
launched,theWeatherChannel,(ie)
theTravelChannelandsoforth.
(1 7) The ideabeingagain,abig
package.So (13) thebasiccable
channelswould bethenextcategory.
(19) Thenyou havepayservices.
Theseare(20) somewhatdifferent
becausewhat I will do typically is (21)
thatwe mightputapricetagon this
package.That(22) will becalledbasic
service. But you knowvery few (2S)
subscribersjusttakebasic,which is the
channels(24) theycangetovertheair
andacouplesuperstations.(25) They
movedown,andthat'snotamistake,
it's theway
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(1) thattheypackagetheseto makeit
veryattractive.(2) Mostsubscribers
takethefull basicpluswhatwecall (3)
expandedbasic.
(4) Thatmayhave30or 40channels,
basic(5) cablechannelsin additionto
this. This is whatthey (e) buy. Then
theyhavesomeoptions. Theycanbuy
apayP) servicethatcouldbeanHBO
orShowtime.Thoseare(3) whatwe
call full payservices.There'
something(9) calledmini-payservices,
whichareyetmoremovies,(10) but
theyarevery low pricedwith labelslike
Encore,(11) Stars.And theycanget
into payperview. Thatsay(12) that
whetherit's amovie,aconcert,afight,
that(13) you payfor thatevent,nota
monthlyfee.
(14) Thesepayservicesyouhavea
basic(15) monthlyfeethatyou pay.
Thenif youoptto takea(16) movie
service,afull payserviceor oneof the
mini (17) ones,you payanother
monthlyfee. Thenfor payper(is) view,
typicallyyou payperevent,perevent
thatyou (19) view.
(20) BY MR. GERSCH:
(21) Q You mentionedthatmostof the
subscribers(22) takewhat is called
expandedbasic. That is anumber(23)

in excessof 90 percentof subscribers.
(24) A Well in excessof 90 percentin
virtually (25) everysystemthat I am
acquaintedwith.
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(1) Q Let's talk justa little bit while you
are(2) still up thereabouthowcable
operatorsderive(3) revenuein
connectionwith thesecategoriesof (4)
programming.Let'sstartwith payper
view. Thatmay (s) bethemoststraight
forward
(6) A This is realdirect. Let'ssay
I'm a (7) cableoperator. I'm goingto
sell movies,$3.95. You (9) wantthe
movie, I'm goingto get$3.95 in
revenue.(9) Half of thatwill probably
go to thecompanythat (10) provides
thosemoviesto me,andthenthey
takea (11) distributioncut. Then it
goesbackessentiallyto (12) the
ownerof themovie rights.
(13) But asa cableoperatorof that
roughly (14) four dollars,that is two
dollarsI getto keep. I'e (is) gota
two dollarexpenseagainstthetwo
dollarsmade.(19) Sothatis direct,
verycountable.
(17) Payservicesalsois direct. HBO
is $8.95(is) or $1 0.95. Thesystem
hasadealwith theproviderof (19)
thatservicethatmightgetfour
dollarsoutof it, or (20) five dollars
outof it, andthesystemkeepsthe
rest.(21) Sobothpayperview and
payservicesareverydirect. (22) I

havethis programming,I'egot this
streamof (23) revenue.
(24) Q Sothatis verydifferentthansay
the(25) traditionalbroadcast,thewaya
broadcaststation
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(1) would calculateits revenues.
(2) A Absolutely. Broadcast
stationsnot (s) subscription,it's free.
Its revenuescomesolely(4) from
advertising.As I say,thatbroadcast
stationis (5) interestedin selling just
thatstation. Theywant(e) peopleto
view thatstation.
(7) A cableoperatorls veryvery
sensitiveto (8) the interactionamong
thesecategories.Forexample,(9)
youdon'twantto pricethissohigh
that it cutstoo (io) muchinto pay
revenue.
(1 1) Whatyouaretrying to do ia
maximize(12) revenuesasanygood
businesspersonwould do. So (13)
theycarefully look atthesedifferent
levelsof fees(14) thattheycharge
andcomeup with maximizing
revenues.(15) That is oneof the
reasonsthattheypaidusfor years
(ie) to do thecableoperating
performancebenchmarkstudy,(17)
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andprovideduswith systemdata
becausetheywanted(is) to seewho
wasdoingbestwith variouspricing
(19) schemes,so thattheycould
essentiallygetbest(20) practice.
(21) Q You talkedabouthow theyget
revenuefrom (22) apayperview, wher
theygetadirectstreamof (28) revenue.
How doesthecableoperatorgeta
benefit(24) from carryingthebasic
cablenetworks,theShowtlmes(25)—
I'm sorry, notShowtime,but Bravoor
ESPN?
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(9) Sowhenthey look lat thisAnd'heysay(10) whatdo w4 ca'rry,'thg
haveto sayI wantto sell th'at (11) 05
dollarpackage.Now I bran'tto'put
someelementsin (12) therethatwill
allow me to attractsubscribersand

e to (is) retainthem. Sothat'swhat
theydowhenthey look'at (14) it.
Distantsignalsobviouslyp'laysa'eryimportant(15) partIn that.'hisre's

adifference.
(18) In adistantsignal,theycah'tSell'ny

(17) advertising.Theyaronot,
allowedto. Sothatextra(is) revenuePage537

(1) A With thattheyhavea cost,a
licensefee (2) thattheypaythatthey
negotiatefor in the (8) marketplace
with theproviderof theservice.That
(4) canbeavery protractedand
toughnegotiation,but (5) it's a pure
marketplacenegotiation.Theypaya
fee.
(8) Now how do theygetrevenue?
Theygot (7) revenue,someof it, from
someof thosestations(8) because
theywill selladvertisingon it. They
get (9) abouttwo minutesanhour
typically on a cable(io) channel. But
at this point it's still nota big deal.
(11) It's maybefive percent,the
advertisingsalesare(12) maybefive
percentof the revenuesof thecable
(13) system,typically.
(14) So it's there. It's notsomething
you (15) wantto sneezeat, butthat'e
not it primarily.
(18) Wheretheymainlygetthe
revenueis from (17) a subscriber
paying22 dollarsor 25 dollarsa
month(18) to takethewhole
package.Sowhattheyhaveto do in
(i9) assemblingthepackageis to sayI'eonly gota (2o) certainnumberof
channels.
(21) Let'ssayI'egota 54 channel
system.(22) I'eonly got54
channels.I havegot 100
programming(28) servicesthat I can
choosefrom. I havegotto put (24)
togetherthatright mix thatwill
convincetho largest(25) numberof
subscribersto givemo25dollarso
month.

thattheygetfrom sellinlg agatesag
in an NFL (19) garneanTN7, antf tHey
candeveloprevenuefor the(20)
system,theycan'tdeveloponf
revenuefor thedistant(ai) Sighal.'o

thedistantsignalis reallyoneof
the (22) purestformsof Sontetiiing'hat

you carrybecauseyou (28) want
to attractsubscribei's,y'ou Waiitto'etain

(24) subscribersahdBevklop
thatbasicrevenueoutdf thee(25) 20
or 25dollara month.
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(1) . QThejobofthepanNharenow'is'o
(2) determinewhatvaluethe

operatorswould putanthe (8) various
typesof programiningthatgd on~

distant(4) signals. I want'toturn how'o
howyauwentabout(5) doingthat,and
howyauconstructedyoursurvey. We
(8) could usethis nextchartto illustrate
someof them stepsinvolved.
(8) (No response.)
(9) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Before
you go into (10) thatlet measkydua'uestion. This relatesto (11) something
thatI think thetribunalmentionedin an
(12) earlierdetermination.'our'pproachls to determ'inetia)~the~valu~e'hatthecableoperatorwould placeon
(14) varioustypesof programming.
How doyou determine(15) the
approachof theothersideof the
bargaining(18) table,who is selling
thesetypesof programmihgfl(17) Have ~

you lookedatthatatall'fThe
negotiation,if (18) that'swhat~weare ~

trying to simulate,hasgofat (19) leaSt
two sidesto thetable.
(20) THE WITNESS: That'sright Ifyou
(21) considerthesuppliersof the
program,for exainple,(22) theywould
in sportsdemandanextremelyhigh'rice.(23) There'sampleevidenceof
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(1) And I wantto havethe
programmingthat (2& will keepthe
subscriberson, becauseoneof the
big (3) costaIn thocablebuainoaaia
thatabout30percent(4) of cable
subscribersturn overeveryyear.
Tfioy (5) disconnect.So just to stay
even,you'vogot to (8) recreate30
percentof yourcustomerboseovary
year.(7) Someof that is because
peoplemove,andsomeof it Is (8)
becausetheyaredissatisfied.

that.
(24) Amongmy clientsare-
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: It's in
their
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(1) Interestto persuadeusl thattho
cableoperatorsare(2) willing',to pay8
veryhigh price. Sowho arewe (3)
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hearing'frorhto'tell 'us theothersideof
thetables?
(4) THE WITNESS: Well, you are
heai'ingfroiti (5j thecableoperators,
notfroin thesportspeople.What (8) I

amsayingis thatthosewho areselling
sports(7) rightswould hold themdearly
andfind anykind of (8) compensation
that'coiAesthra'ughthis kind of process
(9) smallcomparedto the
compensationthattheygetwhen (10)
they'go'out into the'malkefplade.'11).I workwith theNatlonkl B&khtball
(12) Association. I work with tHe
NationalHo'ckeyLeague.(18) We have
workedwith majorleaguebaseball. I

have(14) workedwith anumberof'rofessional sportsfranchises(is) on
thenegotiationof s'portsrights. I dan'ellyou (is) thatthelevel of copyright
revenuesthatarederivhd (37) mitre tiny 'omparedto whattheycouldgetif they
went(18) out into them'arkhtpliitce.'19)

Thatis why the leaguesarenot real
(20) thrilled with'superstations',
becausetheyknow that(21) those,are
gamesgoing into thenational
marketplace,(22) andthe

'ompensationthatcomesbackis far
below (28) marketplacevalue..There
areanumberof measures'of(24) that
thatcould be lookedat
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: We
reallydon'thave
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(1) muchof an ideawhit tHe mlarkht
would be like in the (2) absenceof
oompulsorylicensing,Ho ice'f ' mlean
We (8) heara lot of analgsisl,sijppdse'hemarketwerepretty (4) rhuchthewiy't

is now in theseratesthatare(5)
iiegotiated. But in thekbsancaof ~

dompulaory(8) licensing,themarket
placemight look quite (7) different,
ihight it not?
(8) THE WITNESS: Well I think We do
have(9) ampleevidenc'eof that. L'et's'onsiderabasketball(Io) gameona
superstation. That'stakenintaa
national(1 1) marketplaceandgoesto
60 million householdsplus,as(12) we
areIboklngatTBS in 1992or if you look
atWGN. (13) I don'tremembertheexact
number,butontheordertIf (14) 3Q
million cablehouseholds.'is)We knowwhattheNBA wasable,to;
cjet Ih (18) tHe nlarkhtplhcelfroitiTIirnar
Broadcasting,to do the(17) same
thing. To takethatgameto national
cable(18) households,samekind of
circulationasTBS. Wh knbw (19) 'what ~
they'wer'ew'illlng to pay. Whatthey
werewilling (20) to pay is avery large
num'ber,'uiteunrelatedta the (21)
kindsof, revenuesthatarebeing
generatedoutof (22) copyright
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payments,far beyondthat.
(23) So I think thatwe do haveample
evidence.(24) I am not preparedto
testify to thathere. But in my (25)
experienceand in assistingthe
leagues,I knowvery
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(1) well thatthemarketplacevaluein the
cablenational(2) marketplaceis far
aboveanythingthatwe haveever(3)
seendevelopedoutof this process.
(4) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: The
amountof money(5) availableto pay
royaltiesmight besubstantially(6)
highertoo. Now it's limited by the
compulsory(7) licensefee. But in a
freemarket,therewould beno (5)
limitation.
(9) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
(io) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That
might resultin (i1) quitea lot of
changesin appearanceof themarket
(1 2) from whatwe'elooking athere.
(13) THE WITNESS: Sowe'elooking
for what is (14) thebestway, sincewe
don'thaveafreemarket,and(is) that'
thesituationthatwearepresentedwith.
Is (is) acopyrightlaw in placeanda
compulsorylicensein (17) placethat
saysthereisn'ta freemarket. So how
can(is) we bestdeterminehowacable
operatorwould in fact (19) allocate
those.
(20) What I cansayis whatyou are
talking (21) aboutis thesizeof thepie. I

would agreewith you, (22) that if wedid
not havea copyrightlaw thatthesize
(23) ofthepiewould change.Butwe
haveacertainsized(24) pie in 1992.
That is fixed. We don'thavea (25)
marketplaceto setthat,butat least
whatwe cando
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(1) is to sayhowwould thebuyerdivide
thatPie in 1992. (2) That is I believethe
processthatwe'eall left with (3) here,
becausewearen'tleft with afree
market.
(4) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So
we'enot really (5) simulatingthefree
marketnegotiation.Weare(5)
simulatinganegothtionasthoughall
theseparties(7) hadto sit downwith .

eachotheranddivide up this (5) fixed
pie.
(9) THE WITNESS: Well thepricewas
set. The(io) pricewassetby the
formulasthatarein theforms.(11) So
thatpartof thenegotiationwasalready
oveI'.
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So it
would notbe (13) quiteaccurateto say
wearereally simulatingthe(i4)
negotiatedcopyrightfeesin afree
market. Whatwe (15) aretrying to
simulateis whateverybodywould
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(12) So if you begin we had
addressedthis (13) back10yearsago
in 1985whenwewerefirst (14)
approachedto look atthis. Theysaid
to us,what's(15) thebestway to do
this. How doweallocatethis?
(16) I thinkweall agree,you can'tjust
say,(17) "Tell me,seller,whatyou'dsell
it for." I'l give (i 5) youanumber,abig
number. Becausewe knowthateach
(19) of themajor leaguesports
developstelevision.(2O)revenuesfar in
excessof thetotal copyrightpool (21)
eachyear. Sowe knowthat'sgone.
I'm surethe (22) moviepeoplecould
comeupwith asdramaticasetof (23)
numbers.
(24) So if we can'tdo that,whatdowe
do? (25) Whatdowedolswegotothe
buyer,andwesay,"How
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(1) do you divide it?" Becausetheydo
nothaveastake(2) in it, nostakestall.
Theyareasobjectiveandas(3) expert
agroupasyou couldfind, because
theyknow (4) whattheirsubscribers
want.
(5) Theyaremarketingto themail the
time. (e) Theyarereplacing30 percent
of thatbaseeveryyear.(7) Theyarein
tunewith thesubscribers.Theyknow
what(5) kind of packagetheyneedand
howvaluablethe (9) elementsareof
thatpackageto gettheirsubscribers.
(ic) Soto us,westartedwith that'
where(11) you'egotto go. Thenit
wasaquestionof (12) methodology,
how to bestelicit thoseopinionsin the
(13) mostpreciseway.
(14) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I think
maybethis (is) would beagoodtime to
takeabreak. We'l takea(15) little
longerbreakthanusual.Takea15
minute(i7) break.
(15) (Whereupon,from 3:08p.m.until
3:29p.m. (19) theproceedingswentoff
therecord.)
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Would
you mind if we (21) wentbackto
grammarschoolwith thewitness,andif

(22) I askafew questions?
(23) MR. GERSCH: Certainly. Please.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: As you
cantell, we (25) tookabreaka little bit
earlybecauseI thought
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(1) therewassomecommunication
problems. I'm goingto (2) try andwork
outacommunicationproblem.
(3) Mr. Bortz, I havesome
fundamental(4) statementsand
questions.Is this correctthatfirst (5) of
all, weweretalking aboutasystem
whichwould be (6) cableasopposedto
astation,which would beTV?

(7) THE WITNESS: Yes. That'

agree(15) to if theydidn't havethis
panelandtheywere (17) dividing up
this fund.
(is) THE WITNESS: Whatweare
simulatingis (19) whatthebuyerof the
product,thebuyerof the (2O) productis
thecablesystemthatmakesa
conscious(21) decisionto carryor not
carryadistantsignal, (22) knowingthat
thatcarriesacostwith it.

(23) So in this process,thepricewas
set.(24) Thebuyerhaspaid theprice.
Now thequestionthen(25) is what is
thebuyer'sview asto therelativevalue
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(1) of whattheybought. Soyes,if the
sellercomesin, (2) thatcould effectthe
price,butthat is notthe (3) processwe
have. Thepriceisfixed.Nowweare-
(4) I think it's appropriateto sayatthat
point, how (5) would thebuyerallocate
thosedollars if they (5) consciously
decidedto pay in. That is whatthis (7)
processis addressedto. Thereis no
otherwayto (5) addressthatprocess
oncethepie is fixed.
(9) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I think
you canview (i o) it theotherway
around.Thepricehasbeenset, The
(11) questionis howdo thesellers
allocateit among(i2) themselves,
Whattheythink thebuyerwould have
done(13) maybeagoodwayof
arguingthat,butultimately, (14) it's-
(15) THE WITNESS: All of thesellers
would (te) assumethattheyshouldget
awholepie. I mean,in (17) this kind of
aprocess.
(is) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: That'
why we'e(19) here.
(2O) THEWITNESS: So I thlnkthatthe
best(21) measureis to talk to someone
who- theseoperators(22) haveno
stakein whattheytell ushere. It is not
(23) like theyareseekingit all. These
operatorsare(24) sayingI madea
consciousdecisionto buysomething.
(25) What is therelativevalueof the
programcategories
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(1) in what I bought. Whattheytell us
doesnotaffect(2) theirpocketbooksa
bit.
(3) Soto me,this is by far themost(4)
objectivemeasure.To go to sayhow
manyhoursof (5) programming,I think
I haveillustratedthathoursis (5)
basicallyameaninglessmeasurein my
opinion.
P) Lookingatthelevelsof viewing,
thatis (5) greatfor abroadcasterwho is
sellingadvertising.(9) But levelsof
viewing is notameasureof valuein (10)
thatpackageof cableprogramming
thatis designedto (11) attractand
retainsubscribersto payamonthlyfee.
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correct.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
Wewere(9) advisedof thattheother
day,which wasavery big (1o) help.
Thanksto counselhere.
(ii) Now theonly time thereare
negotiations(12) for serviceswould be
betweena local systemanda (1s) cable
network?
(14) THE WITNESS: Correct.
(is) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Haw
would oneof (16) thosecablenetworks,
I'm going to stayawayfrom (17) Turner
becausehesortof confoundsthings,
because(16) he'sinto defenseand
everywherein thepresent.No (19)
offense,buteverytimeyou talk about
there'sa (2O) specialruleor something.
I don'twantto get(ai) involved in that.
(22) Is A&E partof theTurner?
(23) THE WITNESS: No.
(24) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Now
A&E is what? A(25) groupof people
who haveaccessto-
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(1) THE WITNESS: Arts and
Entertainment,A&E, (2) is acable
channel.That'sachannelowned
jointly by (3) threecompanieswhich
happensto includeABC, Hearst(4) and
NBC. They,thatchannelthen, it's a
separate(5) company. It goesoutand
it assemblesprogramming,(e) buys
thatprogrammingor producesthat
programming,(7) leasestimeona
satellitetransformer.
(e) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I don'
meanto (9) interruptyou, but-
(io) THE WITNESS: That'sfine.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Wehad
adiscussion(ia) on this. I knowthe
waywewentthroughit andwhat(is)
ourdiscussionswere. It would be
helpful, I think, (14) if I developedit
further.
(15) THE WITNESS: Please.
(16) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
answereda (17) significantquestion.
A&E is actuallyacable(16) channel.
(19) THEWITNESS: Itisacable
channel.
(2O) CHAIRPERSONJIQAhK: Itlsa
cable(2i) channel,buttheybecame
aggressive,asyousaid(22)
somewherein thething,whenthecable
industry(23) decidedto become
aggressiveandnotmerelypassive;
(24) Theywentoutandtheymade
contractswith (25) a lot of peopleto
provideapackagesothatthey
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(1) couldgo to asystemandtell that
systemthat if you (2) carryourchannel,
wewill providethis service. In (3)
return,wewantthisamountof money.
(4) THE WITNESS: That ls correct.
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Wewant (s) this amountof money,but
by theway, we'l giveyou (6) two
minutesanhourof adveitisingthatyou
cansell (7) yourselves.
(6) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That'sa
little bit (9) of a refinemerit. I'nderstandwhatyou mean.We (io)
talkedaboutit. There'satermfor it that
wasused(11) hereyesterday.I was
thinking in termsaf a— what(12) is the
teim?
(1S) MR. LANE: Local avail.
(14) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Local
avail. I know (15) theyarelocalavails.
We talkedaboutthepackagingf16) bf
theTurnerthingsandthefactthatth'ey
cauldgive (17) you four dharinelSand
all thatsortof stuff, and()6) therewere'ocalavails in that. But I think that(19)
confusestheconceptthat I thinkweare
trying to (20) dealwith.
(21) Theotheraspectof this 'is, y'ou can
take(22)-
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:,CanI

getbackthere(24) beforeyou go?
(25) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Sure.
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(1) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: 'Cable'hannel,does(2) thatmeanthere'sa
channelnumbered10orwhateverit (3)
is in acertaincity wherethis originates?
(4) THE WITNESS: No.'heother'ermthatIs (5) usedand is probably
betteris acablenetwork.' (6) cable
networkreallyconveysthefactthatat
somem pointnationally,astreamof
programmingis put (6) togetherand
thengoesoutto cablesystems.The (9)
cablesystemdecideswhatchannel
theyput it on. It (1O) is alba'abeled
Arts andEntertainment.
(11) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: So in
effectthey (12) areawholesalerof a
packageof programs?
(13) THE WITNESS: In asense,they
area (14) wholesalerof apackageof
programmingto thecable(15)
operators.So it might- ~

(16) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: 'Sorhe'f
that(17) programmingtheymight

createthemselves.Mostof it (ie) they
probablybuyfrom somebodyelse?
(19) THE WITNESS: It isamix. As they
have(2O) gottenmoresuccessful
financially,theyhavebegunto (21) doa'ittlemoreof theirown programming.
(22) Originally, theyjustbought
programming.
(23) Justananecdotetoshowyouhow
yau(a4) instantlyhadachannel.When
Arts andEntertainment(25) first started
in theearly19805,it wasMild jhst I
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(1) Arts atthatpoint. Therewerenot
manycable(2) subscribersahd

you'ouldn'tgetmuchofafee. So(3)they '
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couldn'tafford to buya let of
programming,so (4) theywentoverto
Europe,which hada lot of (s)
'gov'ernmentbroadcasters,They,
boughtall kindsof (6) cultural
'programming,balletandsymphonies.
Deadly(7) dull, buttheygotup, theygot
ontothecablesystems(e) by
negotiatingdeals,only gettingafew'entsa,month(9) atthatpoint, and
establishedtheircablenetwork.
(io) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: No,
royaltiesare(11) paid hn tjiesh,
becausetheyarenegotiateddirectly
'(12)'with thecablenetwork?
(13) THEWITNESS: Exactly. The
bableoperator'(14)paysa'licensefee'to'henetwork. The rietwork'(15)
negotiatesits dealsdi/ectlywjth tjie 'rogram(16) providerd.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Sowe
talkedabout(16) cablenetworkand
cablesystem.Now I'd like to talk (19)
aboutacablesystemAnd 'ca6lestatidn,
TV station.
(ao) THE WITNESS: Yes.,
(21)'CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: TheTV
Stationwould (22) doelva things,6uch
asWGN. If you arewithin their (23)
area,you canpick'off Whattheyhhve!
(24) THEWITNESS: Yes.~
(25)'CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI! And just 'roadcast
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(1) It.

(2) THE WITNESS: Vhat~is cbrrsict.
(3) CHAIRPERSONJIGAINTII: Agd if
youare(4) beyondtheirservicear'ea
andyouasacablesystem(5) pick that
htatlan4p, ther/yaU haVetO paya (6) 'ompulsorylicensebecauseit'
beyondtheservice(7) area.
(6) THF WITNESS: Correct,beyond
the35 (9) miles.
(1o) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTlt Ahd for
thesuper(11) stationswithin thearea,
wecanpick it up. if it(12) 'goes
distance,wecanstill pick it up.
(i3) THE WITNESS: Yaucanpick it up
only if (14) you getit throughacable,
systemor maybehavelyour (is) dwn ~

satellitedishto receiveit.,'ie)CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: If the
cablesystem(17) wouldn'.paly
anythingfor it?
(16) THE WITNESS: A superatatian,i

the~
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: No, no,
no. Fora (2O) networkstation.
(21) THE WITNESS: Foranetwork
station?
f22)'HAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Yee.'oranetwork(23) TV station.
(24) THE WITNESS: A distant,theyare
counted(25) asone-quarterafadistant
signalequipment,l
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(1) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: What
aboutthe (2) relationship?This
confoundsthe thinking aboutthe (3)

problem, .

(4) THE WITNESS: Sure.
(5) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I am
talking about(6) the relationship
betweentheprogrammeranda cable
(7) systemdealingwith an independent
cablestation—

I (8) meanindependent
TV stationsuchasWGN. Thereis no
(9) relationship.
(io) THE WITNESS: Thereis no
relationshipat (11) all.
(12) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Now
whataboutwith (13) thenetworkTv
stations,CBSandthe restof those(14)
things? Still no relationship?
(15) THE WITNESS; The network
affiliated (16) station,thatwould be-
therewould beno (17) relationshipwith
thecablesystem.
(18) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And as
you go (19) beyond,the35 miles
beyond,thedistanceof theTV (20)
station,you payacompulsorylicense
for the (21) independents?You pay
nothingfor thenetwork(22) stations?
(23) THE WITNESS: Nothing for the
network (24) programmingon the
networkstation. Let's talk about(25)
thenetwork. Do you understandthat
distinction?
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(1) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Not the
independent(2) programming. I don'
wantto cut the NAB out here.
(3) THE WITNESS: Okay,
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I think
thatwill (5) confusethings if we get into
it at this stage.
(6) But thosearethebasicconcepts
andthose(7) conceptsareenunciated
here. I hopethattheyare(8) clear.
(9) THE WITNESS: Yes,asyou'e
expressed(io) them.
(11) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: As we
addressthose(i2) concepts,it's going
to beeasier.And I don'tmean(13) to-
(14) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: No.
It's helpful.
(15) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Yes.
I wantto (16) jump in.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I'm very
intrusive (i 8) with my colleagueshere.
(19) THE WITNESS: That' tine.
(20) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Now
we'e(21) beginningto work together. I

think that'svery (22) healthy.
(23) May I stateit a little ditferently?
(24) THE WITNESS: Sure.
(25) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: I am
Media
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(1) General. I'm a little cablesystemin
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Virginia.
(2) THE WITNESS; Yes.
(3) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: I am
requiredby (4) law to broadcastall of
theWashington,D.C. local (s) stations.
(6) THE WITNESS: Yes,
(7) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: In
addition,as (8) theentrepreneurthat I

am, I wantto pick up asmuch (9) as I

canto enhancemy systematthe least
possible(10) cost.
(11) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(i2) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: So
I'm going to (13) gettwo superstations:
WGN andWTBS. I will, (14) therefore,
be requiredto paythebasicroyalty,
(15) copyrightroyalty, which I will do.
And becauseI'e (16) paid for that
basicroyalty, I will thenhaveaccess
(17) to thosetwo superstations,then
makinganarrangement(18) with a
contractor.
(19) THE WITNESS: Correct.
(20) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Okay?
(21) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(22) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
OnceI havethose(23) two, I have
everythingwhich theyhave,
(24) THE WITNESS: Yes,you have
your full—

(25) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: And
I pay nothing
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(1) more.
(2) THE WITNESS: You paynothing
more,and (3) you havea ratethatwas
setby law.
(4) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES.'f I

wantanything(s) more, like ESPN,
A&E, andeverythingelse,—
(6) THE WITNESS: Yes,sir.
(7) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: — I

mustpayan (8) additionalcopyright
law, but becauseof thesignals,(9) the
additionalsignals,thatI'm getting.
(10) THEWITNESS: No. Ifyougetthe
cable(11) networks,they'enot
broadcastoveraFCC-licensed(12)
broadcaststation. Let'ssayyou getan
Arts and (13) Entertainment.
(14) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Oh,
so I don't(15) haveto paythe3.75?
(16) THEWITNESS: Youdon'tpay
anythingunder(17) thecopyright.
(18) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: I

simply contract(19} with thatindividual?
(20) THEWITNESS: Youmakea-you
sit down (2i) andyou negotiate.
(22) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Okay. Yes.
(23) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And in
whatwewere (24) talking about,that
would becable. In thetermsof (25)
whatwe weretalking about,it would be
cablenetwork
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(1) to cablesystem?
(2) THE WITNESS. Cablenetworkto
cable(3) system.
(4) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Which
is (s) negotiation?
(6) THE WITNESS: That'sa
negotiation.
(7) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Let
meask: What (8) if ESPNbroadcasts,a
broadcastsignalcomesout from (9)
someplace?Doesthatchangethe
situation?
(i o) THE WITNESS: Well, first of all,
yeah.(ii) I think thattheheadof ESPN,
who is—

(12) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Would havea real (13) problem.
(14) THE WITNESS: — a friend, he
would beout (is) of a job becausefor—
(16) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Okay. I think I (17) understand.
(18) THE WITNESS: I heardsomething
like (19) anywherefrom 4 centsto 13
centsamonth. Theysell (2O) it for a lot
morethanthat in thenegotiation. I (21)
mean,it's instructive.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And
ESPN Is thesame(23) asA&E?
(24) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(25) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: It'sa
cable
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(1) network.
(2) THE WITNESS: And whatthey
negotiated(3) with acableoperatorin
themarketplaceis a monthly (4) feefar
in excessof whattheywould pay if it
was (5) underthebasiccablecopyright
fee.
(6) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: So if

I contractP) with ESPNor with A&E, I

neednot paya royalty?
(8) THE WITNESS: You pay no
royalty.
(9) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: It is
justthat (1O) contractthatgovernsour
ability to pick up your (11) signal?
(12) THE WITNESS: Absolutely. And
they, in (13) turn, hadnegotiatedfor the
rights to theprogramming(1 4) that
they'ecarrying,payingwhatthe
marketplace(is) negotiationwasfor the
rightsto haveMajor League(16)
baseballor the rightsto haveNFL
football. And they (17) negotiatedthat,
saying,'You know,we'egoingto (i 8)
takeyou nationally."And sothe
negotiationwas(19) betweenthe
programproviderandthecable
network.
(20) And thebroadcaststation,let'
take(21) basketballasanexample.
Basketballownsthe (22) copyright. The
leagueownsthecopyrightto all NBA
(23) games.But a local teamthat
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happensto makea local (24) deal to put
its gameson thestation,which it has
the {25) right to do within a75-mile
radius,losestotal
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(1) controloverwherethatsignalgoes
from there.
(2) In otherwords,theymakea local
deal, (3) "I'm going to sellyou the rights
to broadcastonyour (4) station."Oops.
Showsup on theothersideof the (5)
country. Theydon'thaveanyway to
getcompensated(e) for thatotherthan
backthroughthis process.
(7) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I'Ill
looking atthis (s) sweepsTV Weekfor
theDistrict of Columbia. And (9) there
is apagein which they list theDistrict
cable(10) channelchartbesidesall the
local stations,(11) Baltimoiestations,
NorthernVirginia.
(12) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: This is
thePanel's(13) Exhibit Number1,-
(14) (Laughter.)
(ls) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: They
list whatare(1e) called—
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI:-
admittedinto (1 S) evidence.
(19) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:-
basiccable(20) channels.And there
areroughly30 of them. And, as(21) I

lookatthe list, they includeboth
superstations(22) andprobablywhat
you havecalledcablenetwork.
(23) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(24) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Now,
this is one(25) local systemthat is
carrying30 differentnetworks,
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(1) superstations,andthe like,
everythingfrom American{2) Movie
Classicsto WWOR.
(3) THE WITNESS: And, justby way
of (4) information,theyprobablyare
carryingmorethan(5) that. Thereare
only 30 thatarelisted. Somedon't(6)
make-
(7) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Well,
thentheyhave(s) premiumchannels
andPay-Per-View,and local (9)
government,etcetera.But everyone
of theselisted (lo) underbasiccable
channelsthathappensto beacable
(11) network,sothey referto it asa
channel,that's(12) carriedataprice
negotiatedbetweena local cable(13)
systemandthatnetwork?
(14) THE WITNESS: Yes,everything
butthe(15) distantsignals-
(18) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Right.
(17) THE WITNESS: — hasanegotiated
price.
(ls) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
And there's(19) no royalty paymenton
anyof thosecablenetwork(20)
pfagrallls?
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to carry it?" is at thesystemlevel.,
(ls) An exymplein Denverwasth'at
theyusedto (17) carryWWOR. When
3.75camein, if I recalIcorrectly,(ls)',
theydecid'ydtheydidh'tlijant ta make
that,getinto (19) thatpointwhere
they'e,makingthatpayment.And (20)
theydroppeddownto WGN andWTBS.
'Thatdecisionwas'(21)'a'de4t th'
systemlevel, not madein theofficesof
(22) amultiplesystemoperator.
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I m
'surethatvaries(24) a lot from one
systemto another.
(25) THE WITNESS: Sure.
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'(1) 'RBITRATOR'WERTHEIM: But if
you lookedat (2) theothersideof that
table,someof thesecable(3) networks
'arealsdmdrethanonesownedby the
same(4) person.
(5) THE WITNESS: Yes 'sir.'s)

ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
Whetherit's Mr. m Turnerorsomebody
else,aren'tthey in 'a pasiti'onto (s) say,
"Look, we'l giveyouaspecialdealIf
you take(9) all four of ournetworksor
threeof themplusTBS?" i

(1o) THE WITNESS: Turnerhashoned
thatto a (11) fine art. Turnercertainly
doesit.
(12) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: But
whatyo'u don't(13) get in anyof these
negotiationsis anyallocation(14)
amongsports,movies',syhdidateld,
devotional,(15) whatever?
(ls) 'HEWITN'ESS: Not unlessyou
had,—
(17) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: What
you do is you (1s) buy'somebody's
packagein whfch thos'eth'Ingaara(19)
alreadyputtogether?
(20) THE WITNESS: Well, yes,
althoughthere(21) aresomechannels
that'yoUcahlobk Nt andsay,"Well, (22)
this is amoviechannel,"like American
Movie (23) Classics,"This is aispdrts'hannel,'SPN. So in the (24) whatwe
call thetruly verticalchannelsiCNN for
(25) news,youarethenmakin'ga'ecisionby a

program'Page
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(1) category.
(2) But manyof themostpopular
channels(3) combineprogramming,as
wehavewith themostipopular(4)
distantsignals.Therearemoviesand
hpoltsand(5) syndicatedand—
(6) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: But i

evenwhenyoudo (7) havea i

negotiationwith acablesystem,unless~
it's (s) oneof thoseverticalones,you'e~
negotiatingaprice (9) for awhole
packageof things,'otanyseparate
price (10) for sports,movies-
(11) THEWITNESS: Right. Someway

(21) THE WITNESS: No', no'neatall.
(22) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Now,
in fact, (23) District Cablhvision is
ownedby or in partby a,much(24)
largerCablevisionentity thatowns lots
and lots of (25) differentSystemsacross
thecountry?
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(1) THE WITNESS: That'scorrect.'2)

ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Isn't it
likely that(3) somebodyfroin
headquarters,notthe localWashington
(4) guy, is goingto do thyrse

'egotiationsbecausehe can(5) geta
betterdealbecausehe'sgotall of these
(6) differentsystemsall overthe'ountry?

(7) THE WITNESS: Sometimesyou
will have(s) negotiations'thataredo'ne'y

the largesystem(9) o)eritork. Ik
this casewe'etalking aboutTCI, (10)
which is the largestsystemoperator.
(11) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Sothe
relationships(12) amongthedifferent
networks,someof whomareowned
(13) by thesamepersonor groupsof
persons?
(14) THE WITNESS: But there'
anotherstep.(1s) The largesystem
operatorin theterm thatwe use- (ls) I

hateto burdenyouwith it - MSO.
Okay? The (17) multiplesystem
operator—
(18) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Areyou
surprisedwe (19) knewoneof them?
(20) (Laughter.)
(21) THE WITNESS: — mightiverwe'll
negotiate(22) adealfor carriage,"If,
you'egoingto getcarried(23) on our
systems,this is whatwe'l pay."The
decision(24) to carryor 11otdarrythatin'anycases,I would say(25) in most
cases,beyondsomeminimal level that
they
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(1) mightguarantee,say,'to anew
channel,thedecision(2) ultimately is
goingto bewith thatsystem.
(3) And let'ssayit's a54-chlsnniel i

systemand(4) they'ecarrying54
channelsandthereare50other(5) 'nesouttherethatwanttbgbtoh. If a i

system(6) manageror it mightthe
District managerin thatarea,p) a
combinationof ahandfulof systems,If
theydecide,(s) you know, 'We really
needto carrythis channeland(9) this
channel.And wewant it Ih Wash'ington,'.C.,

but(10) it's not reallygoingto do
well in Phoenix,"they'l (1 1) makethat
decisionatthesystemlevel,'itcbuldbe
(12) thaisameof thenegotiations,
certainlevel of the(13) negotiations,
thatwasdoneat themultiple'system'14)

operatorlevel, buttheultimate
decision'Do wecarry (15) it or optnot

Pago558to Pago564 (202) 234-4433 NEAL R. GROSS4 CO., INC.



BSA 12/06/95:CARP: D

to say(12) "Okay. Well, if our problem
hereis what'sthevalue(13) of acertain
typeof programmingon thatmixed (14)
channel,you agreedasasystemto
carrythatchannel(15) andpayacertain
licensefeeon it." (1 5) Now, thebest
thing to do would beto ask(17) the
operatorof thatsystemhow theywould
divide that(is) valueout. What
percentagewould theyallocateamong
(is) thesedifferentprogram
categories?
(20) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: That'
yourstudy?
(21) THE WITNESS: And that'swhy we
decidedto (22) go with this
methodologyin this studybecausewe
felt (23) it wasthebestway to address
it.
(24) Now, when I was in Washington,to
showyou (25) thekind of influenceI

had in government,in 1979,
Page565

(1) shortlyafterthecopyrightlaw, I took
avery (2) aggressiveposition,saying
thatweshouldn'thave(3) this process
atall, in fact, let'sgetawayfrom this (4)
compulsorylicense. Nowwe'e15
yearslater. Soyou.(5)seehow
influential I was. I didn'tgetanywhere
(6) becauseof problemslike this.
(7) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Can
I finish up? (5) Are you finished?
(e) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: On
thatsubject,(io) yes.
(11) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: I just
haveone(12) final question. I'm clear
on thatnow. If I'm the (13) sameMedia
Generaloverherein McLean,Virginia
and (14) I wantto keepeverythingas
inexpensiveaspossible(15) for my
subscribersandfor myself,forget
negotiating(16) with anycablenetwork.
(17) I'm able,then,to takethetwo (18)
superstationsplusall of theother
superstationsand(is) paytheroyalty
fee into thecopyrightoffice. Now, (20)
atthatsametime thatI'edonethat,I'e committed(21) myselfto paya
considerableamountof money
because(22) of the3.75andsoon.
(23) Do youseeanyotherproscription
that (24) would swaymefrom doingthat
otherthanthemoney?
(25) THE WITNESS: Sure.
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(1) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
What?
(2) THE WITNESS: You wouldn'tbe
ableto get(3) enoughsubscribers
becauseif whatyou'e- if all (4) that
you'ecarryingaresuperstatlons,you
don'thave(5) thatvarietyof
programmingin apackage-
(6) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Okay.

NEAL R. GROSS4 CO., INC.

(7) THE WITNESS: — thatthey'e
looking for. (s) Lifetime is achannelthat
is programmedto appeal(e) primarily
to women. There'sno superstationthat
does(10) that. Arts andEntertainment
is primarily cultural. (11) There'sno
superstationthatdoesthat.
(12) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES:
Thoseareall (13) networks.
(14) THE WITNESS: Thoseareall
cable(15) networks.
(15) ARBITRATOR FARMAKIDES: Yes.
(17) THE WITNESS: Soasacable
operator,your (is) decisionwould be
very often,and I think thenumbers(1e)
supportthatmostfrequentlythe
decisionis, I'm (20) goingto getthose
two signals,whicharedirt cheap(21)
comparedto what I would haveto pay
anyway. Guess(aa)what? It givesme
aterrific varietyof goodsports;(23) in
particular,thestrongersuperstations,
good (24) movies,goodsyndicated.
(25) You know, I'm nothereto tell you
that
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(1) sportsis theonly thing on these
stations.All of (2) this programming,
themix of it, is of value. The(3)
questionis: What'stherelativevalue?
Sotheyget(4) that. Thosearegood
varietystations.
(5) Now, I'm willing to getacoupleof
other(6) varietystations.USA Network
is aprettygood(7) varietystation,not
muchon theway of sports(5) anymore,
couldn't— didn'tstayin thegame.TNT
is (e) astation,acablenetwork,thathas
amix very much(io) like asuperstation,
verystronglysports-orientedas(ii)
well asmoviesandsyndicated.But
that's- you (12) know, afterthatI'egot
to look atotherthings.
(i3) And so it's C-SPANfor public
affairsand(14) CNN for newsandArts
andEntertainmentfor thosewho (15)
wantculturalandLifetime for thosewho
wantto have(16) thewomenwho might
be interestedin its programming(17)
andtheWeatherChannelfor someone
who'sgoingto (15) travelor just likes to
follow theweatherandthe(ie) Travel
Channelandonandonandon.
(20) And it's assemblingthepackage.
This is (21) why thecableoperatorsdo
somuchmarketresearch.(22) It'
assemblingthepackagethatpicksup.
Maybeit's (a3)just2 or3 channelsout
of my 60thatwill convince(24) youto
subscribe.I wantto havetheright
varietyso(25) I canconvincea lot of
peopleto subscribebecausein
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(i) my 60channels,the5 thatyou like
andwatchmight be (2) totally different
than,say,the5 thatMr. Gersch(3)

wantedto watch. And sothat'swhy
theygo for a (4) variety insteadof
keepingaddingall of theseother(5)
superstations.
(s) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: While
we'eat it, p) Mr. Bortz, let meventure
into aslightly different(8) area,a little
bit closerto whatyou'etalking about
(s) now. If I cancome-whatI'm trying
to definehere(10) is thefundamental
problem. And thefundamental(11)
problemis thatcablesystemspay
royaltiesfor (12) distantsignals.
(13) Now, the royalties,say,obtained
from (i4) WWOR — stayawayfrom
WGN becauseyou think that's- (15) so
theywerepaying it for, you know,
WWOR. WWOR puts(ie) on movies,
syndicatedmatters,sportsmatters,and
(17) public programmingmatters,and
whatkind of- I (15) don'tknow. I wasa
little bit afraidof thenews(1s)
programs,but,yes,newsprograms.
(20) THE WITNESS: Newsandpublic
affairs.
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: News
andpublic (22) affairs. Now, the
problemis themoneypaidfrom (23)
compulsorydoesn't- paidby the
systemsisn't (24) dividedupalongthe
lines. And that'swhatgaveus (25) this
job heretoday.
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(1) THE WITNESS: That'sright.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We
haveto divide it (3) to copyrightowners
who providedthoseprogramsin (4)
thosevariouscategories.
(5) THE WITNESS: Right.
(6) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: And we
don'thaveap) — theprogram,system
programmer,doesn'thavea {5) budget
thathedistributesamongall those
thingsor (e) shehasabudget
distributedamongall thosethings.(io)
Thatprogrammernearlybuysadistant
signal-
(11) THE WITNESS: Exactly.
(ia) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: - for
whicha (13) compulsory—
(14) THE WITNESS: His budgetline
item says(15) 'distantsignals.'ndhe
buysit.
(16) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay. I

justwanted(i?) to makesurethatwe'e
all atthesamebaseline.And (ie) I

don'tknow if it's clear. I don'tknow if
I'm (ie) totally accurate.I hopeI am.
(20) THE WITNESS: I thoughtthatwas
quite (21) accurate.
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: For
purposesof (23) discussionherenow,
do you haveany-
(24) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I just
haveaquick (25) minor- is QVC a
network?
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(1) THE WITNESS: It's acable
networkwhich (2) is ashopping
channel.
(s) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: I was
wonderingwhat(4) categorythatfell
into. I couldn'tfit it into any (5)—

(5) THE WITNESS: Definitely whatwe
would (7) call vertical,very narrow
appeal.
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: The
samewould be (9) trueof CourtTV?
(io) THE WITNESS: And CourtTV is a
very (ii) verticalchannel.That'sright.
(ia) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Thank
you.
(1s) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: MI'.

Gersch,I think (1 4) we canproceed
again.
(15) MR. GERSCH: Thankyou.
(ie) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Was
thatimpolite or (17)—
(15) MR. GERSCH: No. I thinkthatthe
more(19) questionsthepanelhas,this
is thetime to getthem (ao) answered,
notafterthetestimonycloses.
(21) BY MR. GERSCH:
(22) Q Let's talk aboutthemethodology
for the (2S) surveythatyou devisedto
try andanswerthis (24) questionof how
to divide up the royalty payments(25)
amongthevariouscopyrightowners.
Justtakinga
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(1) look atthecharton your right,
surveymethodology,(2) thefirst step,
questionnairedesign,if we could just
(s) startwith that? How did you come
to-
(4) MR. LANE: Mr. Chairman,I would
like for (5) you to haveapointof order
on this. Underthe (5) rules,thewitness
is requiredfirst to beexaminedby m
theirattorneyfor competencyto
supporttheir (5) testimony.
(9) Sincemostof this hasbeenon
areasthat(io) I knowwe'ediscussed
beforeandthatyou'every (11)
interested,I'e held off. But nowthat
we'egetting(12) into thesubstantive
matters,I would like an (13) opportunity
to hearwhatthattestimonyis andask
(14) somequestions.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I know
weslid into (is) thearea. I assumed
thattherewasno objection. I (17) was
wondering.
(18) MR. LANE: Thereis anobjection
to not (19) following therules.
Somehowwegot-
(ao) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: You'e
askingfor (21) voir dire on
competency?
(22) MR. LANE: I'm askingfor the
witnessto (2S) begivenan indicationof
his competency.And then I (24) will

t
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havesomequestions'on%hat.Exactly
right.
(a5) CHAIRPERSONJl(hANTI: 'I walsn']
unmindful

E ROYALTY FUNDS ~pa
the University. of (ai) 'Gebrgia,a'nd in
thesamedesignI broughtin Dr. (aa)'GeorgeBardweil frorrl theUniversity
of Denver
,(as) Q Soyou justbroughtthemin?'ouhad(24) nothingto dowith it
personallyotherthanbringing (25) them
'in?'age574
(1) A That'sIncorredt. I wasvIrry'uch

(2) involved.
(s) Q All right. Well, tell uswhatyou
(4) personallyhadto do. ThaI'sWhat,all,
'of my questions(5) are,notabout
somebodywho is not 'heretestifying.'6)

MR. GERSCH,: Let mehere
interposeanp) objection. I don'
'believe'thi6is competency(8)
examinationasto anexpert. The'expert
neednothave(9) donethestudy'imself.An expertcouldcomein with
(io) astudythathehadnothing
'whitsoIsvei'toIfo With and (11) give the
'usualkind of foundationfor it and
testify (12) in anycourt'ntheU'nitird 'tates,evenunderthemore(1S)
rigorousFederalRulesof Civil
Procedure.
(14) I think thequestidnsherriarri: Do
you (15) havepersonalknowledgeof
'eve'rythingin thestudy?(15) T~hatisvery
differentthancompetencyof anexpert.
(17) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: The 'ssueunder(is) reviewhereis
competencyto supportth'ewritten (19)
testimonyandthe 'exhibiS. Theslrartr
'rooted(ao) questionson thatarea.And
I don'tknow if I (21) understandwhat
the issueis.
(22) And yourspeeificlobjlectlbnN to
the i[as)'quristldnl6?
(24) MR. GERSCH: Theyseemto all be:
goingto (25) competehcylin tilte slsnsls
of afactwitness. Did you

Page575'1)write thereport? Did you compile
thenumbers?Did (2) youdrawthe
sample?
(s) Thosearenotthetypesof things
trrhiCh (4) eStabllisHcornpetenoyOf an
'expert. Theseare'thel(5) tlypelsof
thingsthatestablishcompetencyfor a
fact (8) witness.
p) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Your
'objectionwill (8) beoverrtrled. You
'may inquire.
(9) MR. LANE: Thankydu,Youri
Horior.
(io) MR. GERSCH: Thankyou.
(11) THE WITNESS: Repeatthe 'que'etio'n,please.
(12) BY MR. LANE:
(is) Q Thequestionisl: Whatldidlyou
personally$14) do in thesample'design?Besidesbrinlging in lail Of (15)
theseotherpeople,did youdoanything

Page572
(1) of thatfact, butwhen'wehad'one'ntoit with no (2) objecticn, I'ad just
assumedthattherewas'no (s)p'robiem.''m

sorryaboutthat, Mr. Lane.
(4) But, Mr. Gersch,areyou finished
with (5) yourquestionsconcerninghis
competency?
(6) MR. GERSCH: Yes, I am.
(7) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Okay.
Mr. Lane,you (5) canstartit off.
(9) VOIR DIRE
(10) By MR LANE
(11) Q Mr. Bortz, I'm justgoi'ngtb ta'Ik
about(12) thesurveyinformation. I

haveno questionaboutyour (i sr
competencyaboutthis duff 'to which
you'ealready(1 4) testified.
(15) Canyou tell uswhatyourpkrsdnal'16)

involvementwas in the1'989and
1992studiesthatyou (17) presenth6re?
(is) A Yea. I waainvolved
throughoutthestudy.(19) It began
with a reviewof thequestionnaire
thatwe (ao) hadusedin onefirst in
1983,thenanotheronein (21) 1986.
And my colleague,seniorvice
presidentof our (aa)firm, Jim
Trautman,will betestifying to those
(as)studies.
(24) But westart,then,with taking
the(25) questionnairethathadbeen
developed-
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(1) Q Excuseme. Wouldyou justrefer
to (2) yourselfpersonally,not"we'?
(s) A Yea. I waa involVod in
reviewingthe(4) quoatibnn'aiak,
looking atthocommentsof the
tribunal (5) from the'83proceeding
andwasinvolved in developing(5)
thequoatiormalrethatwaathenused
In 1989.
p) Q Soyou draftedthequestionnaire
for 1989?
(9) A I draftedit. And I wry a&lsltod'y

Mr. (9) Trautmanin dbingtHat.'1O)Q And did youdraftthe

'uestionnairefor (1 1) 1992?
(12) A In thesameprocoaa.Mr.
Trautmanand I (12) bethpa'rtlclpated'n

it.
(i4) Q Old you undertakethesample
designfor (15) eitherthe1989or'the'992

study?
(ia) A In doingthoquestionnaire
design,the(17) first thing that j did
waa, lit additionto Mr. (18) Trautman
andmyself, I broughtin someother
experts(ie) to assistuat I rrrerNlohad'hem:

Dr. Wlrth from tho (ab)
Unlvoraityof Denver,Or. Roid from
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(20) I don't recall thenumberof
instancesof (21) that,but it's e
handful,two or three,justa few (22)
instancesayearwheresomeoneat
thesystemsays(23) "Nobodyhere
doesthat. Call thisoffice." And we
(24) will do that.
(2s) Q Bytheway,oneofyour
predecessorsin
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(i) 1979,BBDO, actuallydid go to the
MSOs,didn't they?
(2) A Yes, theydid.
(3) Q And theycameoutwith similar
results(4) excepttheywereslightly
morefavorableto themovies(5) thanto
sports. Isn'tthatright?
(5) A Yes,butsomeof that-
(7) Q I'm sorry. I'egot it backwards.
(8) A It's sports.
(9) Q TheMSOsweremorefavorable
to sports-
(1o) A Correct.
(11) Q-thantomovies?
(12) A That'scorrect.
(13) Q Okay. Let'sgo ontoQuestion
2A, then.
(14) A Okay. That'son thenextpage.
And we (15) have- afterwe have
drawnthesample,wegetthe(is)
statementsof accountsfrom the
CopyrightOffice. And (17) that
providesuswith thedistantsignal
carriage.(is) And sowe list that.
(i9) And this is thefirst of a number
of times(2O) thatwe repeatsothat
they- therearea lot of (21) channels
thata cablesystemcarries.Wewant
to make(22) surethattheyknow
which onesarewe talking aboutso
(23) theydon'tconfusethedistant
signalstationwith the(24) cable
channel.Soherewesay,"This is
whatyou'e(2S) carrying. This Is
whatthe industrydatatold us.'age
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(1) And thenwe proceedto the
secondpartof that(2) question.
(3) Thesecondpartot that
question,we are(4) reallyasking
them,"Whatdoyou think ia themost
(5) popular?Whattype,program
types?"And weexclude,(8) very
carefullyexclude,anynetwork
programming.Sop) if they'e
carryinganetworkaffiliate, wedon'
want(8) networkprogrammingto be
mentioned.Soweexclude(9) that
hereagain.
(1o) Whatwasmostpopularwith
your(ii) subscribers?That'sa
judgmenttheymakenow. We (12)
havea list here,butwedon'tread
that list. As you (13) cansee,there'
a cautionthatwe just say,"Justask
(14) themthequestion.It's an
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open-endedquestion."And (15) then
we circleor the interviewercircles
the (1 8) appropriatenumberwhen
theygettheresponse.And (17)
that'sa measureof popularity.
(18) Q Okay. Let'smoveontothenext
question,(19) then.
(20) A Question3, wemovefrom
popularity,which (21) is onesortof
measureof value,to if somebody
uses(22) certaintypesof
programmingin theiradvertisingand
(23) theirpromotion,quiteclearly,
theythink there's- (24) you know,
thatthere'sagoodreasonfor that.
They(2S)wouldn'tuseit in their
advertisingandpromotion
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(1) unlesstheythoughtit was
somethingof substantial(2) valueto
theirsubscribers.
(3) So,again,wesay"Did you
featureany (4) programming"by
thesestationsthat I mentionedand,
(5) then,againcarefulto exclude
otherthananynational(s) network
programmingfrom ABC, CBS,and
NBC, "in yourm 1992advertising
andpromotionalefforts?"And, (8)
again,atthispointwedon'tprompt
them. It comes(9) off thetopot their
headasto whattheyusein (1O)
advertisingandpromotion.
(11) Then if theyhaven'tmentioned
certain(12) categories,which
typically theyhaven',wego to 3C,
(13) which thengoesto a list that
you'l find on Page47. (14) And
anythingthatthey- theywill have
recordedthe(15) answersto 3B by
circling a- let'ssaysomebody(18)
mentionedmovies. UnderQ-3B
unaided,theywould have(i7) circled
1. So if theymentionedmoviesand
sports,it (is) would be1 and2.
(19) Wewould thensay,"Well, did
youalso(20) featuresyndicated
shows,series,andspeciale?"And
(21) they'ltell us"Yes" or "Mo.'nd
thatwill be(22) enteredunder3C. So
we'eableto keeptrackof what(23)
theytold usoft thetopof theirhead
andwhatthey(24) told uswhenthey
wereprompted.
(2S) And thenthattakesusto 30. So
we'e

of thosedid you feel wasthemost
important(8) programmingtypeto
featurein subscriberacquisition(9)
andretentionadvertisingand
promotion?Whatwasthe(io) most
important?"becausewhenwe'e
talking about(11) distantsignals,no
advertisingsalesopportunity.
(12) Thereasonthatyou carry it is to
attract(13) andretainsubscribersto
yourbasicservice.What's(14) the
mostimportantthatyou useto
promotegetting (1S) subscribersand
keepingthemon? And weaskthem
the(is) secondmostimportantand
whatwasleastimportant.(i7) And
thatcompletesQuestion3.
(18) Q Okay. Let'smoveon, then,to
Question4.
(19) A Yes. Question4, which if you
readthe (20) pastproceedingsyou
know hasbeenoftendiscussedand
(21) it cameup earliertodayin
questionsto meabout(22) relative
value,"How dowebestmeasurethe
relative(23) valueof programmingon
thosesignals?"'(24) As thepanelhas
pointedoutto me,you (25)
understandthattheyhaveabudget
for a distant
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(1) signal~ Theybuy it. Theydon'
haveto makethat(2) categoricalkind
otdecision. Sowehaveto try and(3)
getthebestestimatepossibleof that
categorical(4) decision.
(5) Whenwedid theoriginal
questionnaire(8) designs,oneof the
thingsthatwe thoughtaboutwasm
aquestionthatwasraisedby the
panel,Judge(8) Wertheim: Why not
tell themwhattheirprogrambudget
(9) is andhavethemallocatethat
programbudget?
(10) There'ssomesurveyissuesthat
we (11) confronted10yearsagoon
that. Of primaryconcern(12) to us
wasthatwewantedessentiallythese
programmers(13) to be
dispassionatein answeringa
question.
(14) Theydon'tknowwhy we'e
calling and(is) goingthroughthis.
Wedon'tsay"We'ecalling. (18)
We'etrying to allocatemoneythat
you pay in for (17) carryingdistant
signalsto copyright."(18) If wesay
328,000to asystem,suddenlyI (i9)
think theyfeel they'ein a
negotiation.You know, (2O) maybe
we'efrom theCopyright
Commission.Iilaybethe (21) rates
aregoingto go up. If wesaywe
really think (22) thisstuff is popular,
maybethey'egoing to charge(23) us
more.
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(1) steppedthroughthisunaidedand
thenaidedin terms(2) of advertising
andpromotion. I think I misspoke
when(3) I saidmostpopular. It waa
usingadvertisingand(4) promotion
in Question3.
(5) And thenweaskthemdirectlyas
the (8) personmostresponsiblefor
makingprogramdecisionsm "Which

MEAL R. GROSS1 CO., INC. (202) 234-4433 Page566to Page501
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(24) We»los'1war»t'tbemte know why
we'e(25) calling, justasour
interviewersdon'tknow who
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(1) they'eworking for otherthanus.
Theydon'tknow (2) thatwearedoing
work for theJointSportsClaimants.
(3) Out'nterviewersat Burkearekept
- all theyknow is (4) thatBortzand
Companyis havingthemdo a
survey.(s) And they'easkingall of
thesedifferentcategories.(s) They
haveno reasonto focusononeor
theother. For (7) thesamereason,
wedidn'twantto usethat.
(s) Second,— and I think thatwe
would (9) probablyspenddaysin
expertdebatesaying,"Well, (io) but
you askedthis systemto allocate
$25,000. And, (11) behaviorally,you
know, if anotherguywasaskedto
(12) allocate10,000,would thataffect
how theydid their (1S) allocation?
And so is it reallya measureof the
(14) relativevalueor aretheyaffected
by thesizeof the (1S) numberor if it'
a smallsystem,aretheyaffected(is)
differentlythana largesystem?"
Therewerejusta (17) numberof
imponderables.
(1s) I haveto saythatthere'snothing
(19) theoreticallywrongwith that,but
wewantedto keep(2o) theoperators
dispassionateon it. And wedecided
(21) afterconsultingwith a numberof
peopleandourown (22) experience
in surveyresearchandthefact that
we use(23) constantsum in other
work thatwedo andMr. Bookat (24)
MalarkeyTaylorusesconstantsum-
I think you'e(25) seenthetestimony
of Or. Reidat Universityof
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(1) Georgiaon constantsum.
(2) The largestcableoperatorthat
we'e(3) mentioneda few timeshere
today,TCI, theirheadof (4) market
researchfrequentlyusesconstant
sumto get (5) theirsubscribersto
allocaterelativevalueof (s)different
typesof programmingasthey
address:What (7) doservice»dowe
introduce?It's a newservice»(s)
surveythat ls donebyTCI in a
numberof systems.(9) And theyuse
constantsum.
(io) Sowe lookedatdollars. We
lookedat (ii) constantsum. There
areotherapproach»a,ascale.(12)
You know, onascaleof 1 to 10,what
do you think ia (is) best?
(14) Therearerealproblemswith
scales.So (15) afterconsultingwith
theappropriatepeople,basedon (is)
ourowri exp»I'lance,we said,"We'l
uaeconstantsum."(17) And thathas
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beenrefineda bit overthepeals as
we (1s) try andgettheexactwording
such.
(is) I think atonetime — and I don'
(2o) rememberexactly- if it was8100
thatwasto be (21) alloc'atedor 10$
percent,allocated100percent.A'nd
(22) basedupontheresponses,bdth'n

thefindingsof the(23) triburial, 'uestionsfrom - under
cross-examinationin (24) tHep'est,'e'e

decidedthatallocatinga fixed
budget(25) wasa reasonable
positionof this.
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(1) We'enotaskingyou to allocate
100 (2) percent.We*re riot asking'outo allocate100poirits. i(s) We'Ie
askingyou to allocatea fixed
budget. Bythe(4)way,iwe'irenot i

askingyou to allocatewhatyou paid'5)because- evenfor, I»ayI this flrI»t
six monthsof the(s) year,for the 'easonsI'ealreadym4ntiened.
p) Sothat is thebasis.And I'm
sorryto be(s) sowordy'on'thiS, but
this I think is very important.(9) We-
specifically,aayou see'n4A, we'epeatthe(1O) stationsth»Cwe'e'alkingabout. Wedon'texpect(11)
themto necessarilyrememberthose
from theearlier(12) questions.
(13) Sowesaywe'eonly interested
in U.s. (14) commerciallstatione,-'nd

thenwe readthestatio'ns(is)-'.S.noncommercialstations.And
we readthatso (1 5) the/mhkelsurls
thatthey'eclearasto Which ones
are(17) commercialand
noncommercialandtheCanadian'is)

stations.Sowe repeatthat.
(19) And thenbaseduponthe
commentsoutof (20) the '89
proceeding,we- whereas,in '89we
then(2i) askedthemto allocatethis 'ercentage, whatwethen(22) here
saidwas,"Okay. I'rn goini to read
theprogram(23) types.II'll »cadall
theprogramtypesthatwere(24) i

broadcastto giveyou al cd»ncetol
think aboutthat. (2S) Wedon'twant
youto do thisquickly. Pleaseiwrite i
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(1) downthecategoric». (2) Sowe
wantthemto havesomethingwritten
(3) In frontof themto look atsince
they'egoingto be (4) dloing aA
allocation. Wedon'twantthemta try
anddo (s) it all in theirhead.
(a) And thenwegoonlandsaly, l

'A»sum»you p) havea fixed dollar
amountto spendIn ordertb (s)
acquireall thenon-netWork
programming.Excluding(s) the
networkprogramming,iacti»ally
broadcastduring (io) 1$92lbythel

(202) 234-4433

LE ROYALTY FUNOS... xMaq4»
stations,whatper'centage,if any,of
the (11) fixed dollaramountwould
you.spend?Pleasewrite (12) down
theestimates"sothe/cdsheit in'rontof (13) them.'14)And, again,thiswas in response
to the (1S) findingsof thetribunal~
"Write downtheestimates.(1 S) Slake
suretheyaddto 100percent."And
thenwego (17) on, 'What
percentage,if any,of thefixed dollar
(1s) amount"- thenweasked- wre've
nowgot it written'(is)'down-'Would
youspendon?"Then,we,gothrough
(2O) theseprogramtypes.
(21) Now, you seewe havemovies
listed first. (22) And tiien We havelive
and'prdfessiohalsportsandthen(23)
syndicated.But you'l seetitre i

column is labeled(24) "Random
Sequence."(2s)Ther4is I»lwi»ys la
concernin survey
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(1) researchthattherr»could'be'a
positionbias. In (2) dthei wr»rde, if ~
inaybebeihg listed first is the(3) best
positionor maybeb»ingllistedfourtth
is thebest(4) positiorlr. Sovie don'
Wantto getthatatall. And (s) so
whatwedo is weasklthelmWhat
numbertheyputdown (s) because
we'eassigneda randomsequence.
(7) Soweatourcompany 'ssentiallyrandomize(s) these'umbers.And thentherandom
sequencemaycome(9) rlrp. iAnd we
look atthecartds. Sloviesia goingto
be (1O) askednumbertwO. SoWe Will
havefilled in on the(11)
questionnairebeforewegive it to the
researchfirm, (12) Number2 by
movies,Number5 by live
professionaland(13)lcoliegi»»porte,
Number1 by syndicatedandso
forth
(14). Thenextqueatiannairewill have
them in (15) adifferentorder. And so
the'surV»ybria trained— (15) andthis
is a co»nmonthing in survey
hssearch& to (17) 'readthen»
accordingto thenumbersby themso
we (is).randomizewhenthey'r»
asked.And sowegetthat.
(ia) And thenagainto makesurethat
thatia (20) thebeatrepresentation
thattheycangiveu»of their (21)
perception,wego tol Page49,4B. i

And wesay,"Now (22) I'In giingto'ead

backthesecategories,andyour .

'(23)'estimate».I» th4reanythingyou
wantto change?'24)And that'sit.
And ao it's avery (25I deliberate
,procestrying to minimizethe
difficulty 'age597 i

i(1) of this for someonebecause,in
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detail. I (14) don'tknow thatthat'
wanted.
(15) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: I think
at this (16) pointwe could think about
thatfor a little while. (17) We cantakea
10-minuterecess.
(is) MR. GERSCH: Thankyou,Your
Honor.
(19) (Whereupon,theforegoingmatter
wentoff (20) the recordat4:32p.m.and
wentbackon (zi) the recordat4:44
p.m.)
(22) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
may proceed,Mr. (23) Gersch.
(24) MR. GERSCH: Thankyou.
(25) BY MR. GERSCH:

(21) So we hadtwo thingsthatwe
hadto (22) addresshere,two
elements,in our sampledesign.(23)
Numberone is wedidn'twantto
contactall of the (24) systems.We
wantedto do a sampleanda highly
(25) reliableone,which goesto the
statisticaldesign.

effect, this isn't (2) whattheydo at
thestation,you know, at thecable(3)
system.Theynegotiatethecable
networks. And they (4) paydistant
signalsfor distantsignals.
(5) But this processis different.
And so (6) we'etried to takethem
throughit slowly, carefully, (7)
deliberately,And theydon'tknow
thatwe'etalking (6) about
copyrights. So theyaren'tsitting
there(9) saying,"Oh, my gosh. Am I

going to haveto pay (10) more?"
(11) Q Beforegoingon, let me justgo
backto (12) oneof thepointsyou
raisedin connectionwith (13) Question
4. You talkedabouthow it's certainly
(14) theoreticallypossibleto go back
and look atwhatyou (15) referredto as
theiractualdistantsignalbudget.(16)
Justto makeit clear,theirdistantsignal
budget,(i 7) thosearetheir royalty
payments.Is that right?
(1 6) A Theirdistantsignalbudgetis a
royalty (19) payment,yes.
(20) Q Let'sgo to thenextsteponyour
survey(21) methodology,which is the
sampleselection. Let's (22) juststart
basically, Why do you botherwith a
(23) sample'?What'stheneedto takea
sample?
(24) A Well, thereareroughly2,000
Form 3 (25) systems.We'efocused
on Form 3, as I think is done
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(1) And, numbertwo, we wantedthat
sampleto (2) reflectthe fact thatthe
big systemshavemoreclout. (3)
Theypay in morecopyrightdollars
thanthesmall (4) systems.
(5) If we didn'tdo a stratified
sample,- (6) and,asMr. Trautman
will testify to, in 1966we did {7) a
non-stratifiedsample- we would be
(s) over-representingtheopinionsot
thesmallsystems(9) representingin
theaggregatenot a real big (10)
percentageot therevenue.
(11) Soby stratifying thesample,
sayingwe'e(12) going to makesure
thatwe give theproperweightto (13)
how muchtheypay, thenwe'eable
to say,"Okay. We (i4) wantto come
up with strata,thestratifications."
(1 5) Thesestratifications,our
divisions,we (16) usefour strata
becauseit you - again,Dr, Bardwell
(17) could testify to this, but if you go
beyondfour, you (18) don't improve
theprecisionof thsmeasurement
much.(19) Four is a reasonable
number.
(20) Thequestionthen is: How do
you go about(21) designingthe
strata?And I don'tknow how much
(22) detail I cango into s lot, but
basicallywego (23) throughcertain
statisticaltormulstionsthatssy(24)
"Here'swhereyoudrawthe
boundaries."(25) We go- wegetall
thssystemsfrom the
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(1) Q Mr. Bortz, let'sgo to Step
Number3 under(z) your chart,"Survey
Methodology."Let me justask(3) you:
What'sthepreteststep?
(4) A Yes. Pretest.Whenyou have
a survey,as(5) muchasyou think
you'erefined it andhonedit, you (6)
wantto makesurethatwhenthat
getsoutof thefield p) andusedby
interviewers,thattwo thingshappen:
(8) that,numberone,the interviewers
know how to useit (9) appropriately
andaren'tcontusedby any- either
the (10) wordingor thesequencingof
theprocess„and,second,(1i) that
thosebeing interviewedunderstand
thequestions(12) andcanproperly
give responses,insteadof saying,
(13) "Nell, I don*t know whatyou
meanby that" or "That's(14) not clear
to ms." (is) Soyou do a pretestto
makesurethatyour (16) surveywhen
it goesout is going to havea
minimum of (17) problemsin
execution.And we do thatearly in
(1 8) December.In 1992wedid it in
earlyDecemberof (19) 1992.
(20) Q With respectto thepreteststep,
that's(21) astepthatyou would do for a
surveyyou conductfor (22) commercial
clientsaswell?
(23) A Yes. Nsalwaysdo a pretest
of any (24) broad-basedsurvey.
(25) Q Okay. Let'sgo to StepNumber
4, the
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(1) in this proceeding,becausethat'
97 percentof the (2) royalty. But
2,000 is a lot of systemsto try and (3)
contact. And sowe useappropriate
sampling(4) procedures,as I think
anyprofessionalfirm would do (5) in
sucha situation.
(e) Thequestionthen is whatkind
of sample.(7) A key elementto keep
in mind is all cablesystemsars(8)
not createdequalbecausesomewill
pay in a lot of (9) moneyto the
tribunal. And a smallsystemwill psy
(10) very little. Sowe'l havesystems
thatwill pay (11) $200;000ands
systemthatwill psy3,000.
(12) Thereares lot moresmaller
cablesystems(i3) in this country
than largerones. But wewantto
make(14) surethatweprobably
weighttheanswerstheygiveus (15)
by how big sbuyeraroyou because
if I'm a sellerand(16) I wantto total
up what I'm getting,justbecauses
(17) smallbuyersaysho'sgoing to
give mo a high (18) percentage,if the
big buyersdon't like my product(19)
andthey'egoing to give mos low
percentage,they (20) haveto bo
appropriatelyweightedby their
royalties.
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(1) CopyrightOffice andhow much
theypsy. And ws (2) compilea big
liat of thosesystemsandhow much
they (3) pay. And weorderthose.
Ourstaffdoesthat.
(4) And wo give Dr. Bardwolla list
thatsays,(5) you know, "From lowest
payingsystemto highest,(6) hors'ss
bunchof systems.Now takes look
at it.
P) Ho appliesthoseformulassnd
says,"Well, (8) drawtho Iino hereon
royaltypsymontsand,by tho (9) way,
applyingotherformulasin the
sample,take- I (10) wantyou to take
X numberot systemsin this strata,
(11) a differentnumberin theother
strata,andso forth." (12) Sowo then
comeup with a sample.
(13) And I couldgo into muchmoro
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(1) surveyadministrationprocess.I

believeyou said {2) thattheactual
surveyis doneby anoutfit called (3)
Burke. Is thatright?
(4) A Yeah,BurkeMarket-
(5) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
Excuseme. On a (6) pretest,how many
respondentswasthesurveyform p)
pretestedon?
(8) THE WITNESS: I don'trecallthat
number.(9) I really don'trecall it. I think
it's on theorder{10) of 10.
(11) MR. GERSCH: All right.
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(12) BY MII. GC4~~
(13) Q GQing backto Number4, the
survey(14) administration,you were
goingto tell uswho the (15) Burke firm
was.
(15) AYes. Burke is-
(17) Q Is.
(18) A - BurkeMarketResearch.It'
avery (1 3) largemarketresearch
firm. It doeswork (20)
internationally. It's basedin
Cincinnati,Ohio. And (21) we have
usedBurkeeversincethe1983
survey.
(22) Do youwantto discussmore
regardingthat(23) element?
(24) Q No, I don',butthankyou.
(25) (Pause.)
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(1) MR. GERSCH: I'm sorry. I was
trying to (2) entertainaquestionhere.
(3) BY MR. GERSCH:
(4) Q With respectto Burke,theone
questionI (5) did wantto askthereis:
Do theyspecializein doing (6) certain
kindsof surveys?
{7) A Yes. Burke is - oneareaof
special(8) expertiseis whattheycall
executiveinterviews.(9) Thatmeans
ratherthancalling, say,households
at (10) dinnertime,they'ecalling
businesspeoplein their (11) offices.
(12) And sincethat'swhatwe'e
doing,that(13) wasoneof the
reasonsthatwe selectedBurke (14)
initially.
(15) QAiiright. And-
(15) A In fact, theyhavea special
groupthat (17) doesit, special
interviewerswho areexecutive(18)
interviewers.
(19) Q And you andJimTrautmanare
theonesthat (20) trainedthem in terms
of this surveyinstrument?
(21) A That'scorrect.
(22) Q Whatkind of responseratedid
you geton (23) thesurvey?
(24) A Theresponseratethatwegot
wasin terms(25) of thefirst three
questions- wasabout81 percent.
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(1) I'd haveto referherein thereport
for thespecific(2) number. In
Question4, theallocationquestion,
waa(3) about78percent.
(4) Q There'sasectionof your
testimony,which (5) goesinto detail,
which I will notdo here,butPages(8)
20 through24, if you could justtakea
look atthat, (7) Section4, IV-B. And if
you could just briefly (8) describe,what
is it thatyou'eaddressingin Section
(9) IV-B of yourpreparedtestimony?
(10) A At thebottomof Page20?
(11) Q That'sright.
(12) A Thiswasjust to recountfor
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you whatwe (13) did in responseto
theconcernsthatwereraisedby (14)
theCRTafterthe1989'pro'ceeding.I
think I already(15) touchedon some
of these.So I'l go throughit kind
(15) of quickly.
(17) The first one,"Respondent(15)
Qualifications,"we*veAlways t1ada 'eryhigh level of (1s) qualification,
certainlyby title, of therespondents,
(20) buttherewasa feeling thatwe
coulddo better.
(21) I think whatwedid in )hegad
wasfine, (22) but therewerelike 11
percentof therespondbntirin'(23)'hich

somequestionswereraisedin
prior proceedings.(24) And sowe
askedfor thepersonrrrost,
responsiblefor (25) programming
decisions.
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(1) And, asyou canseein thetable
on Page(2) 21, you know, We didn'
endupwith peoplein the(3) othef
category,thecustomer'eivicls
managers,- I'm (4) comparingit to
'89-justa handfulof peoplewhd (5)'adofficer manageror'oplratlonh
managerkindof(6) titlris. Soby 'hangingthequestion,'we'did
elevate{7) thetitle profile df cuir i

respondents.And that'wasin (8)
responseto theconcerhs.'9)Thesecondareais category
definition. (10) We believeyou can'
givepeoplea long anddetailed(11)
categorydefinition. On theother
hand,therewere{12) cdncernSthat
ourcategorydefinitionswerenot
close(13) enoughtowhatthet'ribunai
hadbeenutilizing.
(14) And you'lseeon Page22, in
Table6 on {15) Page22, thatweused
verybriefdescriptions,(18)
obviouslyJustthe- basicallythe
label. In '89and(17) '92 weused 'efinitionswhichwereverycloseto
the(18) definitionsthatthetrlbirndl
hasbeenusing. So it''(19) a little'onger,butnotmuchlonger.',
(20) I cango throughthose,but if
youhave(21) anyquestione.But it
wasbasicallyJustrefining a (22) bit to
makesurethattherespondentknhw'hat(23) categoryweweretalking
about.
(24) Thethird areahadto dowith
public {28) televisionandCanadian
stations.And this ia one

page608 I

(1) whereI guessweweren'tquite'as'esponsivein some(2) ways. And
that is If aquestionwas'aised'bout,'3)

well, let'ssaya cablesystem-ado
youwantmeto go (4) into thedetail
of this?

E ROYALTY FUNDS. XMAX(44)

(5) Q Justbriefly—
(6) A Let'ssaya cablesystem'-
(7) Q — tc justgetanovewlew.
(5) A - wantedto cherry'aPIrbll~
television(rr) station,coInmkrciaI 'tation,noncommercialstation,(10)
but decidedtheycobldg'ta&rti it In
'termsof their (11) distantsignal
budget. Shouldn'ttheyalsobe
asked(12) about- I rheah,down't'-
thatdidn'tmeanthe )13)

'rogramming.didn'thaveanyvalue
'forthem. It Just('r4) AidrI't IIavel
enoughvaluefor themto go ahead
'and(15) carrythatsignal.
(16) And I understandthat. I can
understand(17) thatposition. What
,weweremeasuringhereasI went
(18) throughthequestionnairewas
veryprecisely: What(1s)value,do
youallocateto thesignalsyou
carried?
(20) It couldbedoneetheotherWay,
but'we'(21)fell th'atthemeasurement
'hereshouldbeunanlbigboris.(N)
And weattributedvaluebnlf toi
'signalsthatyou (23) carr'leds And so I

did understandthetr'ibunal*s(24)
'conrmlntslandth'echmrIsentscIf bah
'theCanadianand (25) public
television,'utw4 felt thwart We should
'keepIt'age
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(1) to only thesignalsthatyou carry.
(2) Responderrecallhdd bherian
issue,(3) althoughwegdt,asyrtru'll
seewhenMr. Trautman{4) testifies,a
realconsistencyof response,everi
with (5) variouschanges'yearto year
in howthesurvey'as(Q ddneJ
includingwhen it wasdonemore
pasttheendof (7) ayead. B4t We
wantedto makesurdthrlt wing

responded(8) the're.IAnd thlat iir thwart

wenowstartthesurvey(8) quickly,
evenbeforeall the '92scoldsWere
(10) completed,
{11) Sowebeganin Dec'ember.'nd
assoonaa(12) wegetto the levelof
samplethatweneedi,weendthe (13)
work. And It waaendedI think by
irarly April with (14) niostof thai
interviewsdoneby Mardhotf '98so
that{18) thly Could clearjly rlecall 'g2.'ndthatwaathe(16) process.
(17) And theflffh wasthebudget
allocation(18) process.We'egone
throughthat. I canansWerliny'{19)
questionsif youhaveit, but I went
throughhowwe (20) added."Let'
write It down,think alboutIt.'rill rhe~
(21) whatyou have. Mow dayouwant~
to change'it?"Those,'(22) weredone
in responseto theconcernsof the
tribunal.
(23)' Mr. Bortz, if you'l justturn back
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(8) Q And you adieuthe devotional
programming(9) in 1989?
(10) A Yes, I did.
(11) Q And nawthatyou'eaddedit in
response(12) ta thecriticism, —

I know
yaudidn't talk aboutit (13) — theseare
the resultsthatyou'ecomeup with
when (14) you includedevotional
programmingaswell. Is that (15) right?
(ts) A That'scorrect.
(17) MR. GOTTFRIED: I haveno further
(18) questions.
(19) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Any
motionspending?
(20) (No response.)
(21) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You
may proceed,Mr. (22) Gersch.
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Justlet
measka (24) question. In whatareas
areyou tenderingthewitness(25) asan
expert?
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(1) MR. GERSCH: Well, I'm tendering
him to (2) supportthestudythat'
containedin his testimony,(3) And he'
testifiedto all matterswith respectto
the (4) studyand its conclusion.
(5) MR, LANE: In thatcase,just to be
clear, (6) I'm not going to makea
motion now, but I will reserve(7) my
right uponquestioningif I don'tfeel that
Mr, (8) Bortz is competentto testify to, I

will objectat (9) thattime. But at this
moment,sincetherewill be (10)
substantivequestions,I'd like to
reservethat right (t 1) naw, but I won'
makea motion at this time.
(12) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: You'e
madeyour (13) statement.The
statement'sin the record.
(14) You mayproceed,Mr. Gersch.
(15) FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION
(16) BY MR. GERSCH:
(17) Q Mr. Bartz, if I cauldjustfollow up
an (18) someof thequestionsyaujust
wereasked?Do you do (te) surveys
for yourcommercialclients?
(20) A Yes. Our companyroutinely
doessurveys,(21) a largonumber,
everyyear.
(22) Q And whenyou dathosesurveys,
do you have(23) to samplethe industry,
muchasyou hadto do here?
(24) A Thereis alwaysa sampling
design.And it (25) canbesampling
relatedto industryelements.It can
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(1) besamplingof subscribers.And
wo do thatboth (2) domesticallyand
internationally.
(3) Q And whenyou do surveysfor
your (4) commercialclients,not for
thesekinds of (5) proceedingS,do you
personallydesignthesample?
(s) A No. I typically havesomeone
designthe (7) sample.We havea

XMAX(40)

statisticia~on our staff, Arthur (8)
Steicker,who is often involved in
sampledesign. We (9) sometimes
consultwith Dr. Bardwell.
(10) We useotherconsultingfirms
andsurvey(11) firms thatassistus.
And we usethemon a regular(12)
basis,dependingon thenatureof the
study. So it (13) canbeChilton
Research,which is a big company. It
(14) happensto beownedby ABC.
(15) We haveworked jointly with
Nielsenon (16) surveyswherewe
havethemdo a sampledesignto our
(17) specificationsanda numberof
otherfirms, smaller,(18) not
nationallyknown firms, but highly
competent.So (19) it is our normal
practiceto involve expertsin sample
(20) design.
(21) Q So thatinsofarasyauhave
chosento rely (22) on thework of
anotherexpert,a Dr, Bardwell,with (23)
respectto thesampling,in connection
with this (24) study,that'sno deviation
from theprocedureyou (25) would
follow outsideof a litigation? That'sthe
same
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(1) procedureyou follow for your
commercialclients'
(2) A Forcommercialclientswe
typically (3) involve expertsto assist
us in certainareas.
(4) Q Okay. Thankyou for making
thatclear.
(5) Let'sgo backto thedesignof the
(6) questionnaire.I justwantto be
clear, You (7) mentionedDr. Bardwell,
gettinghelp from him on the (8)
sampling. Who aresomeof theother
folks thatyou {9) gotassistancefrom?
(to) A Yos. Or. MichaelWirth, who is
headof (1 t) theDepartmentof Mass
Communicationsatthe (12)
Universityof Denver. Dr. Wirth and I

haveworked{13) togetheron
projectsdatingbackevenprior to
my (14) comingto Washington. I

think we first gottogether(15) in
1977. Ho assistsuson a numberof
projects. He (te) assistedin the
questionnairedesign.
(17) Or. Roid from theUniversityof
Georgia(18) alsoassistedln the
questionnairedesignwith (19)
particularattentionto whatwo call
thoconstantsum(20) approach.So
theyworevery much involved in our
{21) questionnairedesign.
(22) Q Dr. Reld'sareaof expertiseis
what?
(23) A Well, his expertis in survey
andmarket(24) researchat the
Universityof Georgia.
(25) Q Also did you consultaDr.

Booker?
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(1) A Yes,SamBook, Dr. Book, at-
I guess(2) they'enow calledMTA
Associatesor MalarkeyTaylor, (3) is
againsomeonethat I haveknownfor
a numberof (4) years. And we had
him involvedalso in questionnaire(5)
design.
(6) Q At this point if yaucould turn to, I

(7) think it is, AppendixC of your
testimony,I believe(s) thatcontainsthe
surveyinstrumentusedin 1992. Is (9)
thatright?
{10) A That'scorrect.
(11) Q And if yaucouldwalk us through
thatand (12) your questionsthere'?
(13) A Okay. Well, we start-it'
Page45. We (14) startwith
identifying obviouslythesystem,the
retnit (15) numbers,an identifier that
theCopyrightOffice (18) assigns.We
get from someotherindustry
sources(17) subscriberswho we'e
calling for initially, say, (1S) who'sthe
generalmanagerof thesystem.
(19) And thenwe go into trying to
find the (20) appropriaterespondent
at thatsystem.And we askfor (21)
thepersonmostresponsiblefor
makingprogramming(22) decisions
in 1992.
(23) Prior to 1992we hadaskedfor
theperson(24) mostfamiliar with,
but in respondingto concernsof (25)
thetribunal in the '89proceeding,we
just changed
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(1) thatwordingvery slightly.
(2) We havein all of thesurveys
typically (3) hadpeople,avast
majorityof thosewe talkedto, of (4)
veryseniormanagementpositionsat
thesystems.That (5) getsusthe
appropriaterespondent.
(6) Q Let mejuststopyou beforeyou
go on and{7) raisethis question.That
QuestionNumber1 thatyou (8) just
referenced,that'sdirectedtowards
someoneat (9) thesystemlevel, notat
theMSO level; right?
(10) A That'sat thesystemlevel. No.
It's at (11) thesystemlevel. If they
say,"Well, you know, we (1 2) don'
really havesomebodyheremost
responsiblefor (13) programming
decisions.That'ssomebodyat the
(t4) district level" or "at theMSO
level," thonour (1 5) interviewershave
beeninstructedaftermakingsure
(te) that Indeedthere'sno oneat the ~
systemwho feels(17) thattheywere
responsiblefor programming
decisions,(1s) thatwe will thengo
aheadandcall, geta reference(te)
andcall, someoneat thenext level.
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ielss?
(1S& A Yes. I metwith Dr. Bardweil.
iWei(17) discussedanddebatedthe
iissueof whetherwe should(15) have
a stratifiedrandomsampleor we
ishouldigo to a (19) non-stratified
approach.
(2o) I instructedhim asto thekinds
of levels(21) of accuracyor
oonfidencelevelsthat I would want
ito (22) Iiiave in thekeyquestionand
thenaskedhim to come(23) back
Witlf a Sampledesignwhich we could
makeuseof.
(24) Q And did you tell him to usethe
formulas(2S) thatyou'ecited on Page
18 of your testimony,for
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(1) axanIple,for the1989studyin taking
thesample(2) design?
(3) A You'ereferringto thesecond
paragraph(4) under2?
(5) Q Exactly.
(6) A The formulashe
recommendedthatweusein m
orderte comeup with themost
preciseestimate.
(5) i

Q /Ind areyou qualifiedor canyou
ansWer(9) questions.aboutthose
formulaaandhow theywork as(1O)
they,applyto the1989and1992
studiies?
(11) iA I ican certainlydescribethe
iiiatilre ef the (12) formulas. The
purposefor which they'eintended,
(13) therefore,is of directrelevance
to what,it is that (14) I'm testifying for.
(1s) Thederivationof theformulas,
the (15) iscademicsupportof those
formulasDr. Bardwellcould (17)
provide. And, in fact, Or. Bardwell
will becoming (15) into town tonight.
(&9) lf thepanelwould like to hear
from Dr (20) Bardwellon thoseitems,
hewill beavailablehereto (21)
provide,thatbackground.But I'm
fully, awareof why (22) thoserules
Wereuslsd..And theywereto meet
goals(23) that i hadspecifiedto Dr.
Bardwell.
(Z4) iQ Olid yOu ~
(25) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM:
Excuseme.
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(1) MR& LANE'orry
(2) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Yiou
referredto a',(3) forrhulvI. Ale yltiu ,'eferr'ing'tothis )orastrataiof (5) rtIyaiI y
ciasqespr somethingelse?
(sj THE WITN)SS,'I ttelltIve Ite')
referringito (8) thecurn squareiroot of F
rule.i
(7) ARBITRAT0R WEIIITHEIiiirI: I don'
seethaton (8) Page18.'9)

MR.;GERSQH:;Third full
i

paragraph.
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(19) THE WITNESS: Page18, third
paragraph.
&11) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
(12) THE WITNESS: Thesecond
sentencerefers(13) to thecurn square
rootof F rule. And thefourth (14)
sentencerefers&o Nsymianni's
allocationformu'las. I (15) believethose
aretheonly two formulasreferredto
(15) here.
(17) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Thank
you.
(15) BY MR. LANE:
(1 9) Q Turningto Page19, duringwhat
period (20) wereyou involved in
overseeingtheselectionand (21)
trainingof interviewers? Is thatfor the
1989study(22) or for the1992study?
(23) A Forboth.,
(24) Q Did you personallymeetwith
them'
(25) A I participatedin '89and '92on
the

Page578
(1) telephone.It wasa telephone
conference.Mr. (2) Trautrnan'was
personallythere. This firm is based
in (3) Cincinnati. And I wason the
telephonefor the (4) trainingsession.
(s) Q I'd Iikq to furi1 to $pppndjxDiof

i

your (5) testimony,if yoiii wquldi TIIat's
on Page50. Did you (7) designthese
statlstlcaiestimationproceduresfor (5)
this study?
(9) A Thatwasdesignedby Or.
Bardwell,who I (1o) broughtin asour
consultantto do that.
(11) Q Did you performanyof the
calculations(12) from theseformulasas
theyrelateto the1989or 1992(13)
study'?
(14) A My staffperformedthose
calculations(1 S) undermy direction.
(1e) Q Did youwrite AppendixD?
(17) A I did net.
(1e) Q And canyouansWerquestions,
about(19) Appendix0 andhow it
appliesto the1989and1992(20)
studiesthatyou present?
(21) A Yes, I cananswerthesein a
gimetalway. (22) Again,aaI said,if

getdownto the(23)
alderivationor to say

m square(24) rootof F rule
u themaximum-
(25) theminimumerror in
boundariesof the
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yiiu v rantto
ni athemetic
w Ity lhecu
pi eviifeayo
eiiaeittially
si Ittll ig the

(1 I stiatm
(2I 1'h
fc rmi &lat
wouliI h
whyilw
tc aclvie
slieclfi
(el hIR.

atsa mathematical
lon thatOr. (3) Bardwell
aveto address,but I know
as(4) used'ndit wasused,
veobjectivesthat I (5)

~d.
LANE: Thoseareall the

(202)
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questionsI (7) haveonvoir dire.
(s) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: Any
otherquestions(9) on the issueof
competency?
(10) MR. GOTTFRIED: I haveafsw
questionsand (11) theobjection,Your

i

Honor. My nameis Barry (12) Gottfried,
and I'm oneof the lawyersto the (13)
DevotionalClaimants.
(14) THE WITNESS: Hello.
(15) MR. GOTTFRIED: Good
afternoon,Mr. Bortz.
(15) VOIR DIRE
(17) BY MR. GOTTFRIED:
(18) Q You weren'tpaid by the
Devotional(19) Claimantsto do this .

study,wereyou?
(2o) A No, I wasnot.

i,(21) QAnd, infact,yougaveakindofa
long (22) list of peopleyouworkedfor,
and I didn'thearany (23) namesof
religiousprogrammersin that list.
(24) A That'scorrect.
(2s) Q You'eneverworkedfor a
religious
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(1) program,haveyou,sir?
(2) A No.
(3) Q Now, in fact, thefirst time I was

i
in this (4) case,Mr. Bortz,- I knowyou

, go backlongerthanI (5) do — was1983.
(5) A Yes.
(7) Q And you recallyou did astudyin
1983for (5) theSportsClaimants?
(9) A That'scorrect. In fact, that
wasthe(1o) first timethatwewere
involved in-
(11) Q Oh, it wasalso?
(12) A Yes.
(13) Q Well, westartedtogether,then. I

(14) thoughtyou did onein '79.
(1S) A No, thatwasnotdoneby-
(1e) Q In thatstudy-andI'l refresh
your (17) recollectionif you need. I'm
lookingatMr. (1e)Trautman's

, testimony.You askedaboutfour or five
(19) programmingcategories
dependingonwhetheraPBS(2o)

, stationwason, butyoudidn'taskabout
devotional(21) programming.Is that
correct?
(22) A That'scorrect.
(23) Q And if I look atPage10of Mr.
Trautman's(24) testimony,youwere
criticizedfor notaskingabout(25)
devotionalprogrammingthatyear. Is
thatcorrect?
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(1) A That'scorrect.
(2) Q By thetribunal?
(3) A Yes.

I (4) Q And in responseto thatcriticism,
, I think(5)yousaidto Mr. Laneyouwere
involved in designing(e) the
questionnaires?
(7) A Yes.
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to (24) Page21 for a moment,your
TableNumber5? First (25) column
under1989,"Numberof Respondents,"
you have
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(1) a total of 18 there. I think thatmay
bea typo.
(2) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: One
ninety-eight.
(3) THE WITNESS: Okay. Yes,
obviously. (4) Yeah, it wasdifferent.
Thankyou for totalling it. (5) One
ninety-eight.
(5) MR. GERSCH: Thankyou,Your
Honor.
(7) BY MR. GERSCH:
(8) Q Let'sgo to thefinal stepin the
process,(9) which is ananalysisof your
results. So let'sgo (1O) overto Page
24, Table7, whereyou'egotthe
results(11) for your first questionon
yoursurvey,in whichyou (12) askthe
cableoperatorswhat in theirviewwas
the (i 3) mostpopulartypeof
programmingwith their (14)
subscribers.Whatdid you find there?
(i 5) A Well, we found that live
professionaland (is) collegeteam
sportswasthemostpopular,asyou
can(i7) seefrom thenumbersthere.
And wealsofound that it (18) waso-
themeannumberin thesurveywasa
bit (ie) higher,but I shouldpointout
thatthosefall within (20) thesortof
bandof uncertaintyor the
confidence(21) interval. Thatfalls
without thosenumbers.Soyou (22)
can'tasserttoo muchwith respectto
popularity,but (23) at leastthemeans
weresomewhatdifferent.
(24) And secondwasmoviesand
thensyndicated(25) seriesand
shows. In bothcasesI think it'
somewhat
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(1) interestingto takea look at. If
you combinethe(2) moviesand
showsand look atthatwith liw (3)
professionalandcollegeteam
sports,they'efairly (4) closein
termsof thetotalof thosetwo
categories(5) with thesports
category.
(5) Q Okay.
p) A And, remember,thiswasdone
unprompted.(8) ThiswaaJustasking
what'smostpopular. And we (9)
didn't list thedifferentcategories.
So it's an (10) unpromptedresponse.
(11) Q Justgoingbackin termsof the
(12) formulationof QuestionNumber2,
thequestionthat (1 S) gaveyou these
responses,I wantto go backto your
(14) questionnairefor asecond.
(15) Thequestionyouaskedthereis
'What(is) typesof programming
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operators,the (io) systemowners,what
it is thattheyactuallyfeatured(ii) when
theydo advertisingandpromotion,the
category(12) theycite mostis sports?
(1s) AByfar.
(14) Q And thenyouaskedthat
questiona little (is) bit differently. And
you reportthoseresultsatthe (15) top
of Page28. Is thatright?
(17) A That'sright becausenow
we'esayingnot (18) "What doyou
feature?"but "Whatwasmost
importantin (19) whatyou do?".
(2O) Q And whatweretheresponses
you gotthere?
(21) A That'sPage28,Table10. 67.7
percentof (22) therespondentssaid
that live professionaland(23) college
teamsportswasmost important.
And that's(24) consistent,really,with
theearlierquestionin that(25) it'
almostuniversallyusedwhereit'
more
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(1) selectivelyusedfor theother
categories.I think (2) theresponses
acrossthesequestionsaroquite(s)
consistent.
(4) Q All right. Let'sturn nowto your
(5) constantsumquestion,whereyou
actuallyaskthe (5) operatorsto makea
determinationbasedonaconstantp)
sumwhich of thevariousdifferenttypes
of (8) programmingat issuein this
proceedingareof what(9) typeof
value. Whatdid you find? That'son the
top (1O) of Page30.Whatdidyoufind
there?We'estill got (11) thechartthat
showssomeof your results.
(i2) A Right. Thechartessentially
repeatswhat(13) youwould seein
Table11 on thetopof Pago31. And
(14) it showedthat38.8percentof the
allocationwould go (15) to live
professionalandcollegeteam
sports.That's(15) up from the1080
numberof 84.2.(17) 25.8percent
would go to movies. Thathas(is)
gonedown. That'skind of
consistentwith a rather(19) different
questionin Question3 aboutwhat'
most(20) important,butthey'e
internallyconsistent,the(21)
answersto 3 andto 4.
(22) And thentheothercategories,
syndicated(23) showsof 16 percent,
newsandpublic affairsat12.4,(24)
devotionalandreligious
programmingat3.9percent,(25) PBS
andotherprogrammingcarriedon
noncommercial
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(1) stationsat3 percent,and
Canadianprogrammingat.3(2)
percent.
(s) Q And just if youcompareI guess

broadcastby thesestations,what (17)
wasmostpopular?"Sothis isn't limited
to a (15) particulartypeof
programming.Is it limited to (19)
distantsignalprogramminghere?
(20) A Is it — excuseme?
(21) Q Are you limiting yourselfto
distant(22) signalprogrammingwhen
youaskthis question?
(23) A This is limited to distantsignal
(24) programming.We repeatthe
fact that it's not (25) nationalnetwork
programming.Wedon'twantthe

Page610
(1) network,say,packagesof
baseballor footballor (2) whateverto
appearin here. Sowemakeit very
clear(s) thatwe'etalking about
non-networkprogramming.
(4) Q Okay. Let'sgo on to the
questionsyou (5) askedabout
advertisingandpromotionaluseof (5)
programming.Turn to thenextcharton
Page26, top (7) of Page26. How many
of therespondentssaidthat (8) they
utilized distantsignalprogrammingin
(9) advertisingandpromotionalefforts?
(io) A We canseeit's abouta third in
both (1 1) years,31 anda half percent
to beprecisefor 1002.
(12) Q And you askthosefollow-up
questions?
(13) A That'sright. Now it'
important- okay. (14) We said,"Do
you useit?" And only if theysaidthey
(is) useit did wegoon to thenext
ones
(ie) Q Whatdid you find there?
(17) A Well, therewe found that it
wassports,(1 5) live professionaland
collegeteamsports,wasalmost(19)
universallyusedin advertisingand
promotion.That's(20) in Table0 on
Page26. No surpriseatall. Anyone
in (21) thecableindustrywho reads
thotrademagazinesand(22) goesto
thetradeshowsknow thatsportsare
heavily(23) featured.
(24) Moviesarealsofeatured,about
half the (25) systemsin 1002. And
that'sasharpdrop-off from
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(i).1989. Wo havea fairly wide
coildoncointervalhero.(2) But,
ovenso,It's notable.And I think
thereare(3) somereasonsthatmight
applyto thaL And thon (4)
syndicatedshowsandseriesls 38
porcenh
(5) Sowhatyouseois
overwhelminglysports(6) is used.
And thentheothersareused,butnot
nearlyp) asmuchassports.Sports
is almosttwice theamount(8) of
movies.
(9) Q Sowhenyouaskedthecable
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the '92 (4I festal+ dc[I . &nc 89 Iesults
from the lastproceeding(5) with
respectto sports,you found thatthe
share(s) allocationwashigher. Is that
right?
m A Yes. And it's consistentwith
the (8) expectationsthat I would have
had- that I did have.
(3) Q And, likewise,thesharefor
moviesin '92 (to) is lowerthan in '89. Is
thatright?
(11) A Sharefor moviesdropped
somewhat.(i2) Syndicated,I think
thedifferencestherearenot (13)
statisticallysignificant. Sothat
stayedaboutthe (14) same.
(15) Q Okay.
(16) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Why
dowesucha (i 7) substantialvariation
amongtheabsoluteconfidence(18)
intervalsin thesevariouscategories?
(ts) THEWITNESS: Yes. Youmean
goingacross(2O) thedifferent
questions?
(21) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Yes.
Well-
(22) THE WITNESS: Within thetableon
Page31?
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Yes,
similarto the(24) previoustable.
(25) THE WITNESS: It hasto dowith
thesample
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(1) size,thenumberof systemsthatare
respondingin (2) eachcase,andthe
absolutemagnitudeof thenumber(3)
thattheygiveyou, although2.2 percent
is awider (4) interval,say,than in news
andpublicaffairsand 1.7 (5) percent.
It's asmallerpercentageof thenumber.
(6) In otherwords,thepercentage
uncertaintym of 38.8,the2.2points is
lessuncertaintyasa (8) percentageof
thetotal number. But thatjustcomes
(9) from takingthenumberof
responses,howthey'e(to) weighted,
puttingthatthroughthestatistical(1 1)
analysis,andcalculatingthe
confidenceinterval for (12) each
categorythatwasanswered.
(13) In my view, basicallythey'e
comparable.(14) I knowthatyousee
somethingswith devotional,(18)
religious,andCanadiandownatvery
low levels. It (18) hasto dowith thevery
smallpopulationof those(t7) stations.
But theothersarereallyprettymuchin
(18) thesamerange.
(19) I wouldsuggestfor simplicity that
you (20) couldsay,you know, these
numbersareprobablygood(21) within
plusor minustwo percent.And that'sa
pretty (22) goodnumberfrom asurvey,
plusor minustwo percent.
(23) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: And
thesefigures(24) for PBSandCanadian
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programmingareonly percent(25)
allocationamongthoserespondents
who saidtheydid

Page615'1)somepublicandCanadian
programming?
(2) THE WITNESS: Only

those'espondents who (3) - for whomwe
hadcall - we hadthestatementof (4IaccountandsaidtheycaI'riel that
signalor they told (5) usthatthey
carriedthesignal,yes.
(6) It's only for thoserespondents
who (7) carriedthesignal. There'sno
valuegivenhereto (8) rskpoIIder(tsllIho'ighthavecarriedthesignalata (s)
lowerprice.
(to) MR. GERSCH: Okay.
(11) BY MR. GERSCH:
(12) Q Mr. Borlz, with respectto your
findings (13) in yoursurvey,thesports
category,themostvaluable(I4) 'ategoryof programmingwith respect
to distantsignal(is) programming,I
believeyou saidthatthatwas(16)
consistentwith yourexperience.How
doesyour (17) experienceln the 'ndustrysupportthatconclusion?
(18) A Okay. Therearer'cally two
elementsto (i 9) it. First, let's look
specificallyat 1 992,whatw'as(20)
goingon. MichaelJordanwas,atthe,
peakof his (21) popularity. WGN had
enteredits periodof rap'id (22) 'ubscribergrowthaftera notso
rapidperiodafter(23) theyaddedthe 'hicagoBulls. I believethatthathad
(24) a lot to do with theircirculation
growth. You had- (25) youwerethen
in a periodwheretheChicagoBulls
wore
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(1) thenationalchampionsof the 'ationalBasketball(2) Assdclatlolt.
(3) TheAtlantaBravesaftera period
of years(4) is - a notsogoodteam,
wasthoNationalLeague(8)
championsanddoingthat,notquite
makingtheWorld (8) Seriesuntil this
year.,buttheydid it.
m Sowe hadtwo extremelystrong
attractions(8) thatclearl'yhad 'ationwideappeal.And I think that
(9) thooperatorsworecognizantof
that,thattheir (10) subsdrlbarscoolly
liked gettingaccessto all of (11)
thosegames,in additionto thoWhite
SoxandthoCubo(12) 'thathadtheir
own followingo.
(13) But In termsof thedhole,'learlythe(14) fortunesOf those
teamswould affectthat.'ndIf (18)
theybothwent ln a tank'aNw pearl
from now, I would (ie) expectmy
expectatlonwould bo thatnumber'ould

go (17) down. I waspleased'o
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seethat it had- thatbur I18) 'easurement approalchiliad 'the
Seneitiiityto p'ick that (19) up.
(2o) Secondly,though,let'sagain
thinkwe'e(21) in 1 995. And'the'eriod

of the late '80sinto the(22)
early '90swasa periodof substantial
increasesin (23) therightsfeespaid,
particularlyfor spartalike the(24)
NationalBasketballAssociation.
The licensingof (2s) sportsproduct
in this countryexplodedoverthis
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(1) period. And so'we'hada gre6t
increasein'popularity (2) bf clpoAs,bf 'othgenerallyandspecificteams
that(3) wereon thesignal.
(4) Thesecondthing is that-
kmemberthis (5) is a relative
allocation. Sportsgo'esup. 'That
nleans(8) thattheoperatorsmadea
consciousdecisionthat(7)
somethingelsewentHots)n. IAnd if'e'etalking about(s) themajor
threecategories,weseethat
syndicated(s) didn'tchangemuch,.9
of a point. But movieswent(tc)
down.
(11) And I can'tgiveybu Is cIIusdl
analysisof (i2) this, sayingit'e'nt
downspecifically. But weknow (13)
thatwehadduringthatpisridd tfIe 'ariouscable(14) networksable'o
licensebetterpackag'esof both'(t5)'yndicated

programmingand
nlovlos.'16)

And sothereWerembrei
alternatives.(i 7) Celthinlythe
vidoocassetterevolution'hadalluded
up at (18) averyhigh Isenetr&iohof,
peoplewhowererenting(ts) movies.
We had'serviceslike Americltn Movie
Classics(28) thatfor yearshadSeen
Wld's 'a ply 4erviceJ(21) Remelnber
we talkedaboutpay,you'egoing tO
haveto (22) payextrato getft,
convertit to basic. Sothere(23) was
nlorothere.
(24) So,whetherwe look attheUSA
Networkor (26) Lifetime orAmerican
MovieClassics,therewere
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(1) certainlymorechdicoeavailable
fbr movieswithout (2)lhaiIlng to lget'a 'istantsignal.
(3) And so I think thattHe
combination- it (4) waetho interplay
andcombinationof the increased(8)

supplyonthocablesystemsof
moviesandtho (8) inclroased
popularityOfsportsItnd the'specific
m popularityof two realhnginosof
hpofto ih the(8) ChicagoIBulls and'hoAtlantaBraves,tHatWhenyou (9)
begintemeldthosefactorstogether-'nd I can't(to) get into~theheadsof
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thecableoperatorswho are(11)
respondingto it. That'swhy it met
my expectations.
(12) That'swhat I would have
anticipated,both (13) a - you know,
somewhatof adrop in moviesand
(i4) somewhatof an increasein
sports.
(1 6) Q And howaboutjustthefactthat
sportsas(1e) ageneralmatter,putting
asidethe increasethat (1 7) you'ejust
beentestifyingaboutfrom '89 tc '92on
(1 e) sportsandacorresponding
decreaseon movies? How (19) about
justtherelativevalueof sportsas
compared(2O) with movies'?
(21) Your survey— andyou'egone
backto the (22) predecessor's.All
consistentlyshowsportsas(23)
considerablymorevaluableor more
valuablethan(24) movies.
(25) In youropinion is thatconsistent
with

Page619
(1) your industryexperience?
(2) A Well, let'sthink aboutsports.
This is, (3) you know, in thecategory,
It's live, live (4) professionaland
collegesports,somethingthat's(s)
happeningright then. Theproduct
can'tbeany(e) fresherthantonight's
gametonightwith thisyear's(7) stars
androokieof theyearor whoeveris
playing.
(8) It is tied into somethingthat'
happening(s) on a continuausbasis,
happeningin thesenseof (1o) they'e
competingfor division
championshipsand (1 i) eventually
leaguechampionships.And that'sa
very (12) evolving kind af
pragramming.
(18) Moviesarevery attractive.And
(14) syndicatedseriesarevery
attractiveprogramming.(is) But
theseare,by and large,moviesthat
havealready(ie) hadreleasein other
places,areavailablein other(17)
places,like thevideostorefor the
movies.
(ie) Theserieehaveoftenrunona
networkand(ia) thenbeenrun, hada
repeatshown,onanetwork. And (20)
theygooutto syndication.And so
they'enot (21) necessarilynew. And
theygetrun fairly frequently.
(22) So I think thedifferencethatwe
have(23) hereis the live nature. It'
happening.It's (24) current. And
there'san intensityof involvement
and(2S)avaluingof productthat'
first run, asopposedto
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(1)verygoodproductand
entertainingproductthatcan(2) fill a
lot of hours,but it's not first run.

(s) By and large, it's not first run.
There(4) is somefirst run moviesand
otherprogrammingthat's(s)
producedon thesestations,but, by
and large,they (e) cornsfrom the
libraries,film librariesand
syndicated(7) programming
libraries.
(e) Q Goingbackto thebeginningof
your (s) testimony,whereyou talked
aboutthedifferenttypes{1o) of cable
networksandPay-Per-Viewchannels
thata(ii) systemwould carry, it is the
case,is it not, that(12) thereare
substantialotherprogrammingoptions
that (18) aretypically offeredby the
systemwhich do carry (i 4) first run
movies,non-distantsignalling?
(is) A Yes. And that's- you'l find
that in (is) thePay-Per-Viewservices
talking aboutfirst run {17) movies.
And thepayservicesincreasingly
have(ie) producedthem. HBO
producesa lot of movies,and(is)
thosearefirst run, althoughI think
people- I'l (2O) haveto saythatthe
greatestpopularity, I believe,(21) is
with theatricalreleasesthathave
been{22) pre-promotedandpre-sold.
(28) It usedto bewhen I would give
speeches(24) attheNationalCable
Convention,that it would (2S)
emphasizethatsomuchof whatthey
hadwaspre-sold
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(1) productandsalittle of whatthey
hadwasnew {2) product.
(8) MR. GERSCH: Okay. let meask
this (4) questionof theChair. I'm going
to go into anew (s) sectionnow. I'm
happyto do it nowor I don'tknow (e)
whetheryouwantto - whenyouwant
to takeabreakp) for theday.
(e) CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We had
agreedto go (9) until 5:30. I think we
justtookabreaknottoo long (io) ago.
(11) MR. GERSCH: Okay.
(i2). CHAIRPERSONJIGANTI: We
shouldeasilybe(18) ableto goto 5:30.
(14) MR. GERSCH: Except-
(is) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Before
yougo into (is) anewsubject,I'd like
to askyouaquestionabout(17)Table
11 andthiscomparisongenerallyyou
makeof '89 (ie) and'92.
(19) THE WITNESS: Yes.
(20} ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: You
didn'tdoa (21) surveyfor '90,butfor
'91?
(22} THE WITNESS: A surveywas
donefor '90.
(2$) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: But
therewasno {24) datain your
testimony?
{2S) THE WITNESS: Thatwillbe in Mr.
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{1) Trautman'stestimony. Therewere—
overaperiodof (2) 10 differentyearsin
whichsurveysweredone,there(3)
were12 surveys.Ratherthanhit you
with all 12 at (4) onetime, theapproach
herewasto take '89,which had (5) been
subjectedto rigorousscrutinyin the '89
(e) proceeding;andthen'92,whichwas
thevery first (7) surveythat
incorporatedthecommentscomingcut
of (8) '89.
(s) Sowewantedto focuson that
refined (1O) surveythatreflectedthe
changesandcompareit to (i1) '89.
And thenMr. Trautmanwill fill in the
blankson (i 2) '90and '91.
(13) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Both
years'90and (14) '91?
(is) THE WITNESS: Hewill be
testifyingtaa (ie) largenumberof
surveys,including '90and '91.
(17) MR. GERSCH: All of theresultsof
all of (1 8) theJSCsurveysareTable1 ta
Mr. Trautman'sprepared(ie)
testimony. He givesthemall right
there.
(2O) ARBITRATOR WERTHEIM: Okay.
Thankyou.
(21) BY MR. GERSCH:
(22) Q let'sturn nowto discussionin
your (23) testimonywith respectto the
MPAA's useof the (24) Nielsendata,
andparticularlythis conceptof (2S)
viewing. Haveyou seenthat in other
proceedings,a
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(1) viewing hourconceptusedby
MPAA?
(2) A Yes, I have.
(8) Q And thisyeartheychangedit a
little (4) bit. It's aviewing minute
concept. Is thatright?
(s) A Well, I seethat,yes,they'e
using(e) viewing minutes.And that
hasto dowith a changep) from
diariesto peoplemeter. But
basicallyit's the (8) same
measurement.
(9) It's ameasurementof what I call
tonnage.(1O) In otherwords,you
don't lookatthevalueof the(1 1)
programming.You lookathow
much. And soaprogram(i2) that
appearsonastationlateatnightthat
hasbeen(ia) amoviethat'sbeen
shownfive timespreviouslyor (i4)
it's anold, old blackandwhiteseries
countsasmuch(ie) asa live sports
programwith hotcompetitorsand
(ie) primetime. So it'satonnage
measurement.
(17) I mustsaythattheonly placein
my (18) practice- andI'ebeenin
thebusinesssincethe(19) early'70s
- that I everencounteredviewing
minutes(20) or - well, viewing
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